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NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLBDERS' MEETING

TO : ALL STOCKHOLDERS

Please be notified that the Annual Stockhoiders' Meeting of STA. LUCIA LAND, INC. (the
"Corporation"} wilt be held on Friday, 28 June 2019, at 8:00 a.m., at Il Centro, Sta. Lucia Mall,
Marcos Highway corner Imelda Avenue, Cainta, Rizal, at which meeting the following matters will be
taken up:

1. Opening of the Meeting by the Chairman

2. Proof of Notice

3. Proof of the Presence of a Quorum

4, Reading and Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting held on 21
June 2018

5. Report of the President

B, Approval and Ratification of all Acts and Resolutions of the Board of Directors and

Management for the Period from 21 June 2018 to 27 June 2019

7. Election of Members of the Board of Directors for 2013-2020
8. Appointment of External Auditor

9. Other Matters

10. Adjournment

In relation to the Election of Members of the Board of Directors for 2019-2020 (ltem 7), the
requirements and procedure for the nomination and election of directors are as follows:

1. Nomination

Any stockholder of record of the Corporation may nominate any qualified individual as an
Independent Director of the Cerporation by submitting a signed nomination form. The nomination shall
be accepted and conformed to by the neminated candidate, and submitted to the Nomination
Committee of the Corporation not later than forty-five (45) days before the date of the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting.

The Nomination Committee shall pre-screen the qualifications of each nominee and come up
with the Final List of Candidates, which shall contain all relevant information pertaining to the nominated
candidate, including the identity of the stockholder(s) who nominated the said candidate. The Final List
of Candidates shall be submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission in any report required by
the Securities Regulation Code and its implementing rules and regulations, including, but not limited to,
the Information Statement and Proxy Statement.

After the Final List of Candidates shall have been prepared by the Nomination Committee, no
other nomination shall be entertained. Neither shall a nomination for Independent Directors be
entertained or allowed on the floor during the annual meeting of stockholders.

2. Election

A majority of the subscribed capital present in person or represented by proxy shall be sufficient
to constitute 2 quorum for the election of directors.

At each meeting of the stockholders, every stockholder shall be entitled {o vote in persen or by
proxy, for each share of stock held by him which has voting power upon the matter in question.

Penthouse Bldg. lil Sta. Lucia Mall, Marcos Highway corner Imelda Avenue, Cainta, Rizal. Philippines
Tel. No.: {(+632) 681-7332 Telefax: (+632) 681-7467
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The votes for the election of directors shall be by viva voce or show of hands. The directors of
the Corporation shall be elected by plurality vote and every stockholder shall have the right to vote, in
person or by proxy, the number of shares owned by him for as many persons as there are directors to
be elected, or to cumulate his votes by giving one candidate as many votes as the number of such
directors multiplied by the number of his share shall equal, or by distributing such votes at the same
principle among any number of candidates. If the number of nominees is nine (9) or less, a motion shall
be presented to the body that all votes be cast in favor of all nominees. However, if the minority
stockholders nominate a candidate or if there are mare than nine (9) nominees, the votes shall be cast.
The results shall be counted/validated by the Corporate Secretary.

The Organizational Meeting of the new Board of Directors will be held immediately after the
Annual Stockholders' Meeting.

By resolution of the Board of Directors, the close of business on Tuesday, 28 May 2019, has
been fixed as the record date for the determination of the stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at,
the Annual Stockholders' Meeting and any adjournment thereof.

All stockholders who do not expect to attend the meeting in person are urged to fill in, date, sign
and return the enclosed proxy to the Carparation, at its Principal Office, not later than Thursday, 20
June 2019, in accordance with the 2015 Revised Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Securities
Regulation Code. Proxies received after the said deadline will not be recorded. Corporate stockhaolders
are requested to attach to the proxy instrument their respective Secretary's Certificates containing the
Board Resolution vis-a-vis the authority of their proxy(ies). Management is not asking you for a
proxy, and you are not requested to send management a proxy. All proxies submitted on or before
the deadline shall be validated by a Committee of Inspectors on Friday, 21 June 2019, at the principal
office of the Corporation.

To facilitate regisfration of your attendance, please hbring identification containing your
signature and photograph.

22 May 2019.

& ¢ O

PAFIRICIA A. O. BUNYE
orporate Secretary

Penthouse Bldg. Ill Sta. Lucia Mall, Marcos Highway corner Imelda Avenue, Cainta, Rizal. Philippines
Tel. No.: {+632) 681-7332 Telefax: (+632) 581-7467



KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

The undersigned stockholder of STA. LUCIA LAND, INC. (the "Corporation”)
does hereby name, constitute and appoint:

Mr./Ms. , or in his/her absence,
Mr./Ms.

as proxy, to represent and vote all shares registered in his/her/its name in the books of
said Corporation, at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting to be held on Friday, 28 June
2019, at 8:00 a.m,, at il Centro, Sta. Lucia Mall, Marcos Highway corner Imelda
Avenue, Cainta, Rizal, or at any adjournment thereof, on all matters that may properly
be brought forth at said meeting, as fully to all infents and purposes as a stockholder
might do if present and acting in person, with this proxy being suspended where the
undersigned stockholder personally attends and formally registers his/her/its presence
at said meeting.

This proxy revokes any and all proxies, which may have previously been

executed in favor of a person or persons other than those named above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set his/her/its hand
this day of 2019.

Signature

Printed Name of Signatory/
Stockholder

Title of Signatory

(For Corporate Stockholders)

WITNESSES:

A proxy executed by a corporate stockholder shall be in the form of a board resoclution
duly certified by the Corporate Secretary or in this proxy form executed by a duly
authorized corporate officer accompanied by a Corporate Secretary's Certificate
quoting the board resolution authorizing the said corporate officer to execute the proxy.
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therein:

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-I8
INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20 (3) (A)
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

Check the appropriate box:

[v'] Preliminary Information Statement MAY 22 2019
[ ] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter % M

STA. LUCIA LAND, INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
METRO MANILA, PHILIPPINES

SEC Identification Number 31050
BIR Tax Identification Code 000-152-291
Address of principal office

Penthouse, Building III, Sta. Lucia Mall, Marcos Highway corner Imelda
Avenue, Cainta, Rizal

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632) 681-7332

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

28 June 2019, 8:00 a.m., at Il Centro, Sta. Lucia Mall, Marces Highway
corner Imelda Ave., Cainta, Rizal

The approximate date on which the Information Statement will be sent or given to
the security holders is on 06 June 2019

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8
of the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable
only to corporate registrants}:

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common 8,196,450,000
Are any or all of Registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes X No

[f yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed

Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc., Common Shares



INFORMATION STATEMENT

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY
AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY

GENERAL INFORMATION

Date, Time and Place of Meeting of Security Holders

Date : 28 June 2019

Time: 8:00 am.

Place : Il Centro, Sta. Lucia Mall, Marcos Highway corner Imelda Ave., Cainta,
Rizal

The corporate mailing address of the principal office of the Registrant is Penthouse
Building III, Sta. Lucia Mall, Marcos Highway corner Imelda Avenue, Cainta, Rizal.

The approximate date the definitive copies of the Information Statement will be sent
or given to security holders is on 06 June 2019.

Dissenter’s Right of Appraisal

There are no matters to be acted upon in the stockholders’ meeting which may give
nse to any rights of appraisal under Section 80, Title X, Appraisal Right, Revised
Corporation Code of the Philippines.

A stockholder who shall have voted against any corporate action involving matters
enumerated undet Section 80, Title X, Appraisal Right, the Revised Corporation Code of
the Philippines (the “dissenting stockholder”) may exercise his appraisal right by making a
written demand on the Registrant for the payment of the fair value of shares held within
thirty (30) days after the Stockholders’ Meeting date. Failure to make the demand within
the prescribed period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right. If the propesed
corporate action is implemented, the Registrant shall pay the dissenting stockholder upon
surrender of the stock certificates representing his shareholdings in the Registrant based on
the fair value thereof as of the day prior to the date of the Stockholders’ Meeting,
excluding any appreciation or depreciation in anticipation of such corporate action,
provided that no payment shall be made to the dissenting stockholder unless the Registrant
has unrestricted retained earnings to cause such payment.

Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be acted upon

No director has informed the Registrant in writing that he intends to oppose any
action to be taken at the meeting.

CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Yoting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) Number of shares outstanding as of 31 March 2019:

Common: 8,196,450,000




Each security holder shall be entitled to as many number of votes as the

number of shares held.

(b) Record date:

Cumulative Voting Rights

any

28 May 2019

Pursuant to Section 1.06 of the Registrant’s By-Laws, every holder of voting stock
may vote during all meetings, including the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, either in person
or by proxy executed in writing by the stockholder or his duly authorized attorney-in-fact.

Applying Section 23 of the Revised Corporation Code, each stockholder may vote in

he may vote such number for as many persons as there are directors to

he may cumulate said shares and give one (1) candidate as many

votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by his shares;

of the following manner:
(a)
be elected;
(b)
or
(c)

he may distribute them on the same principle among as many
candidates as he shall see fit.

In any of the foregoing instances, the total number of votes cast by the shareholder
should not exceed the number of shares owned by him as shown in the books of the
Registrant multiplied by the whole number of directors to be elected.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial QOwners and Management

e Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

Stockholders who/which are directly/indirectly the record/beneficial owners of
more than 5% of the Registrant’s voting securities as of 31 March 2019:

Name of
Beneficial
Title of Recorfia([)n\:ggdaﬁg¥:f:t?gnship Owner and Citizenship Number of - Percentage
Class with Issuer Relationship Shares Held Held
with Record
Owner i
Common [Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Same as Domestic | 6,701,005,767 | 81.75%

Inc. (“SLRDI™)'
Ground Floor State Financing Center
Building, Ortigas Center, Pasig City

record owner

Based on its latest General Information Sheet (“GIS™) on file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the majority stockholders of SLRDI are Mariza Santos-Tan, Vicente R. Santos, Orestes R.
Santos, Felizardo R. Santos, and Leodegario R. Santos, all Filipino citizens. They each hold 10% of the
outstanding capifal stock of SLRDI. SLRDI has not yet submitted its proxy for the 2019 Annual
Stockholders® Meeting of the Registrant since the deadline for submission is on 20 June 2019,




Common [PCD Nominee Corporation l. Various | Domestic | 2,317,135,607 | 28.27%
beneficial
Ground Floor, MKSE Building, 6767 | owners
Avala Avenue, 1226 Makati City
2. Cualoping
Relationship with Issuer: N/A Securities
Corporation

=,

The voting of the shares of the foregoing corporate stockholders of the Registrant
during the stockholders” meeting is directed by the majority vote of the members of their
respective board of directors.

¢ Security Ownership of Management (as of 31 March 2019}

Amount and
Title of class Name of Beneficial OQwner g::::tl:liizg Citizenship P:‘cgl;:sge
Ownership 7__
Comumon VICENTE R. SANTOS 712,494 Filipino 0.01%
Chairman Direct
Evangelista St., Brgy. Santelan 233,000
Pasig City Indirect
Common EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES 712,500 Filipino 0.01%
President and Director Direct
F. Pasco Ave., Dumandan 230,000
Compound, Santolan, Pasig City Indirect
Common MARIZA R. SANTOS-TAN 1 Filipino -
Treasurer and Director Direct
G/F, State Centre II 0
Ortigas Ave., Mandaluyong City Indirect
Common AURORA D. ROBLES 1 Filipino -
Assistant Treasurer and Director Direct
Alexandra Cendominium 0
Meraleo Ave., Pasig City Indirect
Commen SIMEON S. CUA 999 Fitipino 0.00%
Director Direct
1765 P.M. Guazon Street 0
Paco, Manila 1007 Indirect
Comumon ANTONIO D. ROBLES 1 Filipino -
Director Direct
Odyssey St., Acropelis Green Subd. 0
Libis, Quezon City Indirect
Common ORESTES R. SANTOS l Filipino -
Director Direct
Odyssey St., Acropolis o
Quezon City Indirect




Common JOSE FERDINAND R. GUIANG 1 Filipino
Independent Director Direct
#71 K-6 St., East Kamias Road 0
Quezon City Indirect

Common OSMUNDO C. DE GUZMAN, JR. 1 Filipino
Independent Director Direct
43 Walnut St. 0
New Marikina Subd. [ndirect
San Roque, Marikina City

Common DAVID M, DELLA CRUZ 0 Filipino
Executive Vice President, CFO, and Direct
Chief Risk Officer 0
31 La Naval Street Indirect
Remmanville Subdivision
Better Living, Parafaque

Common ATTY. PATRICIA A. O. BUNYE 0 Filipinc
Corporate Secretary Direct
One Orion 0
11" Avenue cor. University Parkway Indirect
Bonifacio Global City 1634
Metro Manila

Comimon ATTY. CRYSTAL I PRADO 0 Filipino
Assistant Corporate Secretary Direct
N409, Phase 4, El Pueblo One 0
Condominium, King Christian St. Indirect
Kingspoint Subd., Novaliches
Quezon City, Philippines

Comumon ATTY. PANCHO G. UMALI 0 Filipino
Assistant Corporate Secretary Direct
One Orion 0
11™ Avenue cor. University Parkway Indirect
Bonifacio Global City 1634
Metro Manila

Common JEREMIAH T. PAMPOLINA 0 Filipino
Compliance Officer Direct
67C J.P. Rizal Street, Project 4 g
Quezon City Indirect

Common ACE FRANZIZ D. CUNTAPAY 0 Filipino
Internal Auditor and Data Protection Direct
Officer 0
Unit 3020, GA Tower 2, EDSA Indirect

Mandaluyong City



MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS
o Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (as of 31 March 2019)

Amount of Ownership Percent

of Class as Director & Officers Percent of class

Title of class Name of Beneficial Owner

-

Common DIRECTORS & EXECUTIVE 1,888,999 0.02%
OFFICERS

Changes in Control

As previously disclosed, SLRDI purchased the Registrant’s shares owned by
Farmix Fertilizers Corp., John Andreas Djoewardi and Juanita Tan, who initiated a
derivative suit, pursuant to the Judgment dated 17 April 2006 approving the Compromise
Agreement dated 10 February 2006. Based on the Compromise Agreement dated 10
February 2006, SLRDI has agreed to buy, and Farmix Fertilizers Corp., John Andreas
Djoewardi and Juanita Tan have agreed to sell, in cash, all of the latter’s shares, rights,
interests, and participation in and to the Registrant as stipulated in the Appraisal
Certificate jointly signed and executed by the parties simultaneously with the execution of
the Compromise Agreement dated 10 February 2006.

Moreover, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”} approved the
increase in the Registrant’s Authorized Capital Stock in the amount of Fourteen Billion
Pesos (P14,000,000,000.00). In this regard, pursuant to the resolutions passed by the
Registrant’s Board on 15 June 2007 and resolutions passed by the Registrant’s
Stockholders on 16 July 2007, as fully disclosed to the SEC and the Philippine Stock
Exchange, Inc. (“PSE”), SLRDI subscribed to Ten Billion Pesos (P10,000,000,000.00) of
the said increase in Authorized Capital Stock.

The said subscription by SLRDI was under the following terms and conditions: (a)
subscription shall be at par value; (b) payment of subscription shall be by way of transfer
of assets; and (c) the value of the assets to be transferred by SLRDI to the Registrant in
payment of the subscription should be acceptable to the Registrant’s Board and, in any
event, shall be subject to a reasonable discount on the market. In the meeting held on 16
August 2010 which was previously disclosed, the Registrant’s Board of Directors
approved the following matters in relation to SLRDI’s subscription, subject to the
approval of the SEC: (a) removal of the three (3) lots covered by TCT Nos. 1002784,
1002748 and 196218 from the properties to be assigned, transferred and conveyed by
SLRDI to the Registrant as payment for the subscription; (b) correction of the amounts of
loans for which some of the SLRDI properties are used as collateral (“Loan Amounts™);
and (c) treatment of the excess of the aggregate fair market value of the SLRDI properties
over the shares to be issued by the Registrant to SLRDI, after deducting the Loan
Amounts: (i) as additional paid in capital of the Registrant to the extent of Three Hundred
Million Pesos (P300,000,000.00), and (i1} with the balance of such excess to be treated as
a discount.

By virtue of the foregoing transactions, SLRDI directly and beneficially owned
07.22% of voting securities in the Registrant.

To settle the intercompany advances, SLRDI and the Parent Company entered into
a Deed of Assignment on 08 July 2014 (“Deed of Assignment”) rescinding the assignment
of “Saddle and Clubs Leisure Park” and agreed to convey 3,000,000,000 shares out of
SLRDTI’s shareholdings in the Registrant in two tranches as follows:

Tranche 1 —2,250,000,000 shares at P.40 per share to be transferred within 30 days
from the signing of the Deed of Assignment



Tranche 2 — 750,000,000 shares at P1.20 per share to be transferred within one
year from the date of the Deed of Assignment, or when the Registrant accumulates
more than P901,107,601.00 in Unrestricted Retained Earnings, whichever is earlier

On 17 September 2014, the Registrant successfully completed Tranche | involving
the assignment of Two Billion Two Hundred Fifty Million (2,250,000,000) shares from
SLRDI to the Registrant.

On 27 December 2018, pursuant to the Deed of Assignment, SLRDI and the
Registrant executed the Second tranche in the Deed of Assignment. The Registrant
acquired Seven Hundred Fifty Million (750,000,000) treasury shares at the price of P1.20
per share to cover the settlement of the advances in thc amount of Ninc Hundred Million
Pesos (PhP900,000,000.00) made by the Registrant to SLRDI.

Please note that, as of 31 March 2019, SLRDI directly and beneficially owns Six
Billion Seven Hundred One Million Five Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty Seven

(6,701,005,767) shares, representing 81.75% of the voting securities in the Registrant.

Voting Trust Holders

The Registrant is not a party to any voting trust. No shareholder of the Registrant
holds more than 5% of the outstanding capital stock of the Registrant through a voting
trust or other similar agreements.

Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Directors

VICENTE R. SANTOS Chairman
EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES President
MARIZA R. SANTOS-TAN Treasurer
AURORA D. ROBLES Assistant Treasurer
ANTONIO D. ROBLES Director
ORESTES R. SANTOS Director

SIMEON S. CUA Director

JOSE FERDINAND R. GUIANG Independent Director
OSMUNDO DE GUZMAN, JR.  Independent Director

Executive/Corporate Officers

VICENTE R. SANTOS Chairman

EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES President

DAVID M. DELA CRUZ Executive Vice-President, Chief Financial Officer,
and Chief Risk Officer

MARIZA SANTOS-TAN Treasurer

AURORA D. ROBLES Assistant Treasurer

ACE FRANZIZ D. CUNTAPAY  Internal Auditor and Data Protection Officer
JEREMIAH T. PAMPOLINA Compliance Officer

PATRICIA A. O. BUNYE Corporate Secretary
PANCHO G. UMALI Assistant Corporate Secretary
CRYSTALI. PRADO Assistant Corporate Secretary



To the Registrant’s knowledge, there 1s no substantial interest, direct or indirect, by
security holdings or otherwise, of each of the foregoing persons in any matter to be acted
upon. The Certifications executed by the Board of Directors and Officers stating that they do
not work in the Philippine government are attached.

On 14 May 2019, Mr. Exequiel D. Robles and Ms. Mariza Santos-Tan, stockholders
of the Registrant, nominated Messrs. Jose Ferdinand R. Guiang and Osmundo C. De
Guzman, Jr., respectively, as Independent Directors of the Registrant for the year 2019-2020
pursuant to Section 2.01 of Article II of the amended By-laws of the Registrant, to wit:

“Section 2.01. xxx

{d) Nomination Process for Independent Directors - Any
stockholder of record of the Corporation who may nominate any qualified
individual as an Independent Director of the Corporation by submitting a
signed nomination form. The nomination shall be accepted and conformed
to by the nominated candidate, and submitted to the Nomination Committee
of the Corporation not later than forty-five (45) days before the date of the
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

(e) Screening Process - The Nomination Committee shall pre-
screen the qualifications of each nominee and come up with the Final List
of Candidates, which shall contain all relevant information pertaining to the
nominated candidate, including the identity of the stockholder(s) who
nominated the said candidate. The Final List of candidates shall be
submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission in any report
required by the Securities Regulation Code and its implementing rules and
regulations, including, but not limited to, the Information Statement and
Proxy Statement.

() Restrictions on Nominations — After the Final List of
Candidates shall have been prepared by the Nomination Committee no
other nomination shall be entertained. Neither shall a nomination for
Independent Directors be entertained or allowed on the floor during the
annual meeting of stockholders.”

In compliance with the Registrant’s By-Laws, the Registrant’s Corporate Governance
Comumittee, which performs the functions of the Nomination Committee, has pre-screened
the qualifications of the nominees and included them in the Final List of Candidates. Mr.
Exequiel D. Robles i1s not related by affinity, consanguinity, contract or agreement to Mr.
Jose Ferdinand R. Guiang; and Ms. Mariza Santos-Tan is also not related by affinity,
consanguinity, contract or agreement to Mr. Osmundo C. De Guzman, Jr. The Certifications
on Qualifications and Disqualifications executed by Messrs. Guiang and De Guzman are
attached.

The members of the Audit Committee are the following:
Osmundo C. De Guzman, Jr. - Chairman

Vicente R. Santos
Jose Ferdinand R. Guiang
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The members of the Corporate Governance Committee are the following:
Jose Ferdinand R. Guiang — Chairman
Osmundo C. De Guzman, Jr.

Vicente R. Santos

The following persons are nominees for election as directors for the year 2019-

2020
Nominees Regular/Independent Director

VICENTE R. SANTOS Regular
EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES Regular
MARIZA R. SANTOS-TAN Regular
AURORA D. ROBLES Regular
ANTONIO D. ROBLES Regular
ORESTES R. SANTOS o L Regular
SIMEON S. CUA Regular
JOSE FERDINAND R. GUIANG Independent
OSMUNDO DE GUZMAN, JR. Independent

RESUME OF DIRECTORS/EXECUTIVE OFFICERS [COVERING THE PAST
FIVE (5) YEARS)]

VICENTE R. SANTOS — Chairman

Term of Office One (1) year (2018-2019)

Address Evangelista St., Brgy. Santolan, Pasig City

Age 62

Citizenship Filipino

Positions Held Executive Vice President, Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc.;

EVP, Valley View Realty Dev't Corp.; EVP, RS Maintenance &
Services Corp.; EVP, Sta. Lucia East Cinema Corp.; EVP, Sta.
Lucia Waterworks Corp.; EVP Rob-San East Trading Corp.; EVP,
Sta. East Commercial Corp.; EVP, RS Night Hawk Security &
Investigation Agency, EVP, Sta. Lucia East Bowling Center, Inc.;
EVP, Sta. Lucia East Department Store, Inc.; President, Acropolis
North; Corporate Secretary, Lakewood Cabanatuan; Chairman,
Orchard Golf & Country Club
Directorships held ~ Orchard Golf & Country Club; Eagle Ridge Golf & Country Club;

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.

EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES — President/Director

Term of Office One (1) year (2018-2019)

Address F. Pasco Avenue, Dumandan Compound, Santolan, Pasig City

Age 64

Citizenship Filipino

Positions Held President and General Manager, Sta. Lucia Realty & Development,

Inc.; President, Sta. Lucia East Cinema Corporation; President, Sta.
Lucia East Commercial Corporation; President, Sta. Lucia East
Bowling Center, Inc.; President, Sta. Lucia East Department Store;

9




Directorships Held

President, Valley View Realty and Development Corporation;
President, RS Maintenance & Services, Inc.; President, Rob-San
East Trading Corporation; President, RS Night Hawk Security &
Investigation Agency

Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc., Sta. Lucia East Cinema
Corporation, Sta. Lucta Waterworks Corporation, Sta. Lucia East
Commercial Corporation, Sta. Lucia East Department Store, Sta.
Lucia East Bowling Center, Inc., Valley View Realty Development
Corporation, RS Maintenance & Services, Inc.

MARIZA R. SANTOS-TAN — Treasurer

Term of Office
Address

Age
Citizenship
Positions Held

Directorships Held

One (1) year (2018-2019)

G/F, State Center 11, Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City

61

Filipino

Vice President for Sales, Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc.;
Vice President, Valley View Realty Development, Inc.; Corporate
Secretary, RS Maintenance & Services Corporation; Corporate
Secretary, Sta. Lucia East Cinema Corporation, Corporate
Secretary, Sta. Lucia Waterworks Corporation; Corporate Secretary,
Rob-San East Trading Corporation; Corporate Secretary, Sta. Lucia
East Commercial Corporation; Corporate Secretary, RS Night
Hawk Security & Investigation Agency; Corporate Secretary, Sta.
Lucia East Bowling Center, Inc.; Corporate Secretary, Sta. Lucia
East Department Store, Inc.; President, Royale Tagaytay Golf &
Country Club; Assistant Corporate Secretary, Alta Vista Golf &
Country Club; Treasurer, Manila Jockey Club; Corporate Secretary,
Worlds of Fun; Corporate Secretary, Eagle Ridge Golf & Country
Club

Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc., Valley View Realty
Development, Inc., Orchard Golf & Country Club, Alta Vista Golf
& Country Club, Manila Jockey Club, True Value Workshop,
Consolidated Insurance Company, Unioil Resources Holdings, Inc.;
EBEDEV, Inc.

AURORA D. ROBLES — Assistant Treasurer/Director

Term of Office
Address

Age
Citizenship
Positions Held

Directorships Held

One (1) year (2018-2019)

The Alexandra Condominiums, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City

52

Filipino

Purchasing Manager, Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc.;
Stockholder, Valley View Realty Dev’t Corp.; Stockholder, RS
Maintenance & Services Corp.; Chief Administrative, Sta. Lucia
East Cinema Corp.; Chief Administrative, Sta. Lucia Waterworks
Corp.; Chief Administrative, Rob-San East Trading Corp.;
Stockholder, Sta. East Commercial Corp.; Stockholder, RS Night
Hawk Security & Investigation Agency

CICI General Insurance Corp.
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SIMEON S. CUA

Term of Office
Address

Age
Citizenship
Positions Held

Directorships held

— Director

One (1) year (2018-2019)

1765 P.M. Guazon St., Paco Manila 1007

61

Filipino

President and CEO, Philippine Racing Club, Inc.; President,
Cualoping Securities, Inc.

Philippine Racing Club, Inc., Cualoping Securities, Inc.

ANTONIO D. ROBLES — Director

Term of Office
Address

Age
Citizenship
Positions Held

Directorships held

One (1) year (2018-2019)

Odyssey, Acropolis, Quezon City

55

Filipino

Stockholder, Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc.; Stockholder,
Valley View Realty Dev’t Corp.; Stockholder, RS Maintenance &
Services Corp.; Treasurer, Orchard Marketing Corporation;
Stockholder, Sta. Lucia East Commercial Corp.; Stockholder, RS
Night Hawk Security & Investigation Agency; Stockholder, Exan
Builders Corp.; Owner, Figaro Coffee; Owner, Cabalen

Exan Builders Corp.

ORESTES R. SANTOS - Director

Term of Office
Address

Age
Citizenship
Positions Held

Directorships held

One (1) year (2018-2019)

Odyssey St., Acropolis, Quezon City

58

Filipino

Project Manager, Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc.; President,
RS Superbatch, Inc.

City Chain Realty

JOSE FERDINAND R. GUIANG — Independent Director

Term of office
Address

Age
Citizenship
Positions Held

One (1) year (2018-2019)

Unit 4 Comhill Villas, Kaimito Ave. Town & Country Exec. Vill.,
Antipolo

54

Filipino

President, Pharmazel Incorporated; Member, Filipino Drug
Association, Inc.; Area Sales Supervisor, Elin Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

OSMUNDO C. DE GUZMAN, JR. — Independent Directer

Term of office
Address

Age
Citizenship
Positions Held

One (1) year (2018-2019)

43 Walnut St. New Marikina Subd., San Roque, Marikina City
64

Filipino

Treasurer, Sunflower Circle Corp.



DAVID M. DE LA CRUZ - Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief

Term of Office
Address

Age
Citizenship
Positions Held

Risk Officer

One (1) year (2018-2019)

#31, La Naval Street Remmanville Subdivision Better Living,
Paranfiaque City

54

Filipino

VP and CFO — Atlas Consolidated Mining and Development Corp.;
SAVP - Corporate Credit Risk Management - BDO; President —
AC&D Corporate Partners; President / CFO — Geograce Resources
Phils. Inc.; Vice President / Head of Sales Amsteel Securities
Philippines Inc; Senior Manager — Investment Banking Deutsche
Morgan Grenfell Hong Kong Limited; Acting General Manager &
Marketing Head — UBP Securities / Manager - Investment Banking
- UBP Capital Corporation; Senior Auditor, SGV & Co.

ATTY. PATRICIA A. O. BUNYE - Corporate Secretary

Term of Office
Address

Age

Citizenship
Positions Held

Directorships Held

One (1) year (2018-2019)

9™ 10" 11™ & 12" Floors, One Orion, 11" Avenue cor. University
Parkway, Bonifacio Global City, Metro Manila

50

Filipino

Senior Partner, Cruz Marcelo & Tenefrancia; Past President,
Licensing Executives Society International; Founding President,
Diwata-Women 1n Resource Development, Inc.; Past President,
Integrated Bar of the Philippines (Pasay, Parafiaque, Las Pifias &
Muntinlupa Chapter), Corporate Secretary, PTFC Redevelopment
Corporation; Corporate Secretary, Lawphil Investments, Inc.;
President, CVCLAW Center Condominium Corporation.
Baskerville Trading Corporation; Belmont Equities, Inc,;
DineEquity Philippines Holdings, Inc.; Lawphil Investments, Inc.;
Mianstal Holdings, Inc.; Quaestor Holdings, Inc.; Westminster
Trading Corporation; Winchester Trading Corporation; Windermere
Marketing  Corporation, CVCLAW  Center Condominium
Corporation; TDF Holdings, Inc.; AGP Group Holdings Pte. Ltd.

ATTY. CRYSTAL 1. PRADO — Assistant Corporate Secretary

Term of Office
Address

Age
Citizenship
Positions Held

One (1) year (2018-2019)

N409, Phase 4, El Pueblo One Condominium, King Christian St.,
Kingspoint Subd., Novaliches, Quezon City

37

Filipino

Legal Counsel, Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.; College Instructor, St.
Joseph’s College of Quezon City, Legal Officer/Executive
Assistant/Marketing Head, Principalia Management and Personnel
Consultants, Inc.; Court Interpreter III, Supreme Court, English
Teacher, Call 'n Talk; English Teacher, Top English Center;
English Teacher, CNN Language Center; English



ATTY. PANCHO G. UMALI - Assistant Corporate Secretary

Term of Office
Address

Age

Citizenship
Positions Held

Directorships Held

One (1? year (2018-2019)
1

o 10% 11" & 12" Floors, One Orion, 11™ Avenue cor. University
Parkway, Bonifacio Global City, Metro Manila

42

Filipino

Partner, Cruz Marcelo & Tenefrancia; First Vice President, The
Law Foundation of Makati, Inc.; Treasurer, Taguig Lawyers
League; Assistant Corporate Secretary, Lawphil Investments, Inc.;
Assistant Corporate Secretary, PTFC Redevelopment Corporation;
Corporate Secretary, Philippine Equity Partners, Inc.; Assistant
Corporate Secretary, CVCLAW Center Condominium Corporation;
Corporate Secretary, Haw Par Tiger Balm (Philippines), Inc.

Catania Property Holdings, Inc.; China Systems Technology
Corporation; Cosmo System Corporation; Junabejo Trading
Corporation; Junabejo Food Corporation; Loscano Holdings, Inc.;
Haw Par Tiger Balm (Philippines), Inc.; [AMSPA, Inc.; Sun East
Asia Corporation; Sincere Facade Philippines, Inc.; Sincere Facade
Innovations, Inc.; Synchrogenix Philippines, Inc.; Union Earn
Holdings, Inc.; Wooloomooloo Steakhouse Philippines, Inc.

ACE FRANZIZ CUNTAPAY - Internal Auditor and Data Protection Officer

Term of Office
Address

Age
Citizenship
Positions Held

One (1) year (2018-2019)

Unit 3020, GA Tower 2, EDSA, Mandaluyong City
25

Filipino

N/A

JEREMIAH T. PAMPOLINA - Compliance Officer

Term of Office
Address

Age
Citizenship
Positions Held

One (1) year (2018-2019)

67C J.P. Rizal Street, Project 4, Quezon City
42

Filipino

N/A

The entire workforce of the Registrant is considered significant as each of its
employees has his own responsibilities which are supposed to achieve the Registrant’s

goals and objectives.

Family Relationships

EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES, ANTONIO D. ROBLES, and AURORA D. ROBLES
are siblings and they are first cousins with VICENTE R. SANTOS, MARIZA R.
SANTOS-TAN, and ORESTES R. SANTOS, who are likewise siblings.
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Legal Proceedings [covering the past five (5) years]
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Other than in the above-mentioned cases, the Registrant, its directors, officers or
affiliates, any owner of record of more than 10% of its securities, or any associate of any
such director, officer or affiliate, or security holder are not, to the knowledge of the
Registrant, parties to any material legal proceeding during the past five (5) years up to
date, including and/or involving any bankruptcy petition, conviction by final judgment,
subject of an order, judgment or decree, and violation of a Securities or Commodities Law.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

As previously disclosed, SLRDI entered into a Property-for-Equity Swap with the
Registrant in exchange for 10,000,000,000 shares of the latter. As of 31 December 2018,
the Corporation has a total of 2,600,000 treasury shares which arose from the settlement of
intercompany advances between the Registrant and SLRDI.

The Registrant's President, EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES, is the President and General
Manager of SLRDI. The Registrant’s directors, ANTONIO D. ROBLES, a stockholder of
SLRDI, and AURORA D. ROBLES, the Purchasing Manager of SLRDI, are siblings of
EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES who are all first cousins of MARIZA R. SANTOS-TAN, the
Vice-President for Sales of SLRDI, VICENTE R. SANTOS, the Executive Vice-President
of SLRDI, and ORESTES R. SANTOS, Project Manager of SLRDI, who, in turn, are
siblings.
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A director, president and chief executive officer of Philippine Racing Club Inc. and
president of Cualoping Securities Corporation, namely Simeon S. Cua is also a director of
the Registrant.

The Registrant and SLRDI plan to enter into a series of Joint Venture Agreements.
Each venture may take a share of the output from the assets and each bears an agreed share
of the expenses incurred. These joint ventures do not involve the establishment of a
corporation, partnership or other entity, or a financial structure that is separate from the
venturers themselves. Each venture has control over its share of future economic benefits
through its share of the jointly controlled asset. The proposed JVAs include the following:

I. The proposed development of a project in Cebu, with a total land area of
twelve thousand seven hundred ninety two square meters (12,792 sq.m.);

2. The proposed development of a project in Rizal, with a total land area of forty
thousand two hundred twenty eight square meters (40,228 sq.m.);

3. The proposed development of a project in Tagaytay, with an area of twenty
nine thousand six hundred forty square meters (29,640 sq.m.);

4. The proposed development of a project in Lapu-Lapu City with an area of six
thousand nine hundred twenty square meters (6,920 sq.m.); and

5. The proposed development of a project in Batangas, with an area of one
hundred thousand square meters (100,000 sq.m.).

SLRDI owns 81.75% of the voting sccurities of the Registrant and is the only
parent company of the Registrant.

Independent Public A¢countant

As previously disclosed to the SEC and to the PSE, on 21 June 2018, at the Annual
Stockholders® Meeting, the stockholders agreed to retain Sycip Gorres Velayo &
Company (“SGV & Co.”) as the external auditor of the Registrant for the year 2018-2019.

The Registrant will comply with Rule 68 (3)(b)(iv) of the SRC Implementing
Rules, which pertinently provides:

“tv.  The external auditors shall be rotated every after five (5) vears of
engagement. In case of a firm, the signing partner shall be rotated
every after said period. The reckoning date for such rotation shall
commence in year 2002."

Compensation of Directors and Officers

The Directors and Officers do not receive any form of compensation except, in the
case of Directors, for a per diem of Fifteen Thousand Pesos (P15,000.00) per meeting of
the Board of Directors.

Apart from the per diem in the amount of Fifteen Thousand Pesos (P15,000.00),

there are no standard arrangements or other arrangements between the Registrant and the
directors and executive officers.
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Executive Officers
Projected Compensation
2019
(in Thousands)

(a) Name and Principal Position (b) Year (¢) Salary  (d) Bonus  (e) Other Annual Compensation
L. Executive Officers Estimated Estimated Estimated
Vicente R. Santos — Chairman 2019 XXX AXX XXX
Exequiel D. Robles — President/Director 2019 XXX XXX XXX
David M. Dela Cruz — Executive Vice President 2019 XXX XXX XXX
Mariza Santos-Tan — Treasurer/Director 2019 XXX XXX XXX
Aurora D. Robles — Assistant Treasurer/Director 2019 XXX KXX KXX
Patricia A. O. Bunye — Corporate Secretary 2019 KXX KXX XXX
Total for Above 7.500 2,475 XXX
II. CEO and Four Most Highly
Compensated Executive Officers 7,500 2,475 XXX
ITI. All Other Officers as a Group
Unnamed 2,500 500 XXX

Actual Compensation
2018
(in Thousands)

{a) Name and Principal Position (b) Year  (c¢) Salary (d) Bonus {e) Other Annual Compensation
L. Executive Officers Estimated Estimated Estimated
Vicente R. Santos — Chairman 2018 AXX XXX XXX
Exequiel I. Robles — President/Director 2018 XXX XXX XXX
David M. Dela Cruz — Executive Vice President 2018 XXX XXX XXX
Mariza Santos-Tan ~ Treasurer/Director 2018 XXX XXX XXX
Aurora D. Robles — Assistant Treasurer/Director 2018 XXX XXX XXX
Patricia A. O. Bunye — Corporate Secretary 2018 XXX XXX XXX
Total for Above 7,450 2,580 XXX
IL. CEO and Four Most Highly
Compensated Executive Officers 7,450 2,580 XXX
I All Other Officers as a Group
Unnamed 2,130 365 XXX

Actual Compensation
2017
(in Thousands)

(a) Name and Principal Position (b) Year  {c¢) Salary (d) Bonus (e) Other Annual Compensation

L Executive Officers
Vicente R. Santos — Chairman 2017 XXX XXX XXX
Exequiel D. Robles — President/Director 2017 XXX XXX XXX
David M. Dela Cruz — Executive Vice President 2017 XXX XXX XXX
Mariza Santos-Tan — Treasurer/Director 2017 XXX XXX KXX
Aurora D. Robles — Assistant Treasurer/Director 2017 AXX XXX XXX
Patricia A. O. Bunye — Corporate Secretary 2017 XXX XXX XXX
Total for Above 7,450 2.580 XXX

I1. CEQO and Four Most Highly

Compensated Executive Officers 7.450 2,580 XXX
I1I. All Other Officers as a Group
Unnamed 2,130 365 XXX
Actual Compensation
2016
{in Thousands)
(a) Name and Principal Position (b) Year (c) Salary  (d) Bonus (e} Other Annual Compensation

I. Executive Officers
Vicente R. Santos — Chatrman 2016 XXX XXX XXX
Exequiel D. Robles — President/Director 2016 XXX XXX XXX
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David M. Dela Cruz — Executive Vice President 2016 . 0. 9.4 XXX XXX
Mariza Santos-Tan — Treasurer/Director 2016 XXX XXX XXX
Aurora D. Robles - Assistant Treasurer/Director 2016 KXX AXX XXX
Patricia A. O. Bunye — Corporate Secretary 2016 XXX KXX XXX
Total for Above 7,450 2,580 XXX

II. CEO and Four Most Highly
Compensated Executive Officers 7.4350 2,580 XXX

IIX. All Other Officers as a Group
Unnamed 2,130 365 XXX

Annnal Compensation
2015
(in Thousands)
(a) Name and Principal Position (b) Year  (¢) Salary  (d) Bonus (e) Other Annual Compensation

L. Executive Officers
Vicente R. Santos — Chairman 2015 XXX XXX XXX
Exequiel D. Robles — President/Director 2015 XXX XXX XXX
David M. Dela Cruz’ — Executive Vice President 2015 XXX XXX XXX
Mariza Santos-Tan — Treasurer/Director 2015 XXX XXX XXX
Aurora D, Robles — Assistant Treasurer/Director 2015 XXX KXX XXX
Patricia A. O, Bunye — Corporate Secretary 2016 XXX XXX XXX
Total for Above 7.450 2,580 XXX

IL. CEO and Four Most Highly

Compensated Executive Officers 7,450 2.475 XXX
II1. All Other Officers as a Group
Unnamed 2,130 365 XXX

Standard Arrangements

Other than payment of reasonable per diem in the amount of Fifteen Thousand
Pesos (P15,000.00), there are no standard arrangements pursuant to which directors of the
Registrant are compensated, directly or indirectly, for any services provided as a director
for the last completed fiscal year and the ensuing year.

Other Arrangements
There are no other arrangements pursuant to which any director of the Registrant
was compensated, or is to be compensated, directly or indirectly, during the Registrant’s

last completed year, and the ensuing year, for any service provided as a director.

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control
Arrangement

There are no special employment contracts between the Registrant and the named
executive officers. There is no compensatory plan or arrangement with respect to a named
executive officer.

Warrants and Options Qutstanding

There are no outstanding warrants or options held by the Registrant’s CEO, the
named executive officers, and all officers and directors as a group.

®  Mr. David M. Dela Cruz has been appointed as Executive Vice President of the Registrant effective

November 2012.

24



ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

As previously disclosed to the SEC and to the PSE, at the Special Meeting of the
Board of Directors held on 15 June 2007 and at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held
on 16 July 2007, the Board of Directors and the Stockholders of the Registrant
authorized, among others, the increase in the Authorized Capital Stock of the Registrant
from Two Billion Pesos (PhP2,000,000,000.00) to Sixteen Billion Pesos
(PhP16,000,000,000.00). The securities authorized to be 1ssued are common shares with
the same dividend, voting and preemption rights as the existing shares. There are no
provisions in its Articles of lncorporation or By-Laws that would delay, defer or prevent
a change in the control of the Registrant.

In connection with the increase in the Authorized Capital Stock in the amount of
Fourteen Billion Pesos (PhP14,000,000,000.00), the Board approved the subscription by
SLRDI, one of the principal shareholders of the Registrant, of up to the maximum of Ten
Billion Pesos (PhP10,000,000,000.00), under the following terms and conditions:

1. Subscription shall be at par value;

2. Payment of subscription shall be by way of transfer of assets;
and

3. The value of the assets to be transferred by SLRDI to the

Registrant in payment of the subscription should be acceptable
to the Registrant’s Board and, in any event, shall be subject to
a reasonable discount on the market value.

On 20 May 2008, the SEC approved the increase in the Registrant’s authorized
capital stock to Sixteen Billion Pesos (PhP16,000,000,000.00). The total number of issued
and outstanding shares of the Registrant after the increase is Ten Billion Seven Hundred
Ninety Six Million Four Hundred Fifty Thousand (10,796,450,000), as a result of the
subscription of SLRDI, one of the principal shareholders of the Registrant, to Ten Billion
Pesos (PhP10,000,000,000.00) out of the increase in the Registrant’s authorized capital
stock of Fourteen Billion Pesos (PhP [4,000,000,000.00) (the “Swap Shares™).

In the meeting held on 16 August 2010 which was previously disclosed, the
Registrant’s Board of Directors approved the following matters in relation to SLRDI’s
subscription, subject to the approval of SEC: (a) removal of the three (3) lots covered by
TCT Nos. 1002784, 1002748 and 196218 from the properties to be assigned, transferred
and conveyed by SLRDI to the Registrant as payment for the subscription; (b) correction
of the Loan Amounts; and (c¢) treatment of the excess of the aggregate fair market value of
the SLRDI properties over the shares to be issued by the Registrant to SLRDI, after
deducting the Loan Amounts: (1) as additional patd in capital of the Registrant to the
extent of Three Hundred Million Pesos (PhP300,000,000.00); and (ii) with the balance of
such excess to be treated as a discount.

On 26 October 2010, a listing application for the Swap Shares was filed with the
PSE. On 12 January 2011, the Board of Directors of PSE approved the said listing
application, and set the listing of the Swap Shares on 07 March 201 1. In compliance with
the 180-day lock-up requirement of the PSE, the Registrant submitted a Lock-up
Agreement executed on 18 February 2011 among the Registrant, SLRDI and Philippine
Commercial Capital, Inc.
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Following the listing of the Swap Shares and the release of the same from escrow,
the Registrant intends to undertake a Placing and Subscription Transaction (“PST”) to
raise funds for its various projects. Under the transaction, a portion of the Swap Shares
will be sold after which SLRDI will subscribe to new common shares of the Registrant not
to exceed the number of shares offered in the placing transaction at a subscription price
equivalent to the placing price.

In its Special Meeting held on 18 April 2013, the Board of Directors approved the
sale of up to Three Billion (3,000,000,000) of its shares of stock through a follow-on
offering, and list the same with the PSE. The said follow-on offering may be done through
a PST, as described above, or through a direct public offering of shares, as may
subsequently be determined by the Board of Directors.

The nghts of existing security holders will not be affected by the PST consideting
that common shares will be offered and sold under the PST. There are no provisions in its
Articles of Incorporation or By-Laws of the Registrant that would delay, defer or prevent a
change in the control of the Registrant.

The consideration to be received by the Registrant under the PST will be in the
form of cash and which will be used to fund the expansion of the business of the
Registrant.

On 18 April 2013, the Board of Directors also authorized, subject to the approval
by the Registrant’s sharcholders, the SEC and PSE, the grant of up to One Hundred
Million (100,000,000) shares of stock as stock options for the employees and consultants
of the Registrant, and the listing thereof with the PSE. The stock option plan shall also be
subject to terms and conditions as may be subsequently approved by the Registrant’s
Board.

Also, the Board of Directors authorized the Registrant to borrow money in the
form of direct loan — onshore or offshore US$ - denominated bonds, in the amount of up to
Six Billion Pesos (PhP6,000,000,000.00), subject the approval of the Registrant’s
shareholders.

The proceeds of the follow-on offer and issuance of bonds will be used for the
expansion of the business of the Registrant. It i1s expected that the foregoing shall improve
the financial standing of the Registrant and benefit the existing security holders of the
Registrant.

On 21 June 2013, the shareholders of the Registrant, subject to compliance with
applicable legal requirements and disclosure at the appropriate time, authorized and
empowered the Board of Directors to purchase up to One Billion Pesos
(P1,000,000,000.00) worth of outstanding shares of the Registrant under such terms and
conditions that the Board of Directors shall deem required and necessary.

On 01 Aprl 2014, the Board of Directors, subject to the ratification by the
Registrant’s shareholders, approved resolutions authorizing the purchase of up to One
Billion Pesos (P1,000,000,000.00) worth of outstanding shares of the Registrant.
Management would like to have the flexibility to reacquire shares if it feels that the market
price does not reflect the underlying value of the Issuer.

In July 2014, to settle the intercompany advances, SLRDI and the Registrant
entered into a Deed of Assignment on 08 July 2014 (“Deed of Assignment”) rescinding
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the assignment of “Saddle and Clubs Leisure Park™ and agreed to convey Three Billion
(3,000,000,000) shares out of SLRDI’s shareholdings in the Registrant in two tranches as
follows:

Tranche 1 — 2,250,000,000 shares at P0.40 per share to be transferred within 30
days from the signing of the Deed of Assignment

Tranche 2 — 750,000,000 shares at P1.20 per share to be transferred within one
year from the date of the Deed of Assignment, or when the Registrant accumulates
more than P901,107,601.00 in Unrestricted Retained Earnings, whichever is earlier

In September 2014, the Registrant successfully completed Tranche 1 involving the
assignment of Two Billion Two Hundred Fifty Million (2,250,000,000) shares from
SLRDI to the Registrant.

On 22 December 2015, the Registrant sold Four Hundred Million (400,000,000)
shares which increase the outstanding shares to Eight Billion Nine Hundred Forty Six
Million Four Hundred Fifty Thousand (8,946,450,000) shares.

Also, on 22 December 2015, the Group issued a total of Four Million Pesos
(PhP4,000,000.00) Unsecured Fixed-rated Peso bonds, broken down into Two Million
Pesos (PhP2,000,000.00) Series A Bonds due 2018 at a fixed rate equivalent to 6.7284%
p.a. and a Two Million Pesos (PhP2,000,000.00) Series B Bonds due 2021 at a fixed rate
equivalent to 6.7150% p.a. The Bonds have been rated by the Credit Rating and Investors
Services Philippines Inc. on 16 October 2015. The bonds shall constitute the direct,
unconditional, and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and shall at all times rank pari passu
and ratably without preference among themselves and among any present and future
unsecured obligations of the Issuer, except for any statufory preference or priority
established under Philippine law.

The net use of proceeds of the bonds are intended to be used by the Group to fully
refinance existing secured loans, for capital expenditure requirements, and/or general
corporate purposes.

The Bonds shall be repaid at par (or 100% of face value), plus any outstanding
interest, on the relevant maturity date of each series or on 22 December 2018 for the Series
A Bonds, on 22 March 2021 for the Series B Bonds, unless the Registrant exercises its
early redemption option for the Series A or Series B Bonds.

Interest on the Bonds shall be payable quarterly in arrears every 22 March, 22
June, 22 September and 22 December of each year, starting on 22 March 2016.

On 27 December 2018, pursuant to the Deed of Assignment, SLRDI and the
Registrant executed the Second tranche in the Deed of Assignment. The Registrant
acquired Seven Hundred Fifty Million (750,000,000) treasury shares at the price of P1.20
per share to cover the settlement of the advances in the amount of Nine Hundred Million
Pesos (PhP900,000,000.00) made by the Registrant to SLRDI.

Among other debt covenants, the Group is required to maintain a maximum of
debt-to-equity ratio of 1.50:1:00, a minimum current ratio of 1.00:1.00 and a minimum
debt service coverage ratio of 1.25. The Group has complied with the debt covenant.
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Debt services coverage ration means the ratio of: (i) EBIDTA to (ii) total debt
service reduced by the amounts raised for refinancing, by reference to the immediately
preceding 12 months of the period review.

Acquisition or Disposition of Property

Acquisition

As previously discussed, SLRDI shall transfer assets to the Registrant in exchange
for the latter’s shares.

As discusscd above, pursuant to the approval of the increase in the Registrant’s
Authorized  Capital Stock in  the amount of Fourteen Billion Pesos
(PhP14,000,000,000.00), and pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Registrant’s Board
on 15 June 2007 and resolutions passed by the Registrant’s Stockholders on 16 July 2007,
as fully disclosed to the SEC and the PSE, SLRDI subscribed to Ten Billion Pesos
(PhP10,000,000,000.00) of the said increase in Authorized Capital Stock. The said
subseription by SLRDI is under the following terms and conditions: (a) subscription shall
be at par value; (b) payment of subscription shall be by way of transfer of assets; and (c)
the value of the assets to be transferred by SLRDI to the Registrant in payment of the
subseription should be acceptable to the Registrant’s Board and, in any event, shall be
subject to a reasonable discount on the market. The Registrant and SLRDI jointly intend to
engage independent and SEC-registered appraisal companies to determine the valuation of
SLRDI assets and the reasonable discount based on fair market value. In the meeting held
on 16 August 2010 which was previously disclosed, the Registrant’s Board of Directors
approved the following matters in relation to SLRDI’s subscription, subject to the
approval of SEC: (a) removal of the three (3) lots covered TCT Nos. 1002784, 1002748
and 196218 from the properties to be assigned, transferred and conveyed by SLRDI to the
Registrant as payment for the subscription; (b) correction of the Loan Amounts; and (c)
treatment of the excess of the aggregate fair market value of the SLRDI properties over the
shares to be 1ssued by the Registrant to SLRDI, after deducting the Loan Amounts: (i) as
additional paid in capital of the Registrant to the extent of Three Hundred Million Pesos
(PhP300,000,000.00); and (i1) with the balance of such excess to be treated as a discount.

SLRDI is one of the principal shareholders of the Registrant. Its principal office is
at the Building II, Sta. Lucia East Grand Mall, Marcos Hi-way cor. Felix Ave., Cainta,
Rizal.

Disposition

As previously disclosed by the Registrant on 04 March 2008, the Board, at its
meeting held on even date, granted the Registrant authority to sell, transfer and convey all
of its rights and interests in its property along Ayala Avenue in Makati City (the “Subject
Properties™), for such amount and under such terms and conditions as may be in the best
interests of the Registrant.

The Subject Properties consist of the following: (a) a parcel of land, with
improvements thereon, located in Makati City, Metro Manila, with an area of One
Thousand Two Hundred square meters (1,200 sq.m.), more or less, covered by TCT No.
206431 issued by the Register of Deeds for Makati City; (b) a parcel of land, with
improvements thereon, located in Makati City, Metro Manila with an area of One
Thousand Two Hundred square meters (1,200 sq.m.), more or less, covered by TCT No.
2006432 issued by the Register of Deeds for Makati City.
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Pursuant to such authority, on 01 Apnl 2008, the Registrant entered into a Contract
to Sell and Buy of even date with Alphaland Corporation (“Alphaland”) for the current
fair market value of the Subject Properties.

In the Contract, the Registrant agreed to sell, transfer and convey all of its rights,
title and interests in and to the Subject Properties to Alphaland, and Alphaland agreed to
purchase, acquire and accept the same from the Registrant, for and in consideration of the
total amount of Eight Hundred Twenty Million Pesos (PhP820,000,000.00), inclusive of
value-added tax, to be remitted in the following manner:

1. Subject to the delivery of various documents, a downpayment in the
total amount of One Ilundred Million Pesos (PhP100,000,000.00) to
be paid and remitted by Alphaland fo the Registrant simultaneously
with the execution of the Contract; and

2. Subject to the delivery of various documents, the balance in the total
amount of  Seven  Hundred Twenty  Million  Pesos
(PhP720,000,000.00), less the amount of creditable withholding tax,
shall be paid and remitted by Alphaland to the Registrant on the date
falling on the sixtieth (60”’) day from the date of the Contract, or on
31 May 2008.

Alphaland is a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the
laws of the Republic of the Philippines, with principal office address at the Alphaland
Southgate Tower, 2258 Chino Roces Avenue corner EDSA, Makati City, and represented
in the foregoing transaction by its President, Mario A. Oreta.

The Registrant is unaware of any material relationship between the Alphaland and
the Registrant or any of the latter’s affiliates, director or officer, or any associate of any

such director or officer.

Yoting Procedures

1. Vote Required for Approval or Election

A majority of the subscribed capital present in person or represented by proxy,
shall be sufficient at a stockholders meeting to constitute a quorum for the election of
directors and for the transaction of any business whatsoever, except in those cases in
which the Corporation Code requires the affirmative vote of a greater portion.

2. Method by which the Votes will be Counted

At each meeting of the stockholders, every stockholder shall be entitled to vote in
person or by proxy, for each share of stock held by him which has voting power upon
the matter in question.

The votes for the election of directors, and, except upon demand by any
stockholder, the votes upon any question before the meeting except for the procedural
questions determined by the Chairman of the meeting, shall be by viva voce or show of
hands.
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The directors of the Registrant shall be elected by plurality vote at the annual
meeting of the stockholders for that year at which a quorum is present. At each election
for directors, every stockholder shall have the right to vote, in person or by proxy, the
number of shares owned by him for as many persons as there are directors to be elected,
or to cumulate his votes by giving one candidate as many votes as the number of such
directors multiplied by the number of his share shall equal, or by distributing such votes
at the same principle among any number of candidates.

If the number of nominees is nine (9) or less, a motion shall be presented to the
body that all votes be cast in favor of all nominees. However, if the minority stockholders
nominate a candidate or if there are more than nine (9) nominees, the votes shall be cast.
The results shall be counted/validated by the Corporate Secretary.

OTHER MATTERS

A. The Minutes of the Annual Stockholders” Meeting held on 21 June 2018 will be
submitted for the approval of the security holders. The minutes reflect the approval
by the stockholders of the following matters:

[. Elected the following as members of the Board of Directors
of the Corporation for the year 2018-2019:

VICENTE R. SANTOS
EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES
ANTONIO D. ROBLES
AURORA D. ROBLES
MARIZA SANTOS-TAN
ORESTES R. SANTOS
SIMEON S. CUA
JOSE FERDINAND R. GUIANG
OSMUNDO C. DE GUZMAN, JR.

2. Messrs. Osmundo C. De Guzman, Jr. and Jose Ferdinand R.
Guiang were elected as independent directors of the
Corporation for the year 2018-2019, pursuant to Rule 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code.

3. Appointed Sycip Gorres & Velayo [SGV & Co.] as the
Corporation’s external auditor for fiscal year 2018-2019.

4 . Ratified all acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors

and Management for the period from 22 June 2017 to 20
June 2018.
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SIGNATURE PAGE
After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that

the information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed
in the City of Taguig on 21 May 2019.

STA. LUCIA LAND, INC.
Registrant

By: on C O

PATRICIA A. O. BUNY
orporate Secretary
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PART IT - MANAGEMENT REPORT
1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please refer to the attached Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the
Registrant and its Subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2018, which were
submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) (Annex “B” hereof).

II. CHANGES IN, AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH, ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On 21 June 2018, at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of the Registrant, its
stockholders agreed to retain Sycip Gorres Velayo & Company (“SGV & Co.”) as the
external auditor of the Registrant for the year 2018-2019. Mr. Michael C. Sabado of SGV
& Co. is In his second year of service as external auditor, in replacement of Ms. Cyril
Jasmin B. Valencia. There are no disagreements with SGV & Co. on any matter of
accounting and financial disclosure.

(a) Audit and Audit-Related Fees

P2,340,000 for 2018,* P1,558,480 for 2017,* and P1,638,560 for 2016 .
"Relates only to audit fees; no other assurance and related services.

The fees hereunder only refer to the fees for the audit of the Registrant’s annual
financial statements or services that are normally provided by the external auditor
in connection with the statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for those
fiscal years. The external auditor of the Registrant does not render other assurance
and related services.

(b) Tax Fees

Not applicable

(c) All Other Fees

Not applicable

(d) Approval Policies and Procedure of the Audit Committee

The Registrant’s Audit Committee has the ultimate authority and responsibility to
evaluate and, where applicable, recommend the replacement of the Registrant’s
independent auditors. Annually, the Audit Committee reviews and recommends to the

Board of Directors the selection of the Registrant’s independent auditors, subject to the
approval of the shareholders.



IIl. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

COMPARISON: YEAR END 2018 VS. YEAR END 2017

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview of Operations

By the Group’s commitment to maintain its soaring position in providing quality and
excellence in real estate development in the market niche, the group was able to hit a
revenue growth of 30% in 2018. Net income after tax increased to P1,065 million in 2018
from P818 million last year. The significant growth was mainly atfributable to the robust
increase in the recognized income from the real estate sales. Boosted by the effective
implementation of its extensive marketing efforts and across the board developments all
over the country, real estate sales grew from P2,108 million in 2017 to P2,428 million in
2018 and rental revenue decreased from P1,026 million in 2017 to P859 million in 2018.

Also, the Group was able to efficiently carry out its strategies for its cost management,
maintaining cost level of 38% of its gross revenue in 2018 as compared to 39% in 2017,
thus increasing its returns.

Revenue

Boosted by the effective implementation of extensive marketing efforts and across the
board developments all over the country, the Group was able to generate gross revenue of
P2.428 million in 2018 from its real estate sales. However, rental income decreased by
P167 million from P1,026 million recognized in 2017 due to reevaluation of lease rates to
be competitive with neighboring malls. During the year, more buyers opted for longer
payment schemes from real estate sales resulting to increase in recognized interest income
totaling to P301 million in 2018 as compared to P160 million in 2017. Revenue from other
sources totaled P444 million in 2018.

Cost and Expense

Total expenses for the year amounted to P2,890 mullion, 13% higher than P2,559 million
in 2017. Cost of sales is P1,513 million and P1,446 million, selling and administrative
expenses is P670 million and P625 million, interest expense is P707 million and P488
million in 2018 and 2017 respectively.

Net [ncome

Net income after tax increased by 30% or P248 million from P818 million in 2017 to
P1,065 million in 2018. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in real
estate sales.

PROJECT AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

As the Group envisions to become the country’s Jeading Real Estate Company not in sheer
size but in ways more meaningful quality projects, quality business plans, grow, returns
and innovation, the Group spent P6,506 million for project and capital expenditures. The
amount is accounted for the continuous development of the Registrant’s existing
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residential and commercial projects and finance newly developed projects. Of the said
amount, P319 million was used in procuring raw lands for new residential and
condominium project developments.

The Group’s total assets increased to P34,778 million in 2018 from P29,807 million in
2017, The 17% increase is due to the significant amount of project and capital
expenditures spent in 2018, thus increasing the real estate inventory by P2,276 mullion.
Also, the increase in other current assets amounting to P2,426 million have significantly
affected the increase in total assets.

Liabilities

Total liabilities reported is P20,262 million in 2018 compared to P15,497 million in 2017.
This is attributable to the availment of long term loans and the issuance of corporate bonds
during 2018. The increase in contract liabilities, previously recognized as customers’
deposit, is due to the increase in projects developed and offered for sale during the year.
This contributed an increase in the amount of P840 million in total liabilities.

Equity
Total stockholders’ equity increased by P214 million in 2018 due to the net income
generated during the year amounting to P1,065 miltion. Also contributing to the increase is

the change in fair value of available for sale financial assets amounting to P107 million.

Key Performance Indicators

31-Deec-18 31-Dec-18

Current Ratio 2.81 2.27
Debt to Equity 1.40 1.08
Interest Coverage Ratio 161.61% 231.94%
Return on Asset 3.06% 2.74%
Return on Equity 7.37% 5.71%

*Notes to Key Performance Indicators:

1. Current Ratio = current assets (cash, receivables, inventories, due from
affifiates, prepaid commissions, and other current asset) over current liabilities
(accounts payable, customer deposit, current portion of bank loans, income tax
payable, and deferred tax liabilities).

Debt to Equity = Total debt over shareholder’s equity.

Interest Coverage Ratio = Earnings before tax over Interest expense.

Return on Asset = Net Income over Total Assets.

Return on Equity = Net Income over shareholder’s equity.

RIS

There are no events that will trigger any direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Registrant, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships between the Registrant and unconsolidated
entities were created during 2018.
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Material Changes in the Balance Sheet (+/- 5%) as of 31 December 2018 versus the
Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2017

70% increase in cash

Increase in cash was due to the increase in collections from sales. Also, the availment of
short and long-term loans counterweighed the substantial amount spent in capital
expenditures, thus increasing the amount of cash in 2018,

30% decrease in receivables
The boosted effort exerted in collections had significantly reduced the receivable
balances, thus realizing more cash during the year.

14% increase in real estate inventories

The increase was primarily due to significant capital expenditures in 2018. As the group
envisions expanding its business in the market niche, significant funds was allocated in
project developments and acquisition of raw lands, thus increasing the real estate
inventory.

89% increase in other current assets

The significant growth was due to the across the board project developments and
aggressive marketing activities, thus increasing prepavments to the contractors and
marketing arms.

67% decrease in noncurrent receivables
The significant decrease was brought about by the extended efforts exerted in collections
from customers.

20% decrease in property and equipment
The decrease is due to deprecation of assets.

12% increase in available for sale financial assets
Increase in the fair market value of the financial assets.

518% increase in other noncurrent assets
Primarily due to significant security deposits made in 2018.

33% increase in accounts payable
The increase is mainly attributable to the increasing procurement of resources to be used
in project developments acquired under installment payment schemes.

34% decrease in short-term debt
As the Group maximized its fund sourcing through long-term loan availment and issuance
of corporate bonds, short-term lines were settled during the year.

57% decrease in income tax payable
Mainly attributable to timing differences of revenue recognition of real estate transactions
and others for tax purposes versus accounting purposes.

98% increase in long term debts
The Group maximized its fund souwrcing activities through availment of long-term loans
and issuance of corporate bonds.
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20% decrease in deferred tax liabilities-net
Decrease was due to the reversal of the deferred tax liability attributed to the uncollected
rent to SLECC.

155% increase in pension liabilities
Due to the changes in estimates for retirement liability as valued by the independent
actuary.

122% increase in treasury shares
Increase in treasury share was brought about by the purchase of 750,000,000 shares in
the amount of P900,000,000.

23% increase in unrealized gain on fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
Increase was due (o the increase in marvket price of investment securities in Philippine
Racing Inc. and Manila Jockey Club Inc.

1,434% increase in unrealized gain on pension liabilities
Due to the changes in estimates for retirement liability as valued by the independent
actuary.

Material Changes in the Income Statement (+/- 5%) for the year ended December 31,
2018 versus the Income Statement for the year ended December 31, 2017

15% increase in real estate sales

As driven by the Group’s vision of expanding its position in the market niche, boosted
marketing efforts during the year was employed increasing the real estate sales
recognized during the year.

16% decrease in rental income
Due to reevaluation of lease rates to be competitive with neighboring malls.

88% increase in interest income
Boosted sales significantly increased the recognized interest income during the year as
more buyers opted fo choose installment payment scheme.

66% increase in commission income
Increase was due to significant marketing strategies employed by our marketing company
subsidiary.

13% increase in cost and expenses
Relatively due to increase in operations of the company.

33% increase In commissions
Brought about by the increase in real estate sales recognized during the year.

28% decrease in taxes, licenses and fees
Due to the decrease in shori-term line financing, minimal documeniary stamp laxes was
incurred during the year.

16% increase in advertising
Increase was mainly attributed to the boosted marketing strategies implemented during
the year to increase sales.



7% decrease in salaries, wages and other benefits

Due io the decrease in employee turnover, previously hired personnel remained in the
Company. This resulted in decreasing outflow of resources attributed in hiring new
employees.

33% decrease in professional fees
The decrease was due fo the termination of contract from various consultant and
professionals for the continuous project developments.

62% decrease in representation
Primarily due to the decrease in representation related expenses paid by the Group.

14% decrease in depreciation and amortization

Decrease was due to lower depreciation recognized as result of minimal property and
equipment acquisition during 2018.

18% decrease in utilities

The dropdown in amount was due to the effective implementation of cost management
strategies relating to consumption of light, water and communicalion expenses.

97% increase in repairs and maintenance

Increase in number projects alveady completed notl yet turned over fo home owners
associations (HHOA) and Condominium Corporation significantly increased the incurrence
of expenses related to repairs and maintenance for its upkeep.

45% decrease in provision for doubtful accounts
Extensive collection strategies were implemented thus, reducing the management’s
estimate for doubtful accounts.

45% increase in interest expense
The Group's shift in maximizing fund raising activities to availment of long-term loans

and issuance of corporate bonds increased the recognized interest expense in 2018.

75% decrease in provision for income tax
Decrease was mainly attributed to the reversal of deferred tax hability.

COMPARISON: YEAR END 2017 VS. YEAR END 2016

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview of Operations

A growth in net income after tax by 12% compared to previous year represents continuing
growth and excellence in the Group’s commitment to provide quality real estate
developments. Net income after tax increased to P818 million in 2017 from P730 million
in 2016. Gross revenue amounting to P3,68% million or a 12% increase as compared to
P3,293 million from 2016 is mainly attributable to two main revenue streams of the
Group; real estate sales and rental revenues. The Group sustained its growth on real estate
sales, P219 million increase from P1,890 million in 2016, due to extensive strategies in
marketing, developments and project completion. The increase in number of mall tenants
and minimal escalation rate to existing tenants resulted to an increase in rental income to
P1,026 million in 2017 from P&52 million in 2016.
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The Group has become cost efficient by reducing avoidable costs which resulted to higher
returns. Due to this, costs of deriving revenues decreased to P1,446 million in 2017 from
P1,544 million in 2016.

Revenue

Due to extensive strategies in marketing, developments and project completion, real estate
revenues generated P2,108 million in 2017, 12% higher than the previous year. Increase in
rental income by 20% is mainly attributable to increase in number of mall tenants and
minimal escalation rate to existing tenants. Interest income amounting to P160 million
during the year was generated from installment receivables since more buyers are opting
for longer payment schemes. Construction income decreased to P1,612 million in 2017
compared to P25,591 million in 2016 due to higher volume of construction activity in the
previous year.

Cost and Expense

With the efficiency in cost management which resulted to higher returns, the cost of
deriving revenue from real estate sales and rental revenue decreased to P1,445 million in
2017 from P1,528 million in 2016 or 5% lower than last year. Cost of construction also
decreased to Pl million in 2017 from P16 million due to higher volume of construction
activity in the previous year.

Net Income

The net income after tax increased to P818 million in 2017 from P730 million in 2016
resulting to 12% growth. The increase was primarily due to the increase in real estate
sales.

PROJECT AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

As the Group envisions to become the country’s leading Real Estate Company not in sheer
size but in way more meaningful quality projects, quality business plans, growth, returns
and innovation, the Group spent P6,006 million for project and capital expenditures. The
amount is accounted for the continuous development of the Registrant’s existing
residential and commercial projects and finance newly developed projects. P2,877 million
of the said amount was used in procuring raw lands for new residential and condominium
project developments and 1,018 represents advances made to contractors.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
Assets

The Group’s total assets increased to P29,807 million in 2017 from P24,125 in 2016, The
24% increase is due to the significant amount project and capital expenditures spent in
2017 which is P2,068 million higher than the previous year. Other factors are increase in
frade receivables due to increase in real estate sales, and increase in fair market value of
investment in form of stocks.



Liabilities

Total liabilities reported to be P15,497 million in 2017 compared to P10,659 million in
2016. This is attributable to short term and long term loans drawn during 2017 and still
unpaid as of December of the same year. Increase in customer’s deposit due to more
projects developed that are offered for sale during the year also contributed to the 45%
increase in total liabilities.

Equity
Total stockholders’ equity increased by P844 million in 2017 due to the net income
generated during the year amounting to P818 million. Also contributing to the increase 1s

the change in fair value of investments in form of stocks amounting to P26 million.

Key Performance Indicators

31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16

Current Ratio 2.28 2.77
Debt to Equity 73 0.47
Interest Coverage Ratio 231.94% 286.43%
Return on Asset 3.03% 3.03%
Return on Equity 5.71% 5.42%

*Notes to Key Performance Indicators:

1. Current Ratio = current assets (cash, receivables, inventories, due from
affiliates, prepaid commissions, and other current asset) over current liabilities
(accounts pavable, customer deposit, current portion of bank loans, income tax
pavable, and deferred tax liabilities).

Debt to Equity = Total debt over shareholder’s equity.

Interest Coverage Ratio = Earnings before tax over Interest expense.

Return on Asset = Net Income over Total Assets.

Return on Equity = Net Income over shareholder’s equity.

Uik

There are no events that will trigger any direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Registrant, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships between the Registrant and unconsolidated
entities were created during 2017.

Material Changes in the Balance Sheet (+/- 5%) as of 31 December 2017 versus the
Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2016

346% increase in cash

Despite substantial amount speni in capital expenditures that are used in continuous
development of existing projects and acquisition of various raw lands for future
expansions, cash increased due to higher sales and increase in short term and long term
debt availed during the year.



7% increase in receivables
Due to remarkable sales growth and more projects that have been developed and offered
for sale in the market.

34% increase in real estate inventories

The increase was primarily due to significant capital expenditures for continuous
development of the Registrant’s existing residential and commercial projects and to
Sfinance newly developed projects and raw land acquisitions.

14% increase in other current assets

To sustain the growth in development of projects and aggressive marketing activities, the
Group made advances to contractors and marketing arms, respectively, which caused the
increase in prepayments.

61% increase in noncurrent receivables
Due to a number of buyers choosing to seftle under a longer payment schemes.

12% decrease in property and equipment
The decrease is due to deprecation of assets.

43% increase in other noncurrent assets
Primarily due to significant security deposits made for 2017.

7% increase in accounts payable
Mainly attributable to unceasing development of designed projects and procurement of
various to be used for futire projects under installment scheme.

129% increase in short-term debt
Due to additional loans obtained by the Group to finance aggressive development
operations and activities.

35% increase in customer’s deposits
Due to new projects developed and extensive marketing strategies, there is increase in
reservation fees and collections of downpayments.

41% decrease in income tax payable
Mainly attributable to timing differences of revenue recognition of real estate transactions
and others for tax purposes versus accounting purposes.

28% increase in long term debts
To finance the Group's continuous development of the existing residential and commercial
projects, newly developed projects and raw land acquisitions.

34% increase in deferred tax liabilities-net
Mainly attributable to timing differences of revenue recognition of real estate fransactions
and others for tax purposes versus accounting purposes.

41% decrease in pension liabilities
Due to the changes in estimates for retirement liability as valued by the independent
actuary.
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31% increase in retained earnings
Attributed to the net income reported in the 2017.

6% decrease in unrealized gain on fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
Due to the movement of market prices of investment securities in Phil Racing Inc. and
Manila Jockey Club Inc.

Material Changes in the Income Statement (+/- 5%) for the year ended December 31,
2017 versus the Income Statement for the year ended December 31, 2016

12% increase in real estate sales

Driven by the extensive marketing strategies and project development, real estate sales
are notably increasing. Since more projects are developed as result of more land
acquisitions and joint venture being dealt with, more lots and units are offered for sale
during the year.

20% increase in rental income
Mainly due to increase in number of mall tenants and minimal escalation rate to existing
tenants resulted to higher rental income.

15% increase in interest income
Due fo the interests earned from installment receivables since more buyers are opting for
longer payment schemes.

94% decrease in construction income
Due to lower volume construction activities during the year.

6% increase in cost and expenses
Due to efficiency in cost management of the Group.

13% decrease in commissions
Due to some varving rates of commission fees paid to marketing arms.

15% increase is salaries, wages and other benefits
Due to increase in labor force of the Group.

68% increase in interest expense
Due to the increase in short term and long term debt during the year.

11% increase in advertising
Mainly attributable to increase volume of advertising and promotions made by the Group
in 2017 as compared to 2016 as part of marketing strategy to promote sales.

51% increase in professional fees
Due to significant professional services paid for the actuarial valuation of retirement
liability and valuation of Group's assets.

60% increase in utilities
Mainly due to whole year recognition of utility expenses comprised mostly of security,
light, water and communication expenses.



44% decrease in repairs and maintenance
Due to minimal repairs and maintenance during the year for the completed projecis not
vet turned over to home owners association.

74% increase in representation
Primarily due to increase in volume of transactions made by the Group.

12% decrease in provision for doubtful accounts
Collection over the past few years are noticeably improving thus causing reducing the
management's estimate for doubtful accounts.

18% increase in miscellancous cxpense
Due to surcharges and penalties, insurance, legal, office supplies, software maintenance

and transportation expenses incurred by the Group.

209% increase in provision for income tax
Due to higher income earned during the year.

COMPARISON: YEAR END 2016 VS. YEAR END 2015

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview of Operations

Net income after tax in 2016 posted an increase of P54 million from P676 million in 2015
to P730 million in 2016 reporting an 8% increase. Gross revenues reported at P3,293
million compared to P3,104 million of last year, 6% higher than last year. Posting an
increase amounting to P209 million in real estate revenues, the Group sustained its growth
on real estate sales due to extensive strategies in marketing, developments and financing
provided in the form of bonds. Revenues arising from rentals decreased from P983 million
in 2015 to P852 million in 2016. This was due to change in accounting of income from
mall tenants from accrual to cash basis.

Cost and expenses increased to P1,544 million from P1,401 million this year while
administrative and selling costs increased by 6%.

Revenue

Real estate revenues generated P1,890 million in 2016, 12% higher than 2015, This is due
to extensive strategies in marketing, developments, project completion and financing
provided in the form of bonds. Rental income decreased by 13% due to change in
accounting of income from mall tenants from accrual to cash basis. Commission income
during the year was generated by the Group’s marketing unit Santalucia Ventures, Inc.
Other income posted an increase of P75 million due to increase in recognized income
related to surcharges, penalties and other income.

Cost and Expense

Cost of real estate sales and cost of rental income, posted an increase of 10%, from P1,395
million of 2015 to P1,528 million in 2016. The increase is directly attributable to the
increase in increase in real estate revenues due to strong performance of SLI's property



segment. Administrative and selling expenses increased by 51% primarily due to
significant increase in interest expenses related to bonds.

Net Income

The net income increased by 8% from P676 million in 2015 to P730 million in 2016. The
increase was primarily due to increase in real estate sales and effective tax management.

PROJECT AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

In 2016, the Group spent P3,938 million for project and capital expenditures. The amount
13 accounted for the continuous development of the Registrant’s existing residential and
commercial projects. P1,464 million of the said amount 1s attributable for acquisition of
raw lands for new residential and condominium project developments. Capital
expenditures were significantly financed by the bonds publicly issued in December of
2015.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
Assets

Generating an increase of 13%, the Group reported an increase in total assets of P2,755
million. The increase is due to significant amount capital expenditures spent in 2016 under
installment, increase in trade receivables due to increase in real estate sales, and increase
in fair market value of investment in form of stocks.

Liabilities

Total liabilities generated an increase from P8,671 million to P10,659 million. The 23%
reported increase was due to new short term loans drawn during 2016 and still unpaid as
of December of the same year. Additionally, continuous development of existing projects
and acquisition of various raw lands for future expansions and developments under
installment scheme significantly contributed in the increase in the total liabilities.

Equity

Total stockholders’ equity increased by P766 million in 2016. The increase was due to the
net income generated during the same year amounting to P730 million. Also contributing
to the increase is the change in fair value of investments in form of stocks and actuarial

gain/loss related to pension liabilities amounting to P36 million.

Key Performance Indicators

31-Dec-106 31-Dec-15

Current Ratio 2.77 4.68
Debt to Equity 47 0.44
Interest Coverage Ratio 286.43% 725.45%
Return on Asset 3.03% 3.16%
Return on Equity 5.42% 5.32%

*Notes to Key Performance Indicators:



1. Current Ratio = current assets (cash, receivables, inventories, due from
affiliates, prepaid commissions, and other currvent asset) over current liabilities
(accounts payable, customer deposit, current portion of bank loans, income tax
payable, and deferred tax liabilities).

Debt to Equity = Total debt over shareholder’s equity.

Interest Coverage Ratio = Earnings before tax over Interest expense.

Return on Asset = Net Income over Total Assets.

Return on Equity = Net Income over sharcholder’s equity.
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There are no events that will trigger any direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to the Registrant, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships between the Registrant and unconsolidated
entities were created during 2015.

Material Changes in the Balance Sheet (+/- 5%) as of 31 December 2016 versus the
Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2015

94% decrease in cash

This is mainly due to significant capital expenditures during 2016. Said capital
expenditures in attributable to the continuous development of existing projecls and
acquisition of various raw lands for future expansions.

1 1% increase in receivables
The boost in the Group's sales growth affects the increase in the current receivables as
well as intercompany transactions of the group.

35% increase in real estate inventories
In concurrence with the decrease in the cash reported during 2016, the increase in real
estate inventories is due to significant capital expenditures spent in 2016.

70% increase in other current assets

The increase primarily was due to the increase in prepayments for contractor advances fo
support the growth in development and also to brokers which is as an effect of the Group's
aggressive marketing aciivities.

17% increase in noncurrent receivables
Corresponds to the additional mix of buyers opting longer payment schemes.

17% increase in available for sale financial assets
Mainly due to the increase in market price of the Group's AFS

47% increase in property and equipment
Muinly due to the purchase of transportation vehicles and office equipments to be used in
operations.

26% increase in other noncurrent assets
This is due to significant security deposits made for 2016.



58% increase in accounts payable
Mainly due to continuous development of existing projecis and acquisition of various raw
lands for future expansions and developments under installment scheme.

242% increase in short-term debt

Due to short term loans drawn during 2016 and still unpaid as of December of the same
year. Furthermore, portion of long term debts as of 2015 was reclassified as current
during 2016 as these are expected to be paid within 12 months as of December 2016,

38% increase in customer’s deposits
Increase in new reservations applications and collections under down payment period due
fo new projects launched in 2016.

141% increase in income tax payable.
Due to increase in current taxable operations of the Company.

20% decrease in long term debts
The decrease was due to a portion of long term debis as of 2015reclassified as current
during 2016 as these are expected to be paid within 12 months as of December 2016.

9% decrease in deferred tax liabilities-net
Mainly due to the recognition of the difference between tax and book basis of accounting
Jfor real estate transactions and other temporary differences.

86% increase in pension liabilities
Pertains to the current year changes in pension liabilities as valued by the independent
actuary.

38% increase in retained earnings
Attributed to the net income reported in the 2016.

9% increase in unrealized gain on fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.
Mainly due to the increase in share prices of investments in stocks.

2,540% decrease in remeasurement gain (losses) on pension liabilities.
Attributed to the changes on pension settlement expectations.

Material Changes in the Income Statement (+/- 5%) for the year ended 31 December
2016 versus the Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2015

12% increase in real estate sales
Driven by the increased volume of real estate sales.

13% decrease in rental income
Due to the change in accounting of cash receipts from mall tenants from accrual to cash
basis.

1 1% increase in interest income
Due to the mix of interest bearing buyers of the Company.

172% increase in construction income
Due to increased number of construction of houses.
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6% Increase in cOMMIsSion income
Due to strengthened marketing performance of Santalucia Ventures, Inc.

38% increase in other income

Primarily due to the continuous increase in revenue other than its real estate sales such as
booking of surcharges/penalties, processing fees, income related fo defaults of various
buyers, and other services.

10% increase in cost and expenses
Muainly due to the related increase in sales during the period.

71% increase in depreciation
Due to new property and equipment acquisitions during the year.

8% decrease in commissions
Though an increase in sales was recognized, requirements for the release of some
commissions to agenis and brokers are not yet met.

112% increase in interest expense

Due to the additional debts arising from the public bond offering in December 2015 and
short term loans drawn in 2016 and partial vecognition of capitalized interest from
previous years.

87% increase in taxes, licenses and fees

Due to operational activities of the Group and increased volume of processing and tax
expenses due lo increased volume of cash sales. The increase was also due (o
documentary stamp taxes incurved for short term loans to various financial institutions.

7% decrease in advertising
Mainly due to decreased volume of advertising and promofions made by the Group in
2016 as compared to 2015,

29% decrease in professional fees
Due to significant professional services paid for the public bond offering in 2015.

594% increase in repairs and maintenance

Mainly due to increased number projects already completed not vet turned over to home
owners associations (HOA} and Condominium Corporations which incurved repairs and
maintenance for further upkeep.

50% decrease in representation
Primarily due to decrease in representation related expenses paid by the Group.

20% decrease in provision for doubtful accounts
Due to decrease in volume of receivables expected to be uncollectible than last year.

66% decrease in provision for income tax
Due to effective tax management of the Group.



COMPARISON: YEAR END 2015 VS. YEAR END 2014

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview of Operations

A net income after tax of P676 million for the year 2015, 23% higher than the P549
million reported in 2014 is generated during 2015. Gross revenues posted at P3,104
million compared to P2,296 millton of last year, 35% higher year on year. Revenues from
real estate sales posted an increase of P235 million from that of last year followed by the
95% increase in rental income from P504 million to P984 million which was due to the
change in internal operations. Increase in real estate sales was driven by strong
performance in SLI’s property segment.

Cost and expenses increased to P1,401 million from P1,029 million this year.
Administrative and selling costs to revenues improved during the year by 51%. Eamings
before tax generated is P973 million, 24% increase from last year.

Revenue

Revenue from real estate sales reached P1,681 million in 2015, 16% higher than 2014.
This is driven by strong bookings and project completion across all real estate segment of
the Company. Revenue from rental income posted a P480 million increase due to change
in intemal operations. A management services agreement was executed in lieu of the
Lease contract which lets SLI book the gross revenue starting October 2014. Commission
income during the year was generated by the Group’s marketing unit Santalucia Ventures,
Inc.

Also, a 27% increase in other income or equivalent to P42 million was booked during the
year. This was due to significant gain recognized from repossession of inventory lots
during 2015.

Cost and Expense

Cost of sales from real estate sales, together with the cost of rental income increased from
1,010 million to 1,395 million. The notable increase was due to strengthened performance
of SLI’s property segment and change in internal operations. In 2015, the 51% increase in
administrative and selling expenses 1s attributable to professional services incurred for the
bond offering and indirect expenses driven by the increase in revenues.

Net Income

The net income increased by 24% from P784 Million in 2014 to P973 Million in 2015.
The increase was due to increase in real estate sales and rental income

PROJECT AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

A total of P1,516 million was spent for project and capital expenditures during 2015. The
amount is accounted for the continuous development of the Registrant’s existing
residential and commercial projects. P179 million of the said amount is attributable for
acquisition of raw lands situated mainly in Luzon for new residential and condominium
project developments.



FINANCIAL CONDITION
Assetls

Total Assets increased by P3,532 million during 2015, 20% higher than the amount as of
December 2014. The significant increase from P17,838 million to P21,371 million of the
total assets was due the increase of real estate sales and rental income as posted in the
gross revenue. P2,099 million of the increase is attributable to the increase of cash due to
the proceeds from bond issuances and increase in volume of collections.

Liabilities

An increase of 42% in total liabilities is reported by the Registrant amounting to P2,565
million. P2,412 million of the increase is attributable to bond issuances during December
2015 which was partially used to terminate significant portion of the existing loans
payable to different financial institutions. Furthermore, continued development of existing
projects and acquisition of various lands for future expansions also contributed in the
significant increase in liabilities.

Equity

Total stockholders” equity increased by 8% amounting to P967 million during 2015. This
1s due to the net income reported during the year and sale of treasury shares amounting to
P297 million.

Key Performance Indicators

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14

Current Ratio 4.68 2.08
Debt to Equity 44 0.28
Interest Coverage Ratio 725.45% 691.39%
Return on Asset 3.16% 3.08%
Return on Equity 5.32% 4.68%

*Notes to Key Performance Indicators:

1. Current Ratio = current assets (cash, receivables, inventories, due from affiliates,
prepaid commissions, and other current asset) over current liabilities (accounts
payable, customer deposit, current portion of bank loans, income tax payable, and
deferred tax liabilities).

Debt to Equity = Total debt over shareholder’s equity.

Interest Coverage Ratio = Earnings before tax over Interest expense.

Return on Asset = Net Income over Total Assets.

Return on Equity = Net Income over shareholder’s equity.

e

There are no events that will trigger any direct or contingent financial obligation
that is material to the Registrant, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships between the Registrant and unconsolidated
entities were created during 201 5.
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Material Changes in the Balance Sheet (+/- 5%) as of December 31, 2015 versus the
Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014

1,808% increase in cash

This is mainly due to the improved collections of the company, rental operations of the
mall as the tenants now pay directly to the Company starting October 2014. Proceeds
from bond issuances also contributed in the increase.

8% increase 1n receivables
The increase is attributable to increased accounts receivable takeup due to increase in
revenues recognized during the vear.

1 1% increase in real estate inventories
Mainly due to extensive developmeni of existing residential and commercial projects and
acquisition of land for future expansions.

8% increase in other current assets
The increase primarily was due to the increase in prepaid commissions and contractor
advances as an effect of the Company’s aggressive marketing and developing activities.

12% 1ncrease in property and equipment
Mainly due to the purchase of fransportation vehicles and office equipments to be used in
operations

5% increase in investment properties
Mainly due to the refurbishment of the mall.

5% increase in accounts payable
Driven by the ongoing development of various projects of the company.

12% decrease in customer’s deposits
Due to the improved collections from the customers.

75% increase in long term debts
Attributable to increased debts due to the public bond offering.

13% increase in income tax payable
Due the taxable operations of the Company.

35% increase in deferred tax liabilities-net
Muainly due to the recognition of the difference between tax and book basis of accounting
Jfor real estate transactions and other temporary differences.

55% increase in retained eamnings
Attributed to the profitable operations, gains on investment properties, and revenues from
real estate business operations.

18% decrease in treasury shares
Due to the sale of treaswiy shares during 2015.

72% increase in additional paid-in capital.
Due to the excess of proceeds from sale of treasury shares over its cost.
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104% decrease in unrealized gain (loss) on pension
Attributed to the changes on pension seitlement expectations.

Material Changes in the Income Statement (+/- 5%) for the year ended December 31,
2015 versus the Income Statement for the year ended December 31, 2014

16% increase in real estate sales
Driven by the increased volume of real estate sales.

95% increase in rental income
Due to the change in internal operations of the Company whereby a management services
agreement was executed in place of the lease agreement.

15% increase in interest income
Due to the mix of interest bearing buyers of the Company

66% decrease 1 construction income
Due to decreased number of construction of houses

26% increase in dividend income
Mainly due to increased dividend declaration of investee companies

35% increase in commission income
Mainly due to aggressive marketing strategies of subdivisions owned by SLRDI

27% increase in other income

Mainly due to the gain recognized during the year for the repossession of lot inventories
from the buyers. Also, it is due to the increase in other operational income such as
penalties and surcharges, processing fees, and income related to defaults of various
buyers and cancelled sales.

36% increase in cost and expenses
Mainly due to the related increase in sales during the period.

230% increase in depreciation
Due to new property and equipment acquisitions during the year.

52% increase in comimissions
Mainly due to directly proportional relation of real estate sales which increased during
the year.

18% increase in interest expense
Due to the additional debts arising from the public bond offering and partial recognition
of capitalized interest from previous years.

21% increase in taxes, licenses and fees

Due to increased taxes paid for transfer of land titles to customers. The increase was also
due to documentary siamp taxes incurred for short term loans to various financial
institutions.



34% increase in salaries and wages
Mainly due to the hiring of additional employees to cater to the increased volume of
transactions and the release of emplovees’ benefits for the whole year.

47% increase in advertising
Mainly due (o aggressive marketing strategies which is in direct proportion to the increase
in real estate sales.

200% increase in professional fees
Due to professional services paid for the public bond offering

254% increase in utilities

Mainly due to whole year recognition of utility expenses related to mall due to the change
in internal operations of the Company whereby a management services agreement was
executed in place of the lease agreement,

148% increase in repairs and maintenance

Mainly due to increased number projects already completed not yet turned over to home
owners associations (HHOA) and Condominium Corporations which incur repairs and
maintenance for further upkeep.

199% increase 1n representation

Driven by strong performance in property development and settlement of permits and
licenses.

106% increase in miscellaneous expense
Due to surcharges and penalties incurred in pretermination of loans to various financial
institutions.

27% increase in provision for income tax
Due to the increase in taxable net income of the Registrant

INTERIM PERIOD

COMPARISON: THREE MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 VS. THREE
MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

RESULT OF OPERATIONS
Revenue

For the first quarter of 2019, the Group generated revenues amounting to P1,271 million.
Compared to last year’s P974 million, overall revenues increased by 30% caused by
aggressive marketing schemes and more lots and units are offered in the market due to
continuous project development. [ncreased in commission income by 144% or P5 million
was due to aggressive sales recognized by Sta. Lucia Ventures. Interest income also
increased 22% or P7 mitlion since more buyers are opting for longer payments and more
interest are earmed through these installment receivables.
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Cost and Expense

In relation to higher revenues, costs and expenses of the Group directly increased by P192
million from P595 million to P787 million. The increase was mainly attributed to the
increase in cost of sales amounting to P33 million, increase in commission brought about
by the increase in sales amounting to P52 million and interest expense amounting to P100
million.

Also, increase in affected by the increase in representation expense amounting to P10
million.

Comprehensive Income

For the three-month period ending March of 2019, the Group reported P487 million of
comprehensive income. The increase of P270 million or 124% is directly attributable to
the real estate sales recognized during the period. In addition, the fair market value of
investments held in form of stocks increased by P149 million from December 31, 2018.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Total Assets

Total Group’s total assets slightly increased to P36,148 million in the first quarter of 2019
from P34,716 million in December 31, 2018. The increase of P1,432 million 1s mainly due
to increase in other current assets amounting to P1,131 million and installment receivables
amounting to P357 million. The posted increase on assets was due to higher receivables
recognized in the books boosted by the increase in recognized sales during the period.

Total Liabilities

Group’s liabilities totaled to P21,442 million showed an increase in amount from P20,262
million in December 31, 2018 amounting to P1,180 million. This is due to downpayments
and reservation fees made by buyers since to sales of real estate inventories in the period.

Key Performance Indicators

31-Mar-19 31-Dec-18

Current Ratio 2.66 2.82
Debt to Equity 1.02 0.94
Interest Coverage Ratio 309.91% 261.61%
Return on Asset 0.94% 3.06%
Return on Equity 2.30% 7.37%

*Notes to Key Performance Indicator;

I. Current Ratio = current assets (cash, receivables, inventories, due from
affiliates, prepaid commissions, and other current asset) over current liabilities
(accounts payable, customer deposit, current portion of bank loans, income tax
pavable, and deferred tax liabilities).

Debt to Equity = Total debt over shareholder’s equity.

[nterest Coverage Ratio = Eamings before tax over Interest expense.

Return on Asset = Net Income over Total Assets.

Return on Equity = Net Income over shareholder’s equity.

WMok
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Material Changes in the Balance Sheet (+/- 5%) as of 31 March 2019 versus the
Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2018

35% decrease in cash

Decrease in mainly attributable to the higher capiial expenditures incurred for the
continuous development of existing projects and acquisition of various raw lands for
Sfuture expansions and new projects.

10% increase in receivables
Increase was mainly attributable to the boosted sales of completed projects booked during
the period.

23% increase in contract assets
Increase was mainly attributable to the boosted sales of ongoing projects booked during
the period.

22% increase in other current assets

Due fto advances made to contractors lo develop raw lands purchased in the previous
year. Increase is also attributable to the advance commissions paid to marketing arms to
promaote sales.

11% decrease in available-for-sale financial assets
Decrease was due to the movement of market values of quoted investment securities of
Phil Racing Inc. and Manila Jockey Club Inc.

9% decrease in accounts and other payable
Decrease was due to paymenis made to suppliers.

39% increase in short-term debts

Increase was due to higher borrowings made during the quarter, proceeds from
borrowing were allocated fo the daily operating requirement as well as capifal
expenditures.

133% increase in income tax payable
As revenue posted a robust increase, income tax is directly affected.

20% decrease in deferred tax liabilities
Decrease was due to movements in the accounts affecting timing differences of taxes.

9% increase in retained eamings
Increase was due to the recognized income during the period.

27% decrease in unrealized fair market value of AFS

Decrease was due to the movement of market values of quoted investment securities of
Phil Racing Inc. and Manila Jockey Club Inc.

Material Changes in the Income Statement (+/-5% and >P10M) for the Three-Month
Period Ended 31 March 2019 versus the Income Statement for the Three-Month
Period Ended 31 March 2018



56% increase in real estate sales
Increase in real estate sales is boosted by the extensive marketing schemes implemented
during the first quarter of the year as compared to same period last year.

23% decrease in rental income
Decrease in rental income is due to revaluation of lease rates to be competitive with
neighboring malls.

21% increase in interest income

Increase in interest income was brought about by the payment scheme opted by buyers
during the first quarter. More buyers chose installment payment scheme for their purchase
thus increasing the recognized interest income during the quarter.

144% increase in commission income

Increase in commission income was brought about by the boosted marketing efforts
exerted by Sta. Lucia Ventures. Increase in sales was posted during the first quarier as
compared to same period last year.

14% increase in other income

Attributable to increase in defaults of various buyers and cancelled sales resulting to
increase in revenue from booking of surcharges/penalties, processing fees and other
related income.

17% increase in cost of real estate sales
Increase was directly attributable to the increase in real estate sales during the period.

9% decrease in cost of rental income
Decrease was due to the cost minimization strategies emploved by SLI fo increase its
reveniie.

78% 1ncrease in interest expense
Increase in interest expense was brought about by the aggressive capitalization plan
employed to raise capital during 2018.

80% increase in commissions
Increase directly attributable to the increase in sales during the period.

18% decrease in advertising
Decrease was due to employment of an effective cost management to increase revenue.

5% decrease in taxes and licenses
Due to operational activities of the Group and lower volume of processing.

57% increase in professional fees
Attributable to increase in number of professionals and consultant employed during the
period for continuous project development.

20% increase in salaries and wages and other benefits
Due to increase in number of employees and salary adjusiments.

479% increase in representation expense
Attributable to higher incurred transactions for the first quarter of 2018



31% decrease in utilities
Decrease was due to employment of an effective cost management (o increase revenue.

115% increase in repairs and maintenance
Due to the capitalization of various major repairs and maintenance to inventory accounts
and lessened costs for the administration.

[29% increase in miscellaneous expenses
Mainly due ifo increase in surcharges and penaliies, insurance, legal, office supplies,
software maintenance and (ransportation expenses incurred by the Group.

IV. BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
A, Description of Business
1. Business Development

The Registrant was incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines and registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on 06 December 1996
under the name Zipporah Mining and Industrial Corporation to engage in mining. On 4
August 1996, the Registrant’s Articles of Incorporation was amended (a) changing the
corporate name to Zipporah Realty Holdings, Ine. (ZRHI); and (b) transposing the original
primary purpose to secondary purpose from being a mining firm to a real estate company,
the primary purpose of which is to acquire by purchase, lease, donation, or otherwise, and
to own, use, improve, develop and hold for investment or otherwise, real estate of all
kinds, improve, manage or otherwise dispose of buildings, houses, apartments and other
structures of whatever kind, together with their appurtenances. In 2007, majority of the
shares of ZRHI was acquired by Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc. (SLRDI) through
a property-share swap and changed its company name to Sta. Lucia Land, Inc. upon board
approval. SLI1s 81.75% owned by SL.LRDI as of 31 March 2019.

2. Restructuring

As part of a restructuring program, the Registrant’s board of directors (the Board)
approved the following on 15 June 2007, which the sharcholders (the Sharcholders)
subsequent!y approved on 16 July 2007:

(1) Increase in the authorized capital stock of the Registrant by P14 Billion, from
P2.0 Billion to P16 Billion, divided into 16 billion shares with a par value of
P1.00 per share;

(2) Subscription of SLRDI of up to 10 billion shares out of the increase in the
Registrant’s authorized capital stock; and

(3) SLRDI’s subscription to such shares shall be at par value, the consideration for
which shall be the assignment and transfer by SLRDI to the Registrant of assets
acceptable to the Board at a reasonable discount on the market value of such
assets.

Accordingly, on 08 December 2007, various deeds of assignment were entered into
by the Registrant and SLRDI wherein SLRDI assigned all its rights, title and interest on
the following real properties:
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Alta Vista de Subic Monte Verde Royale
Alta Vista Residential Estate and Golf La Breza Tower (Mother Ignacia)

Course

Caliraya Spring Golf Marina Neopolitan Estate

Costa Verde Cavite Palm Coast Marina Bayside

Davao Riverfront Palo Alto Executive Village

Eagle Ridge Commercial Pinewoods Golf & Country Estate

Glenrose Park Carcar Cebu Pueblo del Sol

Greenwoods Commercial Rizal Technopark

Greenwoods South South Pacific Golf & Leisure
Estates

Lakewood City Southfield Executive Village

Manville Royal Subd. Sta. Lucia East Grand Mall Sites 1,
2,3

Metropoli Residenza de Libis Residential Tagaytay Rovyale Estate
Commercial

Metropolis Greens Vistamar Residential Estate

Furthermore, on 15 June 2007 and 16 July 2007, the Board and the Shareholders
respectively approved a number of changes in the corporate structure as part of its
diversification scheme. These were:

1. The change of its name to STA. LUCIA LAND, INC.;

2. The change in the registered address and principal place of business;,

3. The decrease in the number of directors from eleven (11) to nine (9);

4. The provision on indemnification of directors and officers against third
party liabilities;

5. The change in the primary and secondary purposes of the Registrant and

the adoption of a new set of by-laws;
Items 1-5 were approved by the SEC on 09 October 2007.

Moreover, the Shareholders elected the following directors: Vicente R. Santos
(Chairman), Exequiel D. Robles, Mariza R. Santos-Tan, Antonio D. Robles, Aurora D.
Robles, Orestes R. Santos, Jose Ferdinand R. Guiang, Osmundo C. de Guzman, Jr., and
Santiago Cua.

Lastly, the Registrant sold its subsidiary, EBEDEV, Inc. (“EBEDEV™) to Beziers
Hldgs.,, Inc. on 0l June 2007, with eighty million (80,000,000) common shares
representing one hundred percent (100%) of its issued and outstanding capital stock. Upon
execution of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, responsibility for the management of
EBEDEYV was transferred to and vested with Beziers Hldgs., Inc., along with the corporate
records and documents of EBEDEV.

3. Subsidiaries

On 09 January 2013, the Registrant filed an application with SEC for the
incorporation of one of its wholly owned subsidiary Sta. Lucia Homes, Inc. (SLHI), the
primary purpose of which is to construct, develop, improve, mortgage, pledge and deal
with residential structure for lot buyers of the Group. The Registrant received an approval
on 20 February 2013.
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On 31 January 2013, the Registrant also filed an application with SEC for the
incorporation of another wholly owned subsidiary Santalucia Ventures Inc. (SVI), whose
primary purpose is to market, operate, manage, develop, improve, dispose, mortgage,
pledge and deal with residential structure for lot buyers of the Group. Such application
was approved by SEC on 05 April 2013.

In its Special Meeting on 21 April 2015, the Board of Directors of the Registrant
authorized the sale of SVI to SLRDI at book value.

4. Employees/Officers

As of December 2018, the Registrant has the following number of
employees/officers including:

DIVISION NO. OF | CONTRACTUAL
EMPLOYEES

Office of the EVP/CFO 1

Administration 4

Accounting (2

Internal Audit 5

Sales and Marketing [5

Project Development 19

Purchasing 5

Finance/Credit Risk Management 3

Management Information System 4

Treasury 5 1

Collection 31

Corporate Planning 2

Human Resources 2

Commercial Business** I

Special Projects 2

Hotels |

Sta. Lucia Homes 2

Total Employees and Officers 114 1
**Consultant

There are no current labor disputes or strikes against the Registrant, nor have there
been any labor disputes or strikes against the Registrant in the past ten (10) years.

The Registrant has provided a mechanism through which managers and staff are
given feedback on their job performance, which it believes will help to ensure continuous
development of its employees. The Registrant also provides managers, supervisors and
general staff the opportunity to participate in both in-house and extemal training and
development programs which are designed to help increase efficiency and to prepare
employees for future assignments.

5. Major Risks

Various risk factors will affect SLI’s results of operations may it be in the result of
economic uncertainty and political instability.
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The Philippines as one of the countries in Asia that were not directly affected by
the crisis showed a better position for market enhancement. Despite the fact that inflation
is continuously affecting the world market, the Philippines manages to offset the
augmented prices of goods and services with the increase in local & foreign investment as
well as the Overseas Filipino Workers (OFW) remittances continued to be constant. Given
the skilled labor in the Philippines, which is at par with international standards, jobs were
actually created in the country. The steady rise of employment in this industry contributed
to the increase in consumer spending, which is one of the strongest stimuli for economic
growth. In addition, local and foreign investors were driven by the new Aquino
administration which showed a positive outcome for investors.

As for the real estate industry in the Philippines, the country still experienced a
stable market demand for 2015. This is due to the common object of OFW’s which to have
their own property. Based on SLI's sales report, it has always been a significant number of
OFW who purchased properties. Also, there have been foreign investors who invested in
properties in the country due to our low cost of living. The Philippines is likewise seen as
a country with great economic potential by our neighboring countries in Asia.

The Philippines has from time to time experienced severe political and social
instability. The Philippine Constitution provides that, in times of national emergency,
when the public interest so requires, the Government may take over and direct the
operation of any privately owned public utility or business. [n the last few years, there
were instances of political instability, including public and military protests arising from
alleged misconduct by the previous administration.

Politics has been a major risk in the Philippines since it has a negative image in
political disorder which is [argely due to corruption and unstable development. Also, the
country’s high debt to financial institutions affects all business sectors and has become a
major factor to consider. It would be a challenge for the government to act on the risk
factors threatening the Philippine economy.

Other than those mentioned above, the Registrant may also be exposed with the
changes in Peso, interest rates and costs in construction. However, the Registrant adopted
appropriate risk management procedures to lessen and address the risks it faces.

6. Nature of Business/Product Line

Following its restructuring and corporate reorganization, the Registrant, now with
a broader capital structure and a globally-oriented vision, aims to be at par and even
surpass the achievements of its predecessor, SLRDIL. Moreover, the Registrant today has
almost accomplished its three vertical projects located in Quezon City, Tagaytay, and
various horizontal projects located in Tagaytay, Batangas, Cavite, Tarlac, Laguna, Davao,
Cebu, Iloilo and Antipolo.

7. Description of Market/Clients

The Registrant has now expanded its target market to include clients with different
professions and living statuses, coming from all segments of society.

The Registrant’s main target markets are the OFWs and middle class. A major
percentage of the Registrant’s number of units sold come from OFWs and their families
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which constitutes 70% of sold units, 15% come from SME business owners, and 15%
come from middle class employees.

8. Real Property Development

The following properties as mentioned above comprise the assets of the Registrant
as part of the capital infusion from SLRDI:

Residential and Commercial Properties
Alta Vista de Subic

Alta Vista de Subic is a residential property located in Subic, Zambales. It sits on a 22,308
sq. m. area, with 68 lots for sale.

Alta Vista Residential Estate and Golf Course
Alta Vista Residential Estate and Golf Course is a residential property located in Cebu
City. It sits on a 25,450 sq. m. area, with 36 lots for sale.

Caliraya Spring
Caliraya Spring is a residential property located in Laguna. It sits on an 84,980 sq. m. area,
with [20 lots for sale.

Costa Verde Cavite
Costa Verde Cavite is a residential property with housing projects located in Rosario,
Cavite. It sits on a 16,670 sq. m. area, with 100 lots for sale.

Davao Riverfront

Davao Riverfront is a residential and commercial property located in Davao City. [t has 11
residential lots for sale, which sits on a 2,170 sq. m. area. The property also has 100
commercial lots for sale, situated on an 81,889 sq. m. land.

Eagle Ridge
Eagle Ridge is a commercial property located in Cavite. It sits on a 69,042 sq. m. area,
with §7 lots for sale.

Glenrose Park Carcar Cebu
Glenrose Park Carcar Cebu is a residential property with housing projects located in Cebu
City. It sits on a 14,338 sq. m. area, with 179 lots for sale.

Greenwoods Pasig
Greenwoods is a commercial property located in Pasig City. It sits on a 6,665 sq. m. area,
with 6 lots for sale.

Greenwoods South
Greenwoods South is a residential property with housing projects located in Batangas
City. It sits on a 25,181 sq. m. area, with 125 lots for sale.

Lakewood Cabanatuan
Lakewood Cabanatuan is a residential property with housing projects located in
Cabanatuan. It sits on a 107,087 sq. m. area, with 372 lots for sale.
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Manville Rovale Subdivision

Manville Royale Subdivision is a residential and commercial property located in Bacolod.
It has 382 residential lots for sale, which sits on a 65,606 sq. m. area. The property also
has 5 commercial lots for sale, situated on a 7,316 sq. m. land.

Metropolis Greens
Metropolis Greens is a residential property with housing projects located in General Trias,
Cavite. It sits on a 19,785 sq. m. area, with 179 lots for sale.

Metropoli Residenza de Libis

Metropoli Residenza de Libis is a residential and commercial property located in Libis,
Quezon City. It has 46 residential lots for sale, which sits on a 10,721 sq. m. area. The
property also has 18 commercial lots for sale, situated on a 7,336 sq. m. land.

Monte Verde Executive Village
Monte Verde Executive Village is a residential property with housing projects located in
Taytay, Rizal. [t sits on a 43,492.93 sq. m. area, with 202 lots for sale.

Neopolitan Garden Condominium
Neopolitan Garden Condominium is a residential condominium property located in
Fairview, Quezon City. [t sits on a 75,493 sq. m. area, with 47 lots for sale.

Palm Coast Marina Bavside
Palm Coast Marina Bayside is a commercial property located on Roxas Blvd., Manila. [t
sits on a 2,571 sq. m. area, with 2 lots for sale.

Palo Alto Phl
Palo Alto Phl is a residential property located in Tanay, Rizal. It sits on a 678,837 sq. m.
area, with 1,115 lots for sale.

Pinewoods
Pinewoods 1s a residential property located in Baguio City. It sits on an 112,210 sq. m.
area, with 71 lots for sale.

Pueblo Del Sol Ph1
Pueblo Del Sol Phl is a residential property located in Tagaytay City. It sits on a 12,977
sq. m. area, with 44 lots for sale.

Rizal Technopark
Rizal Technopark is a commercial property located in Taytay, Rizal. It sits on a 25,112 sq.
m. area, with 34 lots for sale.

Rizal Technopark Ph2F
Rizal Technopark Ph2F is a residential property located in Taytay, Rizal. It sits on a 3,884
sq. m. area, with 16 lots for sale.

Southfield Executive Village
Southfield Executive Village is a residential property with housing projects located in
Dasmarifias, Cavite. It sits on a 28,359 sq. m. area, with 193 lots for sale.
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South Pacific Golf and Leisure Estate
South Pacific Golf and Leisure Estate is a residential property with housing projects
located in Davao City. It sits on a 150,095 sq. m. area, with 434 lots for sale.

Sta. Lucia East Grandmall
Sta. Lucia East Grandmall is a commercial property located in Cainta, Rizal. It sits on a
98,705 sq. m. area and is composed of three buildings.

Tagavtay Royale
Tagaytay Royale 1s a commercial property located in Tagaytay City. It sits on a 22,907 sq.
m. area, with 9 lots for sale.

Vistamar Estates

Vistamar Estates is a residential and commercial property located in Cebu City. It has 86
residential lots for sale, which sits on a 32,086 sq. m. area. The property also has 13
commercial lots for sale, situated on a 20,299 sq. m. land.

The following are the Registrant’s completed projects as of 31 December 2018 aside from
the ones indicated above:

Arterra Residences
Arterra Residences 1s a condominium project located in Lapu-lapu City, Cebu and 20-
Storey high.

Sugarland Estates
Sugarland Estates is a residential property located in Trece Martires, Cavite with a
saleable area of 72,377 sqm.

Splendido Tower 1
Splendido Tower 1 i1s a condominium project located in Laurel, Batangas and 22-Storey

high.

Splendido Tower 2
Splendide Tower 2 is a condominium project located in Laurel, Batangas and 18-Storey
high.

La Breza Tower
La Breza Tower is the planned 22-storey residential condominium to be built on the
property on Mother Ignacia Ave. in Quezon City. The property area 1s 1,450 sq. m.

La Mirada Tower 1
La Mirada Tower is a condominium project located in Lapu Lapu, Cebu.

Villa Chiara
Villa Chiara is a residential property located in Tagaytay City, Cavite with more than
34,000 sq. m. in area.

Grand Villas Bauan
Grand Villas Bauan is a residential subdivision located in Bauan Batangas.
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Green Meadows Tarlac
Green Meadows Tarlac is a residential and commercial property which sits in Paniqui,
Tarlac with more than 149,000 sq. m. in area.

Luxurre Residences
Luxurre Residences is a residential and commercial property located in Alfonso, Cavite.

East Bel Air 1
East Bel Air 1 is a condominium tower located in Cainta, Rizal.

Greenland Antipolo
Greenland Antipolo is a residential property located in Antipolo, Rizal with more than
20,000 sq. m. in area.

South Grove Davao

Scuth Grove is a residential community located in Davao which i1s 3 kum from the city
proper. The community is designed with a clubhouse, basketball court, and swimming
pool.

Sta. Lucia Residenze 1 - Monte Carlo

Sta. Lucia Residenze 1 - Monte Carlo 1s a 20-storey residential condominium located in
Cainta, Rizal. It is an [talian inspired-tower purposely outlined in equilateral shape to
preserve the scenic view of the city. It is located instde the SLEGM and will have 238
units available for sale.

Stradella (formerly East Bel-Air 2)

Stradella 1s a 6-storey residential and commercial condotel located in Cainta, Rizal. The
project offers convenient urban living in a suburban and elegant contemporary setting.
Located within the 1 h.a. residential and commercial complex called East Bel-Air, this
project has 116 units available for sale.

Neopolitan Condominium 1

The Neopolitan Condominium is a 9-storey residential condominium located in Fairview,
Quezon City. It is designed as a residential project at the center of buzzing city. [t covers
an area of 1.2 h.a. and will have 191 units available for sale.

Mesilo Nueva Vida
Mesilo Nueva Vida is a residential property located in Dasmarinas, Cavite. It has 876
residential lots for sale, which sits on a 183,451 sq. m. area.

Greenland Newtown Ph2B
Greenland Newtown Ph2B 1s a residential property located in San Mateo, Rizal. It has 120
residential lots for sale, which sits on a 19,098 sq. m. area.

Glenrose Tavtay
Glenrose Taytay is a residential property located in Taytay, Rizal. It has 92 residential lots
for sale, which sits on a 14,059 sq. m. area.

Sierra Vista Residential Estate Ph2A
Sierra Vista Residential Estate is a residential property located in Caloocan City, Manila.
It has 24 residential lots for sale, which sits on a 3,654 sq. m. area.
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Greenwoods Executive Ph9E
Greenwoods Executive PhOE 1s a residential property located in Caloocan City, Manila. It
has 31 residential lots for sale, which sits on a 4,951 sq. m. area.

Beverly Place Ph9H
Greenwoods Executive Ph9H 1s a residential property located in Mexico, Pampanga.

Sta. Barbara Rovale PhlA
Sta. Barbara Royale PhlA is a residential property located in Tandang Sora, Quezon City.
It has 9 residential lots for sale, which sits on a 1,350 sq. m. area.

Summerhills Ph4
Summerhills Ph4 is a residential property located in Antipolo, Rizal. It has 132 residential
lots for sale, which sits on a 28,059 sq. m. area.

Nottingham Villas Townhouse 5A-5D and 6-7
Nottingham Villas Townhouse Cluster SA-5D and 6-7 is a residential townhouse located
in Taytay, Rizal.

Sotogrande Ph2
Sotogrande Ph2 1s a residential property located in Tagaytay City, Cavite. It has 132
residential lots for sale, which sits on a 28,059 sq. m. area.

Green Meadows Iloilo Phl
Green Meadows [loilo Phl is a residential property and commercial property located in
Jaro, Iloilo City. It has 1,986 lots for sale, which sits on a 319,530 sq. m. area.

Costa Del Sol Iloilo
Costa Del Sol lloilo is a residential property and commercial property located in Arevalo,
[loilo City. It has 143 lots for sale, which sits on a 24,320 sq. m. area.

Greenland Cainta
Greenland Cainta is a residential property located in Cainta, Rizal. It has 370 [ots for sale,
which sits on a 54,773 sq. m. arca.

9, Material Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation or Purchase or
Sale of Significant Amount of Assets

The Registrant has sold the Ayala Property to Alphaland, Inc. in April 2008 for
P820 Miliion.

B. Business of Issuer

The Registrant’s primary purpose is to deal, engage or otherwise acquire an
interest in land or real estate development, whether in the Philippines or elsewhere, to
acquire, purchase, sell, convey, encumber, lease, rent, erect, construct, alter, develop, hold,
manage, operate, administer or otherwise deal in and dispose of, for itself or for others, for
profit and advantage, residential, commercial, industrial, recreational, urban and other
kinds of real property, such as horizontal and vertical developments as stated in its latest
Amended Articles of Incorporation, as of 09 October 2007. Please refer to “Real Property
Development” and “Development Activities” sections for the detailed descriptions of the
products that are and will be distributed by the Registrant.
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The Registrant has been able to establish a track record in horizontal residential
developments, where the Registrant has historically derived a substantial portion of its
revenues. The Registrant has continued to expand its horizontal developments which
continue to be its core business and begun to diversify into vertical developments, housing
construction, and marketing services. In line with its strategy of increasing recurting
income, the Registrant has also begun to expand its mall operations through the opening of
its expansion mall in 2014 and conversion of some of its portfolio of commercial lots for
sale into commercial lots for lease.

The Registrant conducts its business via the following main operating segments,
further broken down as follows:

1. Residential Projects
a. Horizontal Developments
1. Residential Lots

These projects consist of residential lots for sale in gated subdivisions complete
with facilities and amenities. The Registrant begins developing identified land for
marketing and selling to customers. These projects involve minimal construction
works. Typical features developed by the Registrant for these residential
communities include an entrance gate, guard house, landscaped entry statement,
community clubhouse, basketball court, swimming pool, wide concrete road
network, paved sidewalks with concrete curbs and gutters, centralized interrelated
water system, underground drainage system, and electric system. Average selling
prices per unit ranges from Php480,000 to Php5,350,000. Required downpayments
are usually 15% to 20%, payable in 6 months to [ year. Balance of 80% 1s paid
through installment with interest rates ranging of 14% to 16% with average term of
1 to 10 years.

b. Vertical Developments

1. Townhouses

Townhouse projects are comprised of residential housing units where independent
and 1identical houses are found adjacent to each other, with a row sharing one or
two house walls. These projects have higher development costs, are built on
smaller land areas (6 to 7 h.a.), and are developed in phases. The next phase is only
developed once the previous phase is sold out. The Registrant has one ongoing
having an average price of Php5,350,000. Downpayments of 15% to 20% are
usually required, payable in 6 months up to 2 years. Balance of 80% is paid
through installment with interest rates ranging from 14% to 16% with average term
of 1 to 10 years.

ii. Condominiums
The condominium projects of the Registrant are located in strategic locations near

existing horizontal developments. The Registrant has completed four (4)
residential condominiums since year 2007 while it currently has one (1) ongoing
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condominium project, the Neopolitan Condominium in Fairview, Quezon City.
The usual required downpayment ranges from 15% to 20%, payable in 2 to 3
years. Balance of 80% is paid through installment with interest rates ranging from
14% to 16% with average term of 1 to 10 years.

1i. Condotels

Condotel projects are condominium units being sold to individual buyers but are
managed and operated as a hotel. There is an option for the unit buyers to purchase
a condominium unit or a Condotel unit. A Condotel unit will be placed under a
rental program initially for 15 years where it is rented out like a typical hotel room.
An experienced management company, with common shareholders and directors
as SLI, handles all operations, maintenance, and management of the units under the
rental program. Rental income from the units is shared between the Registrant and
the unit owners, where the Registrant usually receives at least 30% of net rental
income. The Condotel buyer is not offered any guaranteed return on the rental of
this condominium unit or even that it will be leased out at all. Average selling
prices per unit range from Php72,000 to Phpl00,000 per sq. m. with required
downpayments of 20%, payable in two to three years while the balance can be paid
in five to ten years. In addition, under the Registrant’s revenue sharing program,
unit owners get 30 complimentary room nights per year which are transferrable
across all the Registrant’s hotels and Condotels in the Philippines.

The SEC had opined in previous opinions that the sale, management, pooling and
sharing of revenues from the operation of condotels thru a contract offered to
condotel buyers may be viewed as an investment contract. Investment contracts are
likened to contracts for the sale of a security, which requires prior registration with
the SEC before the same are sold or offered for sale or distribution in the
Philippines. In the decisions and opinions promulgated, the SEC concluded that
condotel projects are arrangements that have all the elements of an investment
contract, namely: (i} an investment of money; (i) in a common enterprise; (iii)
with expectation of profits; and (iv) primarily from efforts of others. As such, the
SEC has issued orders directing several real estate companies offering condotel
projects to immediately cease and desist from further offering, soliciting, or
otherwise offering or selling condotel units to the public without the required SEC
registration.

One such order by the SEC was challenged by a real estate developer in a case
before the Court of Appeals ("CA"). The case questioned the validity of the SEC's
ruling that the sale of the condotel units qualified as a sale of securities. The CA, in
its Decision dated 01 June 2013, held that the transaction did not constitute an
investment contract as the element of “investment of money” was lacking in such
project. The CA ruled that unit buyers pay their monies for the purpose of
acquiring ownership of the property, not for the purpose of engaging in the
business of renting out of units. Thus, the CA annulled the SEC's order against the
real estate company to cease from further selling or offering its condotel units. This
was later affirmed by CA in its 28 November 2013 Resolution.

On 18 November 2016, however, the Supreme Court (“SC”) reversed and set aside
the CA’s Decision and Resolution. However, the SC did not make a definitive
determination as to whether the sale of the condotels under the “leaseback” or
“moneyback”™ schemes is indeed an investment contract or a sale of securities.
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Instead, the SC based its decision on a legal principle requiring all parties to such a
case to “exhaust all administrative remedies” prior to resorting to an appeal. Since
the petitioner failed to exhaust the administrative remedies available to it, an
appeal was the incorrect remedy. The petitioner has filed a motion for
reconsideration in the SC case. The Registrant will continue to monitor the
progress of the case while studying its options relative to the SC’s decision. Rest
assured that the Registrant will respect the final outcome of the SC case and the
regulators. As of now, the Registrant is not aware of any further announcement or
communication from the SEC on the matter.

2. Commercial Properties
a. Mall
Existing Mall

The SLEGM is a comprehensive commercial, entertainment, and leisure facility
with a full range department store, supermarket, movie theater, fast food chains,
bookstore, specialty boutiques for clothing, accessories, telecommunication, and hobby
stores. The SLEGM 1s comprised of three four-storey buildings with a GFA of 180,000
sg.m and is located at Marcos Highway cor. Felix Ave., Cainta, Rizal. The current mall
has a 115,492 sqm. gross leasable space of which 110,121 sgm. or 95.35% are being
leased to 453 tenants. This business serves to complement the needs of the residential
communities that the Registrant has built in the cities of Pasig, Marikina, and in the
various towns of the Rizal province.

Expansion Mall

The expansion mall of the Registrant called Il Centro opened in 2014 and is
comprised of a three-storey building with a GFA of 50,000 sqm. and a net leasable area of
12,600 sqm. The mall has a 20,000 sqm. parking to cater to residential and mall clients.

Principal Tenants

The Registrant’s diverse mix of tenants includes those engaged in the business of
services, retail, leisure, food, apparel, and novelty. The Registrant’s significant tenants
include the following:

1. Services: BDO Unibank, David’s Salon, Bench Fix Salon, Ricky Reyes
2. Retail: Abenson, CD-R King, National Bookstore

3. Leisure: Worlds of Fun, Sta. Lucia Cinema, Sta. Lucia Bowling

4. Food: Bonchon, Dunkin Donuts, Jollibee, Mang [nasal, Starbucks

5. Apparel: Bench, Folded and Hung, Giordano, Lee, Converse

6. Novelty: Comic Alley, Blue Magic, Papemelroti

Aside from the tenants mentioned above, the SLEGM also has major tenants
controlled by or in which one or more of the Group’s shareholders have a significant
interest. These include Home Gallery, Planet Toys, SLE Cinema, and SLE Bowling. The
top 3 business activities taking up the Registrant’s leasable area are services, leisure, and
retail. In terms of contribution to rental income, retail activities contribute the majority to
the Registrant’s rental income, followed by service and food activities.
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Lease Terms

The lease payments that the Registrant receives from its retail tenants are usually
based on a combination of fixed and/or variable payments. Rents are typically based on
basic rental fee per sq. m. in addition to a turnover component of 1.5% to 8% of gross
sales, subject to a monthly minimum rental fee per sq. m. and annual escalation rates.
Tenants are also usually charged air conditioning, common use service areas, pest control,
electricity, and marketing support fees. Lease terms range from one month to five years
with renewal clauses.

Management of the Mall

Management and operation of the malls, including planning, development, tenant
mix preparation, budgeting, maintenance, engineering, security, leasing, marketing,
promotions, billing, and collections are handled by Sta. Lucia East Commercial
Corporation (“SLECC?”), a related company owned by the shareholders of the Group.

Beginning 01 October 2014, all lease payments from the mall tenants are now paid
to and in the name of the Registrant. SLECC continues to provide management and
operations services for the SLEGM and will receive management fees equivalent to a
fixed percentage of revenues. The Registrant’s board of directors approved the
implementatton of this new arrangement effective 01 October 2014. The Registrant
believes that this move can be expected to improve the Registrant’s lease revenues.

b. Commercial Lots

A portion of the Registrant’s revenues also come from sales of commercial lots. In
2013, the Registrant converted some of its commercial lots for sale info commercial lots
for lease. The commercial properties of the Registrant are complementary to existing
residential projects and are being offered to existing established retail partners. There are a
total of 928 commercial lots covering 95 h.a. adjacent to the Registrant’s projects
nationwide. There is an allocation for an average commercial space ranging from 300 to
2,000 sq. m. in a majority of the Registrant’s projects. The Registrant intends to expand its
retail portfolio by offering these commercial properties via 3 main options: (i) outright sale
of the commercial lots, (i1) lease of the commercial lot to retailers, and (111) building of the
Registrant’s own malls in these commercial properties and leasing it to retaifers.

3. Services
a. Housing / Construction

The Registrant has recently ventured into housing construction services through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, SLHI. In addition to “build-and-sell”, the Registrant’s business
model will focus on the provision of access to and assistance in connection with general
construction services to its lot buyers. SLHI began operating in 2014 in order to service
the needs of lot buyers who would like to have their own house constructed on their
previously bought lots but are not familiar with the process (i.e. securing permits,
construction, accessing financing, etc.) and with assurance of reliability from an
established brand name. The price of the house construction services range from
Php22,500 per sqm. to Php28,000 per sqm. Payment terms require a 20% downpayment
that is payable up to 6 months, with the balance payable up to 10 to 15 years through bank
financing.
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b. Marketing

The Registrant 1s currently conducting marketing services through its subsidiary
SVI as well as through six other brokers namely: Royal Homes Marketing Corporation,
Orchard Property Marketing Corp., Mega East Properties Inc., Asian Pacific Realty &
Brokerage Corp., Fil-Estate Group of Companies Sta. Lucia Global Inc., and SantalLucia
Ventures, Inc..

c. Sale on installiment

Around 90% of the Registrant’s customers avail of the sale on installment facilities
with interest rates ranging from 14% to 16% per annum and a 20% downpayment with the
balance payable from 5 to 10 years.

C. Distribution Methods of the Products

The Registrant has at its disposal the expertise of seven (7) different marketing
arms, five (5) of whom work exclusively with the Sta. Lucia Group, namely: Royale
Homes Marketing Corp., Orchard Property Marketing Corp., Mega East Properties Inc.,
Sta. Lucia Global Inc. and SantalLucia Ventures, Inc. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Registrant. These marketing firms have a combined local and international sales
force of over 120,000, with an extensive knowledge of local demographics. These
marketing companies employ various media to promote the Registrant such as print
advertisements in newspapers, online media (such as Facebook, Instagram, Youtube,
Twitter), celebrity endorsers, and brokers.

D. Competition

The residential market is still a highly under-served market with the housing
backlog projected to reach 5.6 million by 2030 (myproperty.ph). In this segment, the
Registrant considers Vista Land and Filinvest Land, Inc. as its competitors. The Registrant
believes that the strengths of these competitors lie in their larger landbank holdings and
historically, their ability to access funding through the capital markets.

[n order to effectively compete, the Registrant has long adopted the strategy of
focusing on the provincial areas that are largely ignored and under-served by its bigger
competitors whose projects have, until recently, been concentrated in Metro Manila which
is already congested and near saturation. SLI is present in ten regions across the country.
The Registrant believes that sustained growth will come from the provinces and major
cities outside of Metro Manila and have therefore prioritized establishing its presence
there. The Registrant believes that its expertise and knowledge in these areas will prove
significant as it continues to expand its property footprint in these largely under-served
areas. The Registrant will continue using its sales force, to target a specific customer
segment in specific geographic locations. Once identified, potential clients are reached
through aggressive advertising and personalized sales services, including after sales
support. Such services include assistance in documentation and facilitating access to
credit. Its capability to reach out to different locations is made possible through its vast
marketing channels, which, by sheer number of sales agents, are able to capture a good
portion of the market. Its international offices also make it possible to move closer to
markets it serves offshore. Open houses, discounts and promotion are some of the
marketing tools the Registrant employs as part of its sales and marketing strategy.
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With respect to the mall business, SM Prime and Robinsons Retail are considered
as the main competitors of the Registrant. Although SLEGM was one of the first malls in
the Cainta area, competition has emerged in recent years as new malls were developed by
its peers. Despite this however, the Registrant continued to generate healthy cash flows,
retain tenants and even engage newer ones. Its prime location, being located in a major
intersection along a major thoroughfare, along with the variety of its affiliated and
independent retailers which afford its customers more varied choices and the continuous
improvements in both facilities and services have enabled SLEGM to hold its own in this
highly competitive retail market.

E. Suppliers

The Registrant has a broad base of local suppliers and is not dependent on one or
limited number of suppliers.

F. Customers

The Registrant has a broad market base including local and foreign individuals and
does not have a customer who/which accounts for twenty percent (20%) or more of the
Registrant’s sales.

G. Government Approvals/Regulations

The Registrant, as part of the normal course of business, secures various
government approvals such as lcenses to sell, development permits and the like.

H. Environmental Compliance

The Registrant has made efforts to meet and exceed all statutory and regulatory
standards on environmental compliance in its normal course of business. In keeping with
the Registrant’s commitment to sustainable development, all projects are assessed for their
environmental impact and, where applicable, are covered by an Environmental
Compliance Certificate (ECC) issued by the Department of Environment and Natural
Resources prior to construction or expansion. To date, the Registrant is compliant with
relevant environmental regulations.

I. Transactions with Related Parties

The Parent Company in its regular conduct of business has entered into
transactions with related parties. Parties are considered to be related if, among others, one
party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party in making financial
and operating decisions, the parties are subject to common control or the party is an
associate or a joint venture. Except as otherwise indicated, the outstanding accounts with
related parties shall be settled in cash and net receivable or payable balance per related
party. The transactions are made at terms and prices agreed-upon by the parties.

a. The Parent Company, in the normal course of business, has transactions with
the Ultimate Parent Company consisting of non-interest bearing advances for
working capital requirements with no fixed repayment terms. These are
transactions and related receivable arising from sale of lots to Ultimate Parent
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Company. Outstanding receivables from such sales amounted to P1.54 million
as of 31 December 2017.

Other transactions with the Ultimate Parent Company include noninterest-
bearing cash advances for various charges for reimbursements of expenses on
gasoline consumption of service vehicles, repairs and maintenance, supplies,
rentals for project exhibits and advertising/marketing costs. This pertains to
the monthly amortization payment from the buyers of the Parent Company
collected by the Ultimate Parent Company due to be remitted to the Parent
Company.

In 2014, SLLI and SLRDI entered into several memorandums of agreements
wherein SLLI undertakes the development and marketing of the several
projects of SLRDI and has assumed the position of the development contractor
and marketing arm. In consideration of the services rendered by SLLI,SLRDI
has agreed to the following:

e Colinas Verdes Bulacan Project - SLRDI has entered into a joint venture
agreement with Araneta Properties, Inc. (API) for a proceeds sharing
agreement of 60% SLRDI -40% API share. The Parent Company shall be
entitled to 75% of SLRDI’s share in all the income and share in the
proceeds joint venture and 12% marketing fee on the gross selling price of
all sales made from the project;

e Green Meadows lloilo Project - SLRDI has entered into a joint venture
agreement with AFP-Retirement and Separation Benefits System (ARSBS)
for a lot sharing agreement of 55% SLRDI - 45% ARSBS share. The Parent
Company shall be entitled to 75% of SLRDI’s share in of all the income
from the lot share in the joint venture and 12% marketing fee on the gross
selling price of all sales made from the project;

e Ponte Verde Davao Project- SLRDI has entered into a joint venture
agreement with Green Sphere Realty Corporation (GSRC) for a lot sharing
agreement of 60% SLRDI - 40% GSRC share. The Parent Company shall
be entitled to 75% of SLRDI’s share in of all the income from the lot share
in the joint venture and 12% marketing fee on the gross selling price of all
sales made from the project; and

o Valle Verde Davao Project - SLRDI has entered into a joint venture
agreement with GSRC for a lot sharing agreement of 60% SLRDI - 40%
GSRC share. The Parent Company shall be entitled to 75% of SLRDI’s
share in of all the income from the lot share in the joint venture and 12%
marketing fee on the gross selling price of ali sales made from the project.

Total proceeds share of SLRDI from the joint operations amounted to P157.70
million and P159.86 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively. The share
amounting P63.57 million and P65.08 million are still to be remitted or offset
against the receivable from SLRDI as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016, respectively.
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d. Effective 01 October 2014, SLLI directly entered into lease agreements with
mall tenants. SLECC and SLLI, on the other hand entered into a management
services agreement effective 01 October 2014 wherein SLECC will provide
property management and business development services, leveraging ifs
knowledge in the mall operations from the past years. In exchange of SLECC’s
services, SLLI shall pay SLECC a management fee equivalent to 7% of the
gross rental revenue for managing mall operations including, repairs and
maintenance and collection of space rental from storeowners or tenants.

These are receivable from affiliates which are tenants of the mall

e. The Parent Company made cash advances for pre-operating costs for various
expenses like registration fees, taxes and licenses fees to its marketing arm.

The advances amounted to nil and P0.57 million in 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

f. The Parent Company made noninterest-bearing cash advances to officers and
directors which will be liquidated upon completion of the business transaction.

These advances amounted to P9.96 million and P14.50 rmillion in 2018 and
2017, respectively.

g. The Parent Company made cash advances to SVI to be used for various
administrative and operating expenses.

These advances amounted to P59.00 million and P33.83 million in 2018 and
2017, respectively.

h. The Parent Company made advances from SLHI to be used for various
administrative and operating expenses.

These advances amounted to nil and P0.09 million in 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

As of 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group has not made any provision for
ECL relating to amounts owed by related parties. There have been no
guarantees and collaterals provided or received for any related party
receivables or payables. These accounts are noninterest-bearing and are
generally unsecured. This assessment of the Group is undertaken each financial
year by examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates.

J. Intellectual Property

The Registrant intends to register its own patents, trademarks, copyrights, licenses
or franchises, concessions and royalties, which shall be taken up with the Board in the
forthcoming meetings. At present, no government approvals are needed for the
Registrant’s principal products or services.



K. Present Employees

The Registrant has 115 officers, employees and contractuals. The Registrant has
embarked to support the increasing demand of workforce for its increasing operations.
Hence it anticipates to increase additional employees for the next ensuing year though no
exact number of employees is assumed.

The Registrant provides annual salary increases based on the performance. This is
made through regular performance assessment and feedback.

L. Development Activities

Currently, the Registrant is developing a number of vertical and horizontal
projects. In addition, there are a lot of future projects that the Registrant has planned to
compete to the market demand and real estate industry. The projects that presently have
developmental activities are as follows:

Completed Projects:

Grand Villas Bauan

Splendido Taal Tower 1 and Tower 2
Villa Chiara

Luxurre Residences

East Bel Air |

South Grove Davao

Neopolitan Condominium 1

Pueblo Del Sol Phl

Mesilo Nueva Vida

Vistamar Estate

Sierra Vista Residential Estate Ph2 A

Alta Vista de Subic

Davao Riverfront

Glenrose Park Cebu

Lakewood Cabanatuan
Metropoli Residenza de Libis
Monte Verde Executive Village

Palo Alto Phl

Rizal Technopark

South Pacific Golf and Leisure Estate
Palm Coast Marina Bayside
Greenwoods Pasig

Greenwoods Executive PhOE

Sta. Barbara Royale Ph1A
Nottingham Villas Townhouse 5A-5D
and 6-7

Green Meadows lioilo Phl

Rizal Technopark Ph2F

La Mirada Tower |

La Breza Tower

Greenland Antipolo

Green Meadows Tarlac

Stradella (formerly East Bel-Air 2)
Sta. Lucia Residenze 1 - Monte Carlo
Sugarland Estates

Pueblo Del Sol Ph2

Greenland Newtown Ph2B

Glenrose Taytay

Alta Vista Residential Estate and Golf
Course

Costa Verde Cavite

Eagle Ridge

Greenwoods South

Metropolis Greens

Manville Royale Subdivision
Neopolitan ~ Garden  Condominium
Pinewoods

Pinewoods

Southfield Executive Village
Caliraya Springs

Tagaytay Royale

Sta. Lucia East Grand Mall

Beverly Place PhOH

Summerhills Ph4

Sotogrande Ph2

Costa Del Sol Iloile
Greenland Cainta Ph4J1, 8A1, §B3 and
9B
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Greenland Cainta Ph9C, 3B, 3B1-2 and Arterra Residences

4C1-2

On — Going Projects:

La Huerta Calamba

Green Meadows Dasmarinas Ph2
and Ph2A

Greenland Newtown Ph2C

Ponte Verde Davao Ph1-Ph3

Green Meadows lloilo Ph2
Greenland Cainta Ph4J1, 8AT1, 8B3
and 9B

Greenwoods  Executive PhlA2,
2A1, 2K1 and 3A2

Greenwoods  Executive Ph8AS,
8F3-5 and 8G1

Nottingham Townhouse Villas 9-11
Althea Davao

Sotogrande Davao

Sotogrande lloilo

Orchard Tower [

Woodside Garden Village Ph2C
South Spring Laguna

Harbor Spring Condotel

Golden Meadows Binan Ph02C and
Ph02D

Metropolis East Binangonan
Catalina Lake Residences Batangas

El Pueblo Verde

La Alegria Negros Occidental
Monte Verde Royale Ph 3B and
4A-4C

Orchard Residential Estate Ph1A2
Sotogrande Ph3

Green Peak Heights Palawan
Cambridge Place PhlA

Green Meadows Condominium
Haciende Verde lloilo

Lakewood Los Banos Ph4
Nottingham Viilas Iloilo
Nottingham Villas Tagaytay
Seville Davao

Villa Verde East Ph3

Green Meadows Iloilo Ph2

Future Projects:

Splendido Tower 3
Splendido Tower 4

Greenwoods North Ph2 and Ph3
Summerhills 4A and 4B

Valle Verde Davao

Colinas Verdes Ph3, 3A and 3B

Greenland Cainta Ph9C, 3B, 3B1-2 and 4C1-2
Arterra Residences

Greenwoods Executive Ph540, 6, 6S9 and 8A2
Greenwoods Executive Ph9D! and 9F

East Bel-Air 3

Sta. Lucia Residenze — Sanforini Sotogrande
Katipunan

Sotogrande Katipunan

Neopolitan 2

Vermont Park Executive Ph1E and 41

Summit Point Golf And Residential Estate
Rockville Cavite

Green Peak Heights Phi-3

Almeria Verde Dagupan

Aqua Mira Resorts

Catalina Lake Residences Palawan Green
Ridge Executive Ph4A

Green Ridge Executive Ph4A

Metropolis lloilo Ph2

Nasacosta Cove Batangas

Palo Alto Ph2

Soler Mandug Davao

Costa Verde Alangilan

Centro Polis Davao
Greenwoods South Ph4A and 6
Las Colinas Davao

Marbella Davao

Nottingham Villas Palawan
Rizal Technopark 2 Sec. 1, 2D1 and 2H
South Coast

Woodrndge lloilo

Neopolitan Tower 7
Neopolitan Tower 8
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La Mirada Tower 2 Valle Verde Cebu

Sta. Lucia Residenze Tower 3 Orchard Tower Condotel

Sta. Lucia Residenze Tower 4 Orchard Tower 3

Sta. Lucia Residenze Tower 5 Orchard Tower 4

East Bel-Air 4 Lipa Royale Ph 5

East Bel-Air 5 Green Ridge Expansion Property
FEast Bel-Air 6 Tomas Morato Condotel
Neopolitan Tower 3 Ponte Verde Ph 5

Neopolitan Tower 4 Valley View Ph2A

Neopolitan Tower 5 Ponte Verde Davao Expansion
Neopolitan Tower 6 Greenwoods Executive Expansion
Neopolitan Tower 7 South Spring Expansion

Greenmeadows Ph 1 A and B

On 19 January 2009 at its Executive Committee Meeting, the Registrant resolved
to enter into a joint venture agreement with Royale Homes Realty and Dev’t., Inc. for the
development of Antipolo Greenland Phase II, Mr. Antonio C. Rivilla for Greenmeadows
Tarlac, Great Landho, Inc. for Sugarland, Darmoc Realty and Dev’t. Corp. for South Coast,
and Surfield Dev’t. Corp., Boyd Dev’t. Corp., and Paretti Dev’t. Corp. for La Panday
Prime Property.

On 12 February 2010, the Executive Committee of the Registrant resolved to sign
the joint venture agreement with Mr. John Gaisano et. al. for the development of several
parcels of land in Matina Crossing, Davao which have a total area of 162,140 square
meters known as the Costa Verde Subdivision.

On 04 August 2010, the Executive Committee of the Registrant resolved to
approve the joint venture agreement with General Milling Corporation (GMC) with a
132,065 square meter property located in the old and new Bridge of Mactan I[sland to
Cebu proper. Also, a second joint venture with spouses Gloria-Sulit-Lenon of a piece of
property located in San Mateo, Rizal with an area of 34, 703 square meters. Lastly, the 31
joint venture agreement with SJ properties, Joseph O. Li et. al. to develop a 102,477
square meter property in Kaytitinga, Alfonso, Cavite was approved.

On [7 September 2010, at the Special Meeting of the Registrant’s Board of
Directors, the Board resolved to enter a joint venture agreement with San Ramon
Holdings, Inc. for the development of a parcel of land located in Canlubang, Calamba,
Laguna.

On 07 February 2011 at the meeting of the Executive Committee, the Registrant
approved the joint venture agreement among Sept. Company Inc (SCI), Antonio Rivilla,
and the Registrant, to develop parcel of land situated Barrio San Antonio Abagon &
Poblacion Municipality of Gerona, Tarlac with a total area of 155,153 sq m into a
residential and commercial subdivision.

On 09 February 2011 at the meeting of the Executive Comimittee, the Registrant
has entered into a joint venture agreement with Sta. Lucia Realty and Development, Inc.
for a development of a commercial subdivision located in Barrio of Dumuclay, Batangas
City. In addition, the Registrant also entered a joint venture agreement with Anamel
Builders Corporation (ABC) to develop a parcel of land owned by ABC located in the City

43



of Gapan Nueva Ecija, with an aggregate area of 136,059 square meters in a residential
subdivision.

On 16 March 2011 at the meeting of the Executive Committee, the Registrant
approve the joint venture agreement between First Batangas Industrial Park Inc. to develop
several parcels of land situated in the Brgys. of Manghinao and Balayong Bauan, Batangas
with an aggregate area of 538,138 sq m.

In the Executive Committee meeting held on 20 October 2011, the Registrant
entered into a joint venture agreement with Rexlon Realty Group Inc. to develop a parcel
of land in Brgy. Kaybiga, Caloocan City into a residential subdivision, with an aggregate
area of 5,550 sq m.

In the Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held
immediately after the Annual Stockholder’s Meeting on 29 June 2012, the Board of
Directors authorized the Registrant to enter into joint venture agreements with Royale
Homes Realty and Development Corporation with respect to the development of certain
properties located in Brgy. Pasong Matanda, Cainta Rizal and Brgy. Sta. Ana Taytay,
Rizal, with Melissa Ann L. Hechanova, Maria Angela M. Labrador, and Vivian M.
Labrador for the development of a parcel of land situated in Brgy. Cabangan, Subic,
Zambales, with Rapid City Realty & Development Corporation with respect to the
development of properties in Antipolo City and the Municipalities of Baras, Tanay,
Teresa, Province of Rizal.

On 04 October 2012 at the Special Meeting of the Executive Committee, the
Registrant was authorized to enter into joint venture agreements with the following:

[. Trillasun Realty and Development Corporation, with respect to the
development of certain properties in Brgy. Dumoclay, Batangas City;

2. Sta. Lucia Realty and Development, Inc., with respect to the
development of certain parcels of land in Taytay, Rizal and Bario
Mendez, Tagaytay City;

3. Royale Homes Realty and Development, Inc., with respect to the
development of properties in Imus, Cavite;

4. Carlos Antonio S. Tan and Mark Davies S. Santos, with respect to the
development of certain properties in Cainta, Rizal;

5. Tema SB. Ignacio-Tapan, with respect to the development of certain
properties in Cainta, Rizal; and

6. MFC Holdings Corporation, with respect to the development of
properties in Brgy. Telotolo, Consolacion, Cebu.

At the special meeting of the Board of Directors held on 12 December 2012 at the
principal office of the Registrant, the Registrant was authorized to enter into joint venture
agreements with various parties with respect to the expansion of various existing projects,
involving the following properties:

1. A parcel of land with an area of 29,950 sq m situated in Brgy. Ampid,
San Mateo, Rizal;

2. A parcel of Jand with an area of 72,767 sq m situated in Barrio Lapit,
Urdaneta City, Pangasinan; and

3. A parcel of land with an area of 8,906 square meters situated in Barrio
Muzon, Angono, Rizal.
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Also, the registrant was authorized to acquire the following properties:

1.
2.
3.

A parcel of land with an area of 1,230 sqm in Quezon City;
A parcel of land in Barrio Inosluban, Buclanin, Lipa, 7,895 sqm; and
A parcel of land in Mexico, Pampanga, 61,486 sqm.

At the Special Meeting of the Registrant’s Board of Directors held on 18 April
2013, the following resolutions on entering to Joint Ventures and acquiring parcels of land
were discussed and approved:

1.

2.

For the development of a parcel of land located in Davao City owned
by Greensphere Realty & Development Corp.;

For the expansion of the Registrant’s project known as Palo Alto,
located in Tanay, Rizal, involving parcels of land owned by Sta. Lucia
Realty and Development, Inc. and Milestone Farms, Inc.;

For the expansion of the Registrant’s project known as Rizal Techno
Park, located in Taytay, Rizal, involving parcels of land owned by
Royal Homes Realty & Development Corporation and JFG
Construction and Development Services with an aggregate area of
[0,100 square meters;

For the expansion of the Registrant’s project known as Greenwoods
Executive Village, located in Pasig City, involving a parcel of land
owned by St. Botolph Development Corp. with an area of 5,558 square
meters;

For the expansion of the Registrant’s project known as Cainta
Greenland, located in Cainta, Rizal, involving a parcel of land owned
by Sta. Lucia Realty and Development, Inc. with an area of 5,019.5
square meters;

Seven parcels of land located at Barangay San Juan, Taytay, Rizal, with
an aggregate area of 4,865.49 square meters, owned by Canmnencita M.
Estacio, Adela O. Leyca, Manuel Medina, Lucia M. Del Rosario, Ireneo
0. Medina, Leopoldo O. Medina, and Bonifacio O. Medina; and

A parcel of land located in Lipa, Batangas with an area of 7,895 square
meters, owned by Benito Magaling and Divina Tupaz.

On 01 April 2014, the Board approves a resotution authorizing the Registrant to
enter into joint ventures involving the development of a new project located in Cebu with
an area of 537,011 sq.m and to amend the Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant to
extend the corporate term by 50 years together with the following:

A. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

I.
2.
3.
4.

Parcel of land at Sun City Expansion, Davao, 24,578 sqm;
Parcel of land in Golden Meadows Sta. Rosa, 51,500 sqm;
Parcel of [and located in Greenwoods Batangas, 32,312sqm; and
Parcel of [and in Lipa Royale, Batangas, 9,421 sqm.

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter in joint ventures involving the

following:

I.

Development of Rizal Techno Park Taytay, 10,100 sqm;



2. Development of a new project in Puerto Princesa, 20,000 sqm;
Development of land in Palawan, 61,315sqm;

Development of parcel of land located in Greenwoods South,
32,314sqm;

Expansion in Davao, 9,84 1sqm;

Development of new project in Cebu, 537,01 1sqm,

Development of project in Davao, 36,913sqm; and

Development of project on Ponte Verde, Davao, 28,000sqm.

B
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On 01 July 2014, resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following
parcels of land were approved by the Executive Committee:

1. Parcel of land in Batangas City, 9315.5 sqm;
2. Parcel of land in Batangas City, 3,087 sqm; and
3. Parcel of land in Taytay, 6,302 sqm.

Further, a resolution was passed to authorize the Registrant to enter into a joint
venture for the development of a new project in Dagupan Pangasinan, 77,001 sqm.

On 21 April 2015, the following were resolutions authorizing the Registrant to
enter into joint ventures involving the following:

1. Development of a project located in Ponte Verde, Davao with an area of
36,915 sq.m.;

2. Development of a new project located in Eden, Davao City with an area
0f 985,292 sq.m.;

3. Development of another project in Ponte Verde, Davao with an area of

28,751 sq.m.;

4. Development of a new project in Cainta, Rizal with an area of 16,026
sq.m.;

5. Development of new project in Taytay, Rizal with an area of 8,318
sq.m.;

6. Development of seven (7) new projects located in Barrio San Miguel,
Pasig City with an aggregate area of 8,423 sq.m.;

7. Development of a new project in Bauan, Batangas with an area of
246,653 sq.m.;

8. Development of a new project in Binangonan, Rizal with an area of
24,492 .62 sq.m.;

9. Development of a new project in Sta. Rosa, Laguna with an area of
27,500 sq.m.; and

10. Development of a new project in Barrio Pasong Matanda,
Cainta, Rizal with an area of 51,969 sq.m.

The Registrant also resolved to purchase the following lands:

1. Parcel of land located at Sun City expansion, Davao with an area of
24,578 sq.m. for the expansion of the current project development;

2. Parcels of land located in Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with a total
area of 337,715 sq.m.; and

3. Parcel of land located in Jaro, lloilo City with an area of 7,500 sq.m.
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Further, at the Annual Stockholders Meeting of the Registrant held on 19 June
2015, the following resolutions anthorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures and
land acquisitions were authorized:

1.

2.

Al SO AN g

Development of a project located in San Juan Cainta with an area of
8,697 sqm

Development of a new project in Brgy. Tagburos Puerto Princesa
Palawan with an area of 12,000

Development of new project in Tagaytay with an area of 178,397 sqm
Development of new project in Jaro Iloilo with an area of 12,000sqm
Development of new project in Davao with an area of 43,137 sqm
Parcels of land located in Cainta Rizal with a n area of 10,110 sqm
Parcels of land located in San Juan Taytay with a n area of 893sqm
Parcels of land located in Inosluban Lipa with an area of 9,421 sqm
Parcels of land located in Dasmarinas Cavite with an area of 100,000
sqm

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 23
September 2015 at East-Bel Air Residences Clubhouse, Felix Ave, Cainta, Rizal, the
following resolutions were discussed and approved:

A. Authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving the following:

1.

2.

Development of 3 projects located in Brgy. Sta. Ana, Taytay, Rizal with
an aggregate area of 18,104 sq.m.;

Development of a new project located in Brgy. Mahabang Sapa, Cainta,
Rizal with an area of 17,352 sq.m.;

Development of 4 projects located in Brgy. San Juan, Cainta, Rizal with
an aggregate area of 24,753 sq.m.;

Development of a project in Cainta, Rizal with an area of 4,424 sq.m.;
Development of a project in Brgy. Pag-asa, Binangonan, Rizal with an
area of 28,535.62 sq.m.;

Development of 2 projects located in Bo. of Tuctucan and Panginay,
Guiguinto, Bulacan with an aggregate area of 40,286 sq.m.;
Development of a project in Bo. Sinalhan, Sta. Rosa, Laguna with an
area of 27,500 sq.m.; and

Development of a project in Brgy. Quirino, Quezon City with an area of
1,100 sq.m.

B. Authorizing the Registrant to acguire the following:

1.

2.

Parce] of land located in Bo. Canigaran, Puerto Princesa City with an
area of 6,358 sq.m.;

Parcels of land located in Barrio dela Paz, Bifian, Laguna with a total
area of 15,484 sq.m.; and

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Panapaan, Bacoor, Cavite with an area
of 370 sq.m.

At a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 03
February 2016 at the principal office of the Registrant the following were discussed and

approved:
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A. Authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving the following:

1.

2.

Development of a project located in Pavia and Manduriao, lloilo City
with an area of 688,477 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Bo. Sacsac, Cebu with an area of
33,848 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Bauan, Batangas with an area of
84,339 .m.;

Development of a project located in Bo. Dela Paz, Bifian, Laguna with
an area of 13,700 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Sto. Tomas, Batangas with an area
of 37,746 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Binangonan, Rizal with an area of
28,535.62 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Dasmarifias, Cavite with an area of
44,692 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Bo. Mayamot, Antipolo City with
an area of 8,471 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Brgy. Sta. Ana, Taytay, Rizal with
an area of 7,725 sq.m.

B. Authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

10.

1.

12.

13.

Parcel of land located in Cavite with an area of 34,382 sq.m ;

Parcel of land located in Bo. dela Paz, Bifian, Laguna with an area of
10,322 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Sinalhan, Sta. Rosa, Laguna with an area
of 5,500 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Santolan, Pasig City with an area of 1,977.50
$Q.1m.;

21 parcels of land located in Calamba, Laguna with a total aggregate
area 0f 315,361.97 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in n San Antonio, Biflan, Laguna with an area of
2,000 sq.m.

Parcel of land located in Dasmarifias, Cavite with an area of 300,000
sq.m.;

11 parcels of land located in Bo. Manghinao I, Bauan, Batangas with a
total aggregate area of 89,942 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of
11,522 sq.m.;

8 parcels of land located in Bauan, Batangas with a total aggregate area
of 85,455 sq.m.;

3 parcels of land located in Binan, Laguna with a total aggregate area of
16,622 sq.m.;

2 parcels of [and located in Matinao, Polomolok, Gen. Santos City with
a total aggregate area of 95,579 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Iruhin, Tagaytay City with an area of
299 sq.m.

On 17 June 2016, at the Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors, the
following were approved by the Board:
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A. Authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving the following:

1.

2.

4

5.

Development of a project located in Brgy. Tagburos, Puerto Princesa,
Palawan with an area of 187,115.50 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Silay City, Negros Occidental with
an area of 677,880 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Brgy. Sta. Ana, Taytay, Rizal with
an area of 3,053 sq.m.; and

Development of a project located in Bo. Mayamot, Antipolo City with
an arca of 8,471 sq.m.

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

l.

)

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.
20.

21.

Parcels of land located in District of Jaro, lloilo City with a total area of
7,500 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Inosluban, Lipa City, Batangas with an
area of 27,752 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Biflan, Laguna with an area of 13,302 sq.m.;
Parcel of land located in Bo. Sinalhan, Sta. Rosa, Laguna with an area
ot 14,814 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Tinigutban, Puerto Princesa, Palawan with
an area of 37,895 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Sta. Barbara, lloilo City with an area of
104,464 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of
11,759 sq.m ;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of
13,464 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of
5,569 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of
14,444 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of
12,933 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of
17,884 sq.m.;

Parcel of'land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of
12,904 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of
15,594 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of
5,166 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of
10,927 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Ulango, Calamba, Laguna with an area
ol 12,688 sq.m ;

Parcel of land located in Binan, Laguna with an area of 3,130 sq.m.;
Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, lloilo City
with an area of 16,832 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City
with an area of 15,781 sq.m.;
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23.
24,
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31,
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.

37.

. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, lioilo City

with an area of 11,628 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Ilotlo City
with an arca of 16,636 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City
with an area of 18,064 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City
with an area of 16,636 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, lloilo City
with an area of 11,595 sq.m..;

Parcel of land located Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, [loilo City with
an area of 96,295 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City
with an area of 40,538 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Pulanbato, Cebu City with an area of
13,819 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Darangan, Binangonan, Rizal with an area
of 29,170 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City
with an area of 11,595 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City
with an area of 96,295 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City
with an area of 40,538 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Bo. Canlalay, Biflan, Laguna with an area of
2,609 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Zamboanga City with an area of 267,657
sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Zamboanga City with an area of 18,600 sq.m.;
and

Parcel of land located in Brgy. Tagburos, Puerto Princesa, Palawan with
an area of 187,115.50 sq.m.

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 23
November 2016 at the principal office of the Registrant, at which meeting a quorum was
present and acting throughout, the following were discussed and approved:

A

Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving
the following:

[.

2.

Development of a project located in Jaro, Iloilo with an area of 96,422
Sq.IM.;

Development of a project located in Batangas with a total area of
119,389 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Cebu City with an area of 12,792
8¢.m.;

Development of a project located in Rizal with a total area of 308,340
sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Davao City with an area of
300,000 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Pasig City with an area of 7,329
$q.m;
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Development of a project located in Nueva Ecija with an area of 98,848
sg.m.; and

8. Development of a project located in Tagaytay City with an area of

29,640 sq.m.
B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

1. Parcel of land located in Jaro, lloilo with a total area of 216,520 sq.m.;

2. Parcel of land located in Baguio City with an area of 9,822 sq.m.;

3. Parcel of land located in Tagaytay City with an area of 21,888 sq.m.;

4. Parcel of land located in Panacan, Davao City with an area of 28,751
§q.m.;

5. Parcels of land located in Calamba with a total area of 107,514 sq.m.;

6. Parcels of land located in Batangas with a total area of 142,677 sq.m.;

7. Parcel of land located in Rizal with an area of 208 sq.m.;

8. Parcel of land located in Quezon with an area of 4,211 sq.m.; and

9. Parcels of land located in Antipolo City with a total area ot 6,072 sq.m.

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 17
February 2017 at the principal office of the Registrant, at which meeting a quorum was
present and acting throughout, the following were discussed and approved

A. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving the

following:
1.
2.
3.
4

5.

Development of a project located in Cebu with a total area of 8,644
sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Davao with a total area of 891,804
$q.1m.;

Development of a project located in Batangas with a total area of
444,769 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Nasugbu, Batangas covering
various titles; and

Development of a project located in Rizal with an area 0of 47,607 sq.m.;

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the followtng:

SN

Parcel of land located in Davao with a total area of 67,695 sq.m.;
Parcel of land located in Batangas with an area of 8,118 sq.m.;
Parcel of land located in Palawan with an area of 3,721 sq.m.;
Parcels of land located in Rizal with a total area of 4,613 sq.m.;
Parcels of land located in Iloilo with a total area of 7,394 sq.m.; and
Parcel of land located in Cavite with an area of 8,848 sq.m..

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 27 April
2017 at the Chot Garden, Greenhills, San Juan City, at which meeting a quorum was
present and acting throughout, the following were discussed and approved:

A. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving the
following:

1.

Development of a project located in Cebu with an area of 8,470 sq.m.;
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6.

7.

Development of a project located in Davao with a total area of 901,804
sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Batangas with an area of 254,836
sq.m.;

Development of a project located in [loilo with a total area of 34,551
sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Rizal with a total area of 15,662
sq.1m.;

Development of a project located in Aurora with an area of 490,173.56
sq.m.; and

Development of a project located in Cavite with an area of 35,054 sq.m.

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

el S e

Parcel of [and located in Cavite with an area of 11,684 sq.m.;
Parcel of land located in Batangas with a total area of 19,309 sq.m.;
Parcel of land located in Davao with a total area of 248,889 sq.m.;
Parcels of land located in Iloilo with an area of 8,527 sq.m.;
Parcels of land located in Rizal with an area of 159,696 sq.m.;

On 22 June 2017, the following resolutions were approved by the Board of

Directors:

A. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving the
following:

1.

Development of a project located in Cavite with an area of 46,739 sq.m.

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

l.
2.

3.

Parcel of land located in Pangasinan with an area of 121,496 sq.m.;
Parcels of land located in Batangas with a total area of 124,677 sq.m.;
and

Parcels of land located in Iloilo with a total area of 58,731 sq.m.

At the Special Meeting of the Executive Committee held on 14 September 2017 at
the principal office of the Registrant, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting
throughout, the following were discussed and approved:

A. Resolution authorizing the Registrant to enter into a joint venture involving the
development of a project located in Palawan with a total area of 212,890 sq.m.;

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

1.

i BESATR

Parcel of land located in Marikina City with a total area of 355,310
sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Quezon City with a total area of' 53,133 sq.m.;
Parcel of land located in Palawan with a total area of 23,461 sq.m.;
Parcel of land located in Batangas with a total area of 31,254 sq.m.;
Parcel of land located in Davao with a total area 0of 22,991 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Laguna with a total area of 17,339.29 sq.m.
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At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 08
January 2018 at its principal oftice, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting
throughout, the following were discussed and approved:

A, Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving
the following;

1. Development of a project located in Baguio City with an area of 1,949
sq.m.;

2. Development of a project located in Bulacan with a total area of
715,410 sq.m.;

3. Development of a project located in Quezon City with an area of 1,560
sq.m.;

4. Development of a project located in Cavite with an area 0f 8,109 sq.m.;

5. Development of a project located in Rizal with a total area of 68,493
sq.m.;

6. Development of a project located in Batangas with an area of 383,069
sq.m.;

7. Development of a project located in Palawan with a total area of
178,762 sq.m.; and

8. Development of a project located in Negros Occidental with an area of
69,000 sq.m.

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

Parcel of land located in Dagupan City with an area of 803 sq.m.;
Parcel of land located in Cavite with an area of 8,109 sq.m.;

Parcels of land [ocated in Laguna with a total area of 62,369 sq.m.;
Parcels of land located in Batangas with a total area of 524,015 sq.m.;
Parcels of land [ocated in Rizal with a total area of 29,465 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Ilotlo with an area of 99,778 sq.m.,

Parcel of land located in Davao with an area of 50,000 sq.m.; and
Parcel of land located in General Santos City with an area of 239,000
$q.m.

Sl S O i e

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 07
February 2018 at its principal office, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting
throughout, the following were discussed and approved:

A Resolution authorizing the Registrant to enter into a joint venture involving

the development of a project located in Pangasinan with an area of
67,176.50 sq.m.;

B. Resolution authorizing the Registrant to acquire a parcel of land located in
Pangasinan with an area of 67,176.50 sq.m.

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 24 April
2018 at its principal office, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting throughout,

the following were discussed and approved:

A. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:
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10.

Parcels of land located in Bauan, Batangas with a total area of 14,870

$q.m.;
Parcels of land located in Carmen, Cebu with a total area of 231,280
sq.m.;

Parcels of land located in Sta. Barbara, Iloilo with a total area of 70,200
Sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Plaridel, Bulacan with an area of 3,155.50
sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in San Mateo, Rizal with an area of 160,003
$q.m.;

Parcel of land located in Puerto Princesa, Palawan with an area of
11,058 sq.m.;

Parcel of land located in Davao City with an area of 50,000 sq.m.;
Parcel of land located in San Pascual, Batangas with an area of 26,008
sq.m.; and

Parcel of land located in Dasmarifias, Cavite with an area of 6,081
sg.m.

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving
the following:

l.

2.

Development of a project located in Mandaue, Cebu with an area of
317,543 sq.m;

Development of a project located in Dagupan, Pangasinan with an area
of 12,328 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Angono, Rizal with an area of
50,532 sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Batangas with an area of 215,481
sg.m.; and

Development of a project located in Dasmarifias, Cavite with an area of
38,431 sq.m.

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 28
September 2018 at its principal office, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting
throughout, the following were discussed and approved:

A. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving the
following:

B.

1.
2.

3.

4.

Development of a project located in Rizal with an area of 18,222 sq.m.;

Development of projects located in Batangas with a total area of 60,621

sq.m.;

Development of a project located in Antipolo City with an area of
51,630 sq.m.; and

Development of a project located in Bulacan with an area of 14,038
sq.m.

Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into a joint venture with Sta.
Lucia Realty & Dev., Inc. and the Armed Forces of the Philippines Retirement
and Separation Benefits System (“AFPRSBS”) for the development of a
project located in Iloilo City with an area of 3,484 sq.m. The same was also
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approved by the Related Party Transactions Committee to ensure the absence
of conflict of interest;

C. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

1.

e

3.
4.
5.

Parcels of land located in Davao del Sur with a total area of 141,642
sq.m.;

Parcels of land located in [oilo with a total area of 121,808 sq.m.;
Parcels of land located in Antipolo with a total area of 266,002 sq.m.;
Parcels of land located in Nueva Ecija with a total area of 207 sq.m.;
Parcels of land located in General Santos City with a total area of
243,168 sq.m.;

Parcels of land located in Rizal with a total area of 183,888 sq.m.

Parcel of land located in Batangas with an area of 11,419 sq.m.; and
Parcel of land located in Laguna with an area of 13,332.60 sq.m.

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 07
December 2018 at 1ts principal office, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting
throughout, the following were discussed and approved:

A. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving the

following:

1. Development of projects located in Iloilo with a total area of 56,483
sq.m.;

2. Development of a project located in Pasig City with an area of 2,106
sq.m.;

3. Development of a project located in Batangas with an area of 2,152
sq.m.;

4. Development of projects located in Bulacan with a total area of 20,349
$q.m.;

5. Development of projects focated in Rizal with a total area of 11,576
sq.m;

6. Development of a project located in Laguna with an area of 15,003
sq.m.; and

7. Development of a project located in Davao del Sur with an area of

37,550 sq.m.

C. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

b b —

Parcels of land located in Palawan with a total area of 128,120 sq.m.;
Parcels of'land located in Batangas with a total area of 787,797 sq.m.;
A parcel of land located in Davao del Sur with an area of 57,928 sq.m.;
Parcels of land located in Cavite with a total area of 16,739 sq.m.; and
A parcel of land located in Laguna with an area of 153,354 sq.m.

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 28
February 2019 at its principal office, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting
throughout, the foliowing were discussed and approved:

A. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving the
following:
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1. Development of a project located in Binangonan, Rizal with an area of
11,212 sq.m.;

2. Development of a project located in Puerto Princesa, Palawan with an
area of 189,369 sq.m.;

3. Development of a project located in Taytay, Rizal with an area of
18,603 sq.m.;

4. Development of a project located in Digos, Davao del Sur with an area
of 37,550 sq.m.; and

6. Development of a project located in Bulacan with an area of 14,038
s$q.1m.

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into a joint venture with Sta.
Lucia Realty & Dev., Inc. for the development of a project located in
Dasmarinas, Cavite with an area of 8,253 sq.m. The same was also approved
by the Related Party Transactions Committee to ensure the absence of conflict
of interest;

C. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

1. Parcels of land located in South Cotabato with a total area of 576,456

5q.mL.;

2. Parcels of Jand located in Bauan, Batangas with a total area of 720,698
sq.m.; and

3. Parcels of land located in Digos, Davao del Sur with a total area of
113,612 sq.m.

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 20
March 2019 at its principal office, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting
throughout, the following were discussed and approved:

A. Resolutions authonzing the Registrant to open bank accounts with China
Banking Corporation for joint venture projects with La Panday Properties
Philippines, Inc.;

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to open bank accounts with BDO
Unibank, Inc. for joint venture projects with La Panday Properties Philippines,
Inc.;

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 07 May
2019 at its principal office, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting throughout,
the following were discussed and approved:

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into joint ventures involving the
following:

1. Development of projects located in Sto. Tomas, Batangas with a total
area of 383,069 sq. m.;

2. Development of projects located in Davao City with a total area of
110,951 sq. m.;

3. Development of projects located in Cavite with a total area of 1,526,899
sq. m.;
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Development of a project located in Cebu with an area of 5,336 sq. m.;
Development of a project located in lloilo with an area of 146,203 sq.
m.;

Development of a project located in Lian, Batangas with an area of
40,242 sq. m.; and

Development of a project located in Bulacan with a total area of 6,311
sq. m.

B. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter into the following joint ventures
with Sta. Lucia Realty & Dev., Inc..

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Development of projects located in Bulacan with a total area of 38,725
;]é\i:iépment of a project located in Batangas with an area of 12,296 sq.
ggvelopment of a project located in Cavite with an area of 29,516 sq.
rl:l)q('a,velopment of a project located in Rizal with an area of 13,721 sq. m.;
]e;ltielopment of a project located in Iloilo with an area of 40,764 sq. m.

The same were also approved by the Related Party Transactions Committee to
ensure the absence of conflict of interest;

C. Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

1.

L)

6.
7.

Parcels of land located in Calamba, Laguna with a total area of 171,204
Q. M.}

Parcels of land located in Davao City with a total area of 45,062 sq. m.;
Parcels of land located in [loilo with a total area of 51,866 sq. m.;
Parcels of land located in Sta. Rosa, Laguna with a total area of 8,151
sq. m.;

Parcel of land located in Negros Oriental with an area of 140,000 sq.
m.;

Parcel of land located in Pasig City with an area of 3,972 sq. m.; and
Parcel of land located in Palawan with an area of 206,919 sq. m.

E. Resolutions autherizing the Registrant to acquire 2,562,490 shares of stock of
Uni-Asia Properties Inc.

The following table shows the expenditures spent on development activities and its
percentage to revenues:

2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012

PROJECT PERCENTAGE TO
EXPENDITURES REVENUES
6,506,089,699 161%
6,006,070,912 163%
3,038,278,074 120%
1,516,058,770 48%
1,472,865,907 65%
1,354,380,768 102%
1,260,833,129 70%
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2011
2010
2009
M. Properties

Real Properties

798,042,139
464,512,282
470,247,597

55%
36%
57%

The following table provides summary information on the Registrant’s land and
other real properties as of 31 December 2018. Properties listed below are wholly owned
and free of liens and encumbrances unless otherwise noted.

NO. LOCATION AREA IN LAND USE REMARKS
SQM
1 Amang Rodriguez, Pasig 10,156 | RESIDENTIAL/
City COMMERCIAL
2 Bacolod City, Bacolod 52, | RESIDENTIAL/
669 | COMMERCIAL
3 Baguio City, Benguet 35,887 | RESIDENTIAL
4 Batangas City, Batangas 23,976 | RESIDENTIAL/
COMMERCIAL
5 Cabanatuan City 94,417 | RESIDENTIAL/
COMMERCIAL
6 Cainta, Rizal 251,856 | RESIDENTIAL/ Mall area
COMMERCIAL covering
98,705 SQM
was
mortgaged to
BDO &
CHINA
BANK
7 Carcar Cebu 4,547 | RESIDENTIAL
8 Cavinti, Laguna 84,980 | RESIDENTIAL
9 Cebu City, Cebu 19,263 | RESIDENTIAL
10 Consolacion, Cebu 15,923 | RESIDENTIAL
11 Dasmarifias, Cavite 24,498
12 Davao City, Davao 197,373 | RESIDENTIAL/
. L COMMERCIAL
13 Dumuclay, Batangas City 71,991 | RESIDENTIAL Residential/
Commercial
area
covering
37,382 SQM
was
mortgaged to
BPI
& BDO
14 Fairview, Quezon City 69,543 | RESIDENTIAL/
COMMERCIAL
15 General Trias, Cavite 85,178 | RESIDENTIAL
16 Ilo-Ilo City, Ilo-Tlo 2,000 | RESIDENTIAL/
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NO. LOCATION AREA IN LAND USE REMARKS
SQM
COMMERCIAL
17 Katipunan, Quezon City 2,000 | RESIDENTIAL/
COMMERCIAL
18 Lapu-Lapu City, Cebu 48,261 | RESIDENTIAL/
COMMERCIAL
19 Libis, Quezon City 11,335 | RESIDENTIAL/
COMMERCIAL
20 Rosario, Cavite 4 897 | RESIDENTIAL/
COMMERCIAL
21 Roxas Blvd, Pasay City 2,5 | RESIDENTIAL/
71 | COMMERCIAL
22 Subic, Zambales 15,685 | RESIDENTIAL
23 Tagaytay City, Cavite 46, | RESIDENTIAL
288
24 Tanay, Rizal 672,934 | RESIDENTIAL
25 Tanay, Rizal 45,275 | RESIDENTIAL
26 Tanuan, Batangas 7,3 | RESIDENTIAL
74
27 Salitran, Dasmariiias Cavite 17,346 | RESIDENTIAL
28 Imus, Cavite L 34,690 | RESIDENTIAL
29 | Lipa, Batangas 7,805 | RESIDENTIAL | B
30 San Andres, Cainta, Rizal 1,0 | RESIDENTIAL
00
31 Bulacnin and Inosluban, 9,421 | RESIDENTIAL 1
Municipality of Lipa o
32 Sta. Rosa, Laguna 27,500 | RESIDENTIAL
33 Barrio Canigaran, Puerto 6,358 | RESIDENTIAL
Princesa
34 Brgy. Muzon, Municipality of 12,446 | RESIDENTIAL
Taytay, Province of Rizal
35 Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, 28,114 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas ]
36 Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, 11,584 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas
37 Bmgy. Balayong, Bauan, 24,788 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas
38 De La Paz, Biian Laguna 5,162 | RESIDENTIAL
39 Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, 9,227 | RESIDENTIAL
~ Batangas
40 Bmgy. Balayong, Bauan, 15,063 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas
41 Brngy. Manghinao [ 12,909 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas
42 Brngy. Manghinao I 9,901 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas
43 Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, 8,151 | RESIDENTIAL

Batangas
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NO. LOCATION AREA IN LAND USE REMARKS
SQM

44 Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, 12,497 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

45 Brmgy. Balayong, Bauan, 17,783 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

46 Brngy. San Antonio Bifian 4,300 | RESIDENTIAL
Laguna

47 Brngy. Isabang, City of 4,211 | RESIDENTIAL
[.ucena, Province of Quezon

48 Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, 12,105 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

49 Bmgy. Manghinao [ 12,603 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas

50 Brmgy. Balayong, Bauan, 10,210 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

51 Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, 9,948 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

52 Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, 1,293 | RESIDENTIAL
Rizal

53 Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, 8§93 | RESIDENTIAL
Rizal

54 Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, 893 | RESIDENTIAL
Rizal ]

55 Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, 893 | RESIDENTIAL
Rizal |

56 Brngy. Manghinao [ 8,282 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas

57 Bamio Pulo, Pasig City 257 | RESIDENTIAL

58 Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, 6,638 | RESIDENTTAL
Batangas B

59 Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, 6,205 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

60 Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, 5,588 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

61 Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, 803 | RESIDENTIAL
Rizal

62 Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, 803 | RESIDENTIAL
Rizal

63 Brgy. San Antonio, 2,000 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bifian,
Province of Laguna

64 Brngy. Manghinao [ 2,807 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas

65 Brngy. Manghinao [ 2,801 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas

66 Brngy. Manghinao | 2,801 | RESIDENTIAL
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NO. LOCATION AREA IN LAND USE REMARKS
SQM

Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas

67 Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, 893 | RESIDENTIAL
Rizal

68 Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, 8§93 | RESIDENTIAL
Rizal

69 Brngy. Pag-asa (Tayuman) 208 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Binangonan,
Province of Rizal _

70 Sta. Ana, Taytay 5,411 | RESIDENTIAL

71 Leonard Wood Road, Baguio 9,822 | RESIDENTIAL
City.

72 Brgy. San Roque, Zamboanga 287,377 | RESIDENTIAL
City

73 Brgy. Pansin, Alfonso, Cavite 22,241 | RESIDENTIAL

74 Barangay Bolbok, Batangas 9.316 | RESIDENTIAL
City, Island of Luzon

75 Sta. Barbara, Iloilo 4,053 | RESIDENTIAL

76 Brgy Dumoclay, Batangas 32,313 | RESIDENTTAL
City

77 Brgy. Manghinao | 6,610 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas

78 Brgy. Balayong, Municipality 7,897 | RESIDENTIAL
of Bauan, Province of
Batangas

79 Brgy. Balayong, Municipality 9,039 | RESIDENTIAL
of Bauan, Province of
Batangas

80 Brgy. Balayong, Municipality 7,519 | RESIDENTIAL
of
Bauan, Province of Batangas

81 Brgy. Mataas na Lupa, San 26,008 | RESIDENTIAL
Pascual, Batangas

82 Brgy. Mataas na Lupa, 21,765 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of San Pascual

83 Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 28,153 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

84 | Barrio of Inosluban, Lipa 27,752 | RESIDENTIAL
City, Batangas

85 Biflan, Laguna 14,302 | RESIDENTIAL

86 San Pascual, Batangas 555 | RESIDENTIAL

&7 San Pascual, Batangas ) 12,600 | RESIDENTIAL

88 San Pascual, Batangas 453 | RESIDENTIAL

g9 Brgy. Manghinao 1, Bauan 18,497 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

90 Brgy. Balayong Bauan 22,320 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

91 Bo. of Inosluban, 18,257 | RESIDENTIAL
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NO. LOCATION AREA IN LAND USE REMARKS
SQM

Municipality of Lipa

92 Municipality of Antipolo, 3,892 | RESIDENTIAL
Province of Rizal

93 Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 18,260 | RESIDENTIAL

B Batangas

94 Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 9,209 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

95 Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 6,679 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas N

96 Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 8,410 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

97 Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 6,563 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

98 Bifian [Laguna 10,322 | RESIDENTIAL ~

99 Brgy. Manghinao [ 13,515 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas

100 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 13,464 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas -

10f | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 13,377 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

102 | Brgy. Manghinao | 11,759 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas

103 | Brgy. Manghinao 1 9,472 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas

104 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 9,523 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

105 | Brgy. Manghinao I 8,898 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of
Bauan, Province of Batangas

106 | Brgy. Manghinao | 8,606 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of
Bauan, Province of Batangas

107 | Canlalay, Municipality of 2,609 | RESIDENTIAL
Biflan, Province of Laguna

108 | Brgy. Manghinao [, 7,723 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of Bauan,
Province of Batangas

109 | Barrio Canlalay, Bifian 3,913 | RESIDENTIAL
Labuna

110 | Brgy. Manghinao I, 7,480 | RESIDENTIAL
Municipality of
Bauan, Province of Batangas

[11 | Brgy Balayong, Bauan, 7,950 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas

112 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 7,073 | RESIDENTIAL

Batangas




NO. LOCATION AREA IN LAND USE REMARKS
SOQM
113 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 6,082 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas
114 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 5,868 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas
115 | Barrio Mayamot, Anitpolo 1,180 | RESIDENTTAL
Rizal
116 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 5,993 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas
117 | Barrio of Mayamot, antipolo 1,000 | RESIDENTIAL
Rizal
118 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauar, 4,547 | RESIDENTIAL
| Batangas ~ .
119 | Bo. Manghinao I, Bauan, 510 | RESIDENTIAL
. Batangas )
120 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 2,812 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas
121 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 2,615 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas
122 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 2,535 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas
123 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 42 954 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL -
124 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 29922 | RESIDENTIAL/
COMMERCIAL
125 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 14,269 | RESIDENTIAL /
- COMMERCIAL ]
126 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 7,134 | RESIDENTIAL /
- o B COMMERCIAL
127 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 56,338 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
128 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 13,312 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
129 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 13,312 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
130 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 16,787 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
131 Olango, Calamba, Laguna 13,312 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
132 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 29,922 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
133 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 9,625 | RESIDENTIAL/
COMMERCIAL
134 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 9,625 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
135 | Olange, Calamba, Laguna 10,872 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
136 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 9,626 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
137 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 0,625 | RESIDENTIAL /
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NO. LOCATION AREA IN LAND USE REMARKS
SQM
COMMERCIAL
138 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 9,625 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
139 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 13,313 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
140 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 6,584 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
141 Olango, Calamba, Laguna 6,585 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
142 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 3,292 | RESIDENTIAL/
COMMERCIAL
143 | Barrio Salitran, Municipality 46,739 | RESIDENTIAL
of Dasmarifias, Province of
Cavite
[44 | Brgy. Balayong, Municipality 29,170 | RESIDENTIAL /
of Bauan, Province of COMMERCIAL
Batangas
145 | Leonard Wood Road, Baguio 0,822 | RESIDENTIAL
City
146 | Brgy. Communal Davao City 24,578 | RESIDENTIAL
147 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 5,697 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
148 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 10,927 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
149 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 8,752 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
150 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 10,180 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
151 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 12,904 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
152 | Province of Cavite 34,382 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
153 | Brgy. Sta. Lourdes, Puerto 3,721 | RESIDENTIAL
Princesa, Palawan
154 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 14,444 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas
155 | Sta. Barbara, Province of 8,527 | RESIDENTIAL
[loilo
156 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 13,634 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
157 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 12,774 | RESIDENTIAL /
| Batangas COMMERCIAL
158 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 11,191 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
159 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 10,684 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
160 | Brgy. Pag-asa, Binangonan, 3,115 | RESIDENTIAL
Rizal
161 | Brgy. Pag-asa, Binangonan, 1,498 | RESIDENTIAL
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NO. LOCATION AREA IN LAND USE REMARKS
SQM
Rizal
162 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 9,531 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
163 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 7,691 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas B COMMERCIAL ]
164 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 6,449 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
165 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 3,176 | RESIDENTIAL
Batangas
166 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 2,135 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
167 | Sta. Barbara, Province of 28,952 | RESIDENTIAL
Iloilo
168 | Brgy. Balayong, Municipality 31,254  RESIDENTIAL/
of Bauan, Province of COMMERCIAL
Batangas
169 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 4,759 | RESIDENTTAL /
Batangas ' COMMERCIAL
170 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, 14,558 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas : | COMMERCIAL
171 | Municipality of Sta. Rosa, 8,000 | RESIDENTIAL
Province of Laguna ]
172 | Brgy. Balayong, Municipality 15,539 | RESIDENTIAL /
of Bauan, Batangas COMMERCIAL
173 | Barrio Kingot, Municipality 22,991 | RESIDENTIAL
of Digos, Davao Del Sur ) -
174 | Brgy. Communal Davao City 10,241 | RESIDENTIAL
[75 | Brgy. Balayong, Municipality 12,933 | RESIDENTIAL /
of Bauan, Province of COMMERCIAL
Batangas
176 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan 6,278 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
177 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan 5,649 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
178 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan 4,750 | RESIDENTIAL /
Batangas COMMERCIAL
179 | Barrio na Pulo, Lipa City 48,626 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
180 | Barrio na Pulo, Lipa City 47,697 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
181 | Barrio na Pulo, Lipa City 10,000 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
182 | Barrio na Pulo, Lipa City 44357 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
183 | Barrio na Pulo, Lipa City 49,506 | RESIDENTIAL /
COMMERCIAL
[84 | Barangay Cabugao, Sta. 17,586 | RESIDENTIAL /
Barbara, Iloilo COMMERCIAL
185 | Tagum, Davao Del Norte 117,946 | RESIDENTIAL /
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NO. LOCATION AREA IN LAND USE REMARKS
SOQM
COMMERCIAL
186 | Barrio Anolid, Municipality 10,470 | RESIDENTIAL /
of Mangaldan, Province of COMMERCIAL

Pangasinan

187 | Dasmariflas City, Cavite 34,692 | RESIDENTIAL /

COMMERCIAL

188 | Gayaman, Binmaley 20,411 | RESIDENTIAL /

Pangasinan COMMERCIAL

189 | Bragy. Sta. Barbara, Province 15,781 | RESIDENTIAL /

of Iloilo COMMERCIAL

[90 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan 24,173 | RESIDENTIAL /

Batangas COMMIERCIAL

191 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, 22,122 | RESIDENTIAL/
Batangas COMMERCIAL

192 | Municipality of Sta. Barbara, 11,628 | RESIDENTIAL /

Province of lloilo COMMERCIAL

193 | Brgy. Balayong, Municipality 11,398 | RESIDENTIAL/

of Bauan, Batangas COMMERCIAL

194 | Barrio of Sto. Domingo, 504 | RESIDENTIAL /
Municipality of Bifian, COMMERCIAL
Province of Laguna

195 | Brgy. Cawag, Subic Zambales 35,588 | RESIDENTIAL /

s COMMERCIAL

196 | Brgy. Santolan, Pasig City 3,972 | RESIDENTIAL/
COMMERCIAL

4,321,582

=

V. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

A. Market Information

The principal market of the common equity of the Registrant is the PSE. Provided
below 1s a table indicating the high and low sale prices of the common equity of the
Registrant in the Philippine Stock Exchange for each quarter within the last three fiscal

years:

2019 (Interim Period)

Ist Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter
Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price  Date/Price
HIGH 22 Mar./P1.65 N/A N/A N/A
LOW 02 Jan./P1.24 N/A N/A N/A
2018
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter
Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price
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HIGH 19 Jan./P1.06

09 May/P1.17

04 Sept./P1.2211 Dec./P1.27

LOW 26 Mar./P0.98

02 Apr./P0.98

12 Jul./P1.03 03 Oct./P1.07

2017
1 st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter
Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price
HIGH 06 Jan./P1.14 08 Jun/P1.11 10 Jul./P1.08 03 Oct./P1.08

LOW 31 Mar./P0.96

25 May/P0.96

23 Aug./P0.99 19 Dec./P1.00

2016
Ist Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter  4th Quarter
Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price
HIGH 28Mar./P.93 08 Jun/P.94 05 Sep./P1.21 01 Dec./P1.26

LOW 0l Feb./P.74 05 May/P0.85 01 Jul/P.81 23 Nov./P0.95

Price Information as of the latest practicable trading date:

As of 15 May 2019, the Registrant’s shares stood at closing price of P1.87.
B. Holders

Based on the 31 March 2019 List of Stockholders prepared by the Registrant’s
Stock and Transfer Agent, PROFESSIONAL STOCK TRANSFER, INC., the Registrant
has two hundred sixty six (266) shareholders of common shares, of which the top 20
shareholders are as follows:

TOP TWENTY STOCKHOLDERS
As of 31 March 2019

RANK NAME CTZN TOTAL SHARES pERC{i:"‘TAGE
4]
1 ISI;II-Q LUCIA REALTY & DEVELOPMENT, gy 1piyo 6,70%,005,767 81.7550
2 PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION FIOLiaIENR%/ 2,317,135,607 28.2700
3 LUGOD, BERNARD D. FILIPINO 10,000,000 0.1220
4 DELA CRUZ, THOMAS EDWIN M. FILIPINO 10,000,000 0.1220
5 CITISECURITIES, INC. FILIPINO 3,250,000 0.0397
6 EBE CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. FILIPINO 1,535,000 0.0187
7 ROBLES, EXEQUIEL FILIPINO 712,500 0.0087
8 SANTOS, VICENTE FILIPINO 712,494 0.0087
9 LIMTONG, JULIE R, FILIPINO 400,000 0.0049
10 FRANCISCO ORTIGAS SEC., INC. FILIPINO 365,000 0.0045
i1 TAN, PEDRO O. FILIPINO 278,050 0.0034
0 f\l;sé COLOR & CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES, 1\ 1o1nG 182,774 0.0022
13 G & L SECURITIES CO., INC. FILIPINO 70,000 0.0009
14 ﬁtggg' AMBROSIO 8/OR FELISA FILIPINO 50,000 0.0006
15 LIMTONG, ANTHONY FRANCIS H. FILIPINO 40,000 0.0005
16 LIMTONG, GAIL MAUREEN H. FILIPINO 40,000 0.0005
17 LIMTONG, HARRY JAMES H. FILIPINO 40,000 0.0005
18 LIMTONG, JOHN PATRICK H. FILIPINO 40,000 0.0005
19 LIMTONG, JULIE ANN KRISHA H. FILIPINO 40,000 0.0005
20 ISr:JgJ HUNG KAT SECURITIES (PHILS.),  tr\1piNG 30,000 0.0004
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Total Outstanding Shares — §,196,450,000

C. Foreign Equity

Foreign equity is held by a sole stockholder, PCD Nominee Corp. - Non-Filipino,
which owns Three Million Five Hundred Nineteen Thousand One (3,519,001) common
shares of stock as of 30 April 2019.

D. Dividends

No cash dividends were declared for the year 2018 and 2017. The payment of
dividends 1n the future will depend upon the earnings, cash flow, project expenditures and
financial condition of the Registrant and other considerations.

Cash and property dividends, if any, are subject to approval by the Registrant’s
Board of Directors and stockholders. Property dividends are likewise subject to the
approval of the SEC and PSE.

E. Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities

None.
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VI.  COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Registrant has complied, and will continue to comply, with the leading
practices and principles on good corporate governance, as set forth in the Registrant’s
Manual on Corporate Governance in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 2,
Series of 2009.

The Annual Report on SEC Form 17-A of the Registrant shall be made
available, without charge, upon a written request addressed to:

DAVID M. DELA CRUZ

Penthouse, Building 3, Sta. Lucia Mall
Marcos Highway comer Imelda Avenue
Cainta, Rizal

However, the Management of the Registrant reserves the right to charge reasonable
fees for providing exhibits attached to the Registrant’s SEC Form 17-A.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A

ANNUALREPORTPURSUANTTOSECTIONI7O0FTHESECURITIES
REGULATIONCODEANDSECTION 141 OF
THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the fiscal year ended December 31,2018

3]

., Commissiomdentificationnumber310503. BIR Tax Identification No.000-152-291-000

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter STA. LUCIA LAND. INC.

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization__Republic of the Philippines

6. Industry Classification Code: I:I (SEC Use Only)

7. Address of issuer's principal office and Postal Code Penthouse, Bldg. IIL, Sta. Lucia East Grand Mall,
Marcos Highway cor. Imelda Ave., Cainta, Rizal 1200

8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code (02) 681-73-32

9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report ZIPPORAH MINING
KINDUSTRIAL CORPORATION. 6th Flir., Sagittarius Bldg,, H.V. de la Costa St,
Salcedo Village, Makati Citv

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and § of the RSA

Title of each class Number of shares of common
Stock outstanding

Common 8,196,450,000

1. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [x] WNo [ )

If yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange Common Stock

12. Indicate by checkmark whether the Registrant:

(a) has filedallreportsrequiredtobefiledbySectioni7oftheCodeandSRCRulel 7ihereunderor

Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Ruie 1i{a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of
the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period the registrant was required
to file such reports)

Yes[x] No [ ]
(b)has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90)days.

Yes[x] No [ ]

Sta, Lucia Land, Inc.
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PART I — BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1: BUSINESS
Overview

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc. (the Registrant, the Company, or SLI) was incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines
and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on December 6, 1966 under the
name Zipporah Mining and Industrial Corporation to engage in mining. On September 14, 1987, the Parent
Company launched its Initial Public Offering where a total of 20,000,000 common shares were offered at an
offering price of Phpl.00 per share. On September 14, 1987, the Company launched its Initial Public Offering
where a total of 20,000,000 common shares were offered at an offering price of Php .00 per share. Subject to a
restructuring program, the BOD of the Company approved on November 22, 1995 the offering of up to
1,000,000,000 shares of stock out of the increase in the authorized capital stock from Php350.0¢ million te
Php2,000.00 million at a par value of Phpt.00, to a group of investors led by Sta. Lucia Realty & Development,
Inc. (SLRDI). This was subsequently approved and ratified by the stockholders in a Special Stockholders’
Meeting on December 18, 1995. On December 18, 1995, the stockholders of the Company approved a number
of changes in the corporate structure as part of its diversification scheme. These were:

1. The change of its name to Zipporah Realty Holdings, Inc;

2. The increase in the number of directors from nine to 11;

3. The waiver of the pre-emptive rights over the future issuances of shares;

4. The change in the primary and secondary purposes, transposing the original primary purpose
tosecondary purpose from being a mining firm to a real estate company, the primary purpese of which
is to acquire by purchase, lease, donation, or otherwise, and to own, use, improve, develop and hold for
investment or otherwise, reaj estate of all kinds, improve, manage or otherwise dispose of buildings,
houses, apartments and other structures of whatever kind, together with their appurtenances.

5. The change in the par value of its shares from Php0.01 to Php1.00; and

6. The increase in its authorized capital stock to Php2,000.00 million.

The first four changes were approved by the SEC on August 14, 1996 while the last two corporate acts were
approved on January 22, 1997.

On June L5, 2007, the BOD approved the following resolutions and was ratified by the stockholders on July 16,
2007:

—_—

. Change in Corporate name to Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.

2. Increase in authorized capital stock of the Company from Php2,000.00 million divided into
2,000,000,000 shares to Php16,0000.00 million divided into 16,000,000,000 shares or an increase of
Php!14,000.0C million with a par value of Php1.00 per share.

3. Subscription of SLRDI of up to 10,000,000,000 shares out of the increase in the Company’s
authorized capital stock; and

4. SLRDI’s subscription to such shares shall be at par value, and the consideration for which shall be

the assignment and transfer by SLRDI to the Company of assets acceptable to the Company at a

reasonable discount on the fair market value of such assets. The fair value market value was

determined by independent professionally qualified appraisers. The fair value represents the amount
at which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing buyer and knowledgeable,
wilting seller in an arm’s length transaction at the date of valuation.

The above resolutions were ratified by the Company’s shareholders on July 16, 2007.

a) On December 8, 2007, the Company and the SLRDI executed various deeds of assignment wherein
SLRDI assigned all its rights, title and interest to certain properties consisiing of investment properties
(Sta. Lucia East Grand Mall) amounting to Phip4,710.00 million and certain parcels of land amounting
to Php6,018.50 million and assumption of mortgage in the investment properties of Php723.60 million.
The investments of the SLRDI through the said assignment of various properties, net of mortgage
assurmed, were recognized as additional outstanding shares of Php10,000.00 million.

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
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The Company is listed on the PSE under the ticker “SLI™.

In 2013, the Company decided to establish two {2) wholly-owned subsidiaries, Sta. Lucia Homes, Inc. and
Santalucia Ventures, Inc., to handle housing construction and the marketing, operation and development of the
Company’s projects, respectively.

On July 08, 2014, the Company and the SLRDI exccuted a deed of assignment of shares of stock wherein the
parties agreed as follows:

. The previous assignment by SLRDI of Saddle and Clubs Leisure Park is rescinded.
2. SLRDI transfers 3,000 million shares of the Company in favor of the latter as full payment for the
Phpl,801.11 million advances to the former.

In 2014, 2,250 million shares covering Php900.00 million of advances were issued back by SLRDI to the
Company and formed part of the Company’s treasury shares. This decreased the cutstanding shares of the
Parent Company from 10,796.45 million in 2013 to 8,546.45 million in 2014,

On December 22, 2015, the Company scld 400 million shares which increased the outstanding shares to
8,946.45 million in 20135.

On September 30, 2014, the lease agreement on Sta. Lucia East Grand Mall (the Mall) between the Parent
Company and Sta. Lucia East Commercial Corporation (SLECC), an affiliate, was terminated by both parties.
Effective October 1, 2014, the existing lease agreements over the Mall spaces were directly between the Parent
Company and the tenants. Prior to September 30, 2014, the Parent Company charges rental fee to SLECC, an
amount equivalent to 90% of SLECC’s net income excluding real property tax. SLECC charges management
fee of 7% of the gross rental revenue from mall operations starting October 1, 2014 since SLECC still manages
the mall operations, despite the change in lease arrangements.

As a result of the change in arrangement, the rental income of the Parent Company reflected in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income includes rental income directly from tenants for the period October 1, 2014
to December 31, 2014 amounting te Php241.63 million and the rental fee from SLECC for the period January 1,
2014 to September 30, 2014 amounting te Php262.71 million. The rental income for 2015 and 2016 reflects, on
the other hand, rental income directly from tenants.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company is 83.28% owned by SLRDI.

The end of the corporate life of the Parent Company was December 5, 2016. On June 16, 2016, the SEC
approved the extension of the Parent Company’s life to another 50 years up to December 3, 2066,

The registered office address and principal place of business of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
{collectively referred to as the Group) is at Penthouse Bldg. 3, Sta. Lucia Mall, Marcos Highway cor. Imelda
Avenue, Cainta, Rizal.

On December 27, 2018, pursuant to the Deed of Assignment, the Ultimate Parent Company and the Parent
Company executed the Second tranche in the Deed of Assignment. The Parent Company acquired 750.00
million treasury shares at the price of P1.20 per share to cover the settlement of the P900.00 million advances
made by the Parent Company to the Ultimate Parent Company. As a result, the Group is 81.75% owned by Sta.
Lucia Realty and Development Inc. (SLRDI or the Ultimate Parent Company) as of December 31, 2018.

As delegated by the Board of Directors {(BOD), the accompanying consolidated financial statements were
approved and authorized for issue by the Executive Committee and Audit Committee on April 10, 2019,

Business

The Company has been able to establish a track record in horizontal residential developments, where the
Company has historically derived a substantial portion of its revenues. The Company has continued to expand
its horizontal developments which continue to be its core business and begun to diversify into vertical
developments, housing construction, and marketing services. In line with its strategy of increasing recurring
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income, the Company has also begun to expand its mall operations through the opening of its expansion mall in
2014 and conversion of some of its portfolio of commercial lots for sale into commercial lots for lease.
The Company conducts its business via the following main operating segments, further broken down as follows:

1. Residential Projects
a. Horizontal Developments
i. Residential Lots

These projects consist of residential lots for sale in gated subdivisions complete with facilities and
amenitics. The Company begins developing identified Jand for marketing and selling to customers.
These projects involve mimimal construction works. Typical features developed by the Company for
these residential communities include an entrance gate, guard house, landscaped entry statement,
community clubhouse, basketball court, swimming pool, wide concrete road network, paved sidewalks
with concrete curbs and gutters, centralized interrelated water system, underground drainage system,
and electric system. Average seiling prices per unit ranges from Php480,000 to Php5,350,000.
Required downpayments are usually 15% to 20%, payable in 6 months to 1 year. Balance of 80% is
paid through installment with interest rates ranging of 14% io 16% with average term of 1 to 10 years.

b. Vertical Developments
i. Townhouses

Townhouse projects are comprised of residential housing units where independent and identical houses

are found adjacent to each other, with a row sharing cne or two house walls. These projects have higher

development costs, are built on smaller land areas (6 to 7 h.a.), and are developed in phases. The next
phase is only developed once the previous phase is sold out. The Company has cne ongoing having an
average price of Php5,350,000. Downpayments of 15% te 20% are usually required, payable in 6
months up to 2 years. Balance of 80% is paid through installment with interest rates ranging from 14%
to 16% with average term of 1 to 10 years,

ii. Condominiums

The condominium projects of the Company are located in strategic locations near existing horizontal
devetopments, The Company has completed four (4) residential condeminiums since year 2007 while it
currently has one (1) ongoing condominium project, the Neopolitan Condominium in Fairview,
Quezon City. The usual required downpayment ranges from 15% to 20%, payable in 2 to 3 years.
Balance of 80% is paid through installment with interest rates ranging from 14% to 16% with average
term of 1 to 10 years.

iii. Condotels

Condotel projects are cendominium units being sold to individual buyers but are managed and operated
as a hotel by the Company. There is an option for the unit buyers to purchase a condominium unit or a
condotel unit. A condotel unit will be placed under a rental program initially for 15 years where it is
rented out like a typical hotel room. An experienced management company, with common shareholders
and directors as SLI, handles all operations, maintenance, and management of the units under the rental
program. Rental income from the units is shared between the Company and the unit owners, where the
Company usually receives at least 30% of net rental income. The condotel buyer is not offered any
guaranteed return on the rental of this condominium unit or even that it will be leased out at all.
Average selling prices per unit range from Php72,000 to Php 100,000 per sqm. with required
downpayments of 20%, payable in two (o three years while the balance can be paid in five to ten years.
In addition, under the management company’s revenue sharing program, unit owners get 30
complimentary room nights per year which are transferrable across all the Company’s hotels and
condotels in the Philippines.

The SEC had opined in previous opinions that the sale, management, pooling and sharing of revenues
from the operation of condotels thru a contract offered to condotel buyers may be viewed as an
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investment contract. Tnvestment contracts are likened to contracts for the sale of a security, which
requires prior registration with the SEC before the same are sold or offered for sale or distribution in
the Philippines. In the decisions and opinions promulgated, the SEC concluded that condotel projects
are arrangements that have all the elements of an investment contract, namely: (i) an investment of
money; (i) in a common enterprise; (i) with expectation of profits; and (iv) primarily from efforts of
others. As such, the SEC has issued orders directing several real estate companies offering condotel
projects to immediately cease and desist from further offering, soliciting, or otherwise offering or
selling condotel units to the public without the required SEC registration.

One such order by the SEC was challenged by a real estate developer in a case before the Court of
Appeals ("CA"). The case questioned the validity of the SEC's ruling that the sale of the condotel units
qualified as a sale of securities. The CA, in iis Decision dated June I, 2013, held that the transaction
did not constitute an investment contract as the element of “investment of money” was lacking in such
project. The CA rujed that unit buyers pay their monies for the purpose of acquiring ownership of the
property, not for the purpese of engaging in the business of renting out of units. Thus, the CA annulled
the SEC's order against the real estate company to cease from further selling or offering its condotel
units. This was later affirmed by CA in its November 28, 2013 Resolution.

On November 18, 2016, however, the Supreme Cowrt (*SC”) reversed and set aside the CA’s Decision
and Resolution. However, the SC did not make a definitive determination as to whether the sale of the
condotels under the “leaseback™ or “moneyback™ schenies is indeed an investment contract or a sale of
securities. Instead, the SC based its decision on a legal principle requiring all parties to such a case to
“exhaust all administrative remedies™ prior to resorting to an appeal. Since the petitioner failed to
exhaust the administrative remedies available to it, an appeal was the incorrect remedy. The petitioner
has filed a motion for reconsideration in the SC case. The Company will continue to monitor the
progress of the case while studying its options relative to the SC*s decision. Rest assured that the
Company will respect the final cutcome of the Supreme Court case and the regulators. As of now, the
Company is not aware of any further announcement or communication from the SEC on the matter.

2. Commercial Properties
a. Mall
Existing Mall

The SLEGM is a comprehensive commercial, entertainment, and leisure facility with a full range
department store, supermarket, movie theater, fast food chains, bookstore, specialty boutiques for
clothing, accessories, telecommunication, and hobby stores. The SLEGM is comprised of three four-
storey buildings with a GFA of 180,000 sq.m and is located at Marcos Highway cor. Felix Ave,,
Cainta, Rizal. The current mall has a 113,492 sqm. gross leasable space of which 110,121 sgm. or
95.35% are being leased to 453 tenants. This business serves to complement the needs of the residential
communities that the Company has built in the cities of Pasig, Marikina, and in the various towns of
the Rizal provingce.

Expansion Mall

The expansion mall of the Company called 1 Centro opened in 2014 and is comprised of a three-storey
building with a GFA of 56,000 sqm. and a net leasable area of 12,600 sqgm. The mall has a 20,000 sqm.
parking to cater to residential and mall clients.

Principal Tenants

The Company’s diverse mix of tenants includes those engaged in the business of services, retail,
leisure, food, apparel, and novelty. The Company’s significant tenants include the following:
1 Services: BDO Unibank, David*s Salon, Bench Fix Salon, Ricky Reyes

"1 Retail: Abensen, CD-R King, National Bookstere
I Leisure: Worlds of Fun, Sta. Lucia Cinema, Sta Lucia Bowling
I Food: Bonchon, Dunkin Donuts, Jollibee, Mang Inasal, Starbucks
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Apparel: Bench, Folded and Hung, Giordano, Lee, Converse
1 Novelty: Comic Alley, Blue Magic, Papemelroti

Aside from the tenants mentioned above, the SLEGM also has major tenanis controlled by cr in which
one or more of the Group's sharcholders have a significant interest. These include Home Gallery,
Planet Toys, SLE Cinema, and SLE Bowling. The top 3 business activities taking up the Company’s
leasable area are services, leisure, and retail. In terms of contribution to rental income, retail activities
contribute the majority to the Company’s rental income, followed by service and food activities.

Lease Terms

The lease payments that the Company receives from its retail tenants are usually based on a
combination of fixed and/or variable payments. Rents are typically based on basic rental fee per sgm.
in addition to a tumover component of 1.5% to 8% of gross sales, subject to a monthly minimum rental
fee per sqm. and annual escalation rates. Tenants are also usually charged air conditioning, common
use service areas, pest control, electricity, and marketing support fees. Lease terms range from one
month to five years with renewal clauses.

Management of the Mall

Management and operation of the malls, including planning, development, tenant mix preparation,
budgeting, maintenance, engineering, security, leasing, marketing, promotions, billing, and coliections
are handled by Sta. Lucia East Commercial Corporation (*SLECC”™), a related company owned by the
shareholders of the Group.

Beginning October 1, 2014, all lease payments from the mall tenants are now paid to and in the name
of the Company. SLECC continues to provide management and operations services for the SLEGM
and will receive management fees equivalent to a fixed percentage of revenues, The Company’s board
of directors approved the implementation of this new arrangement effective October 1, 2014, The
Company believes that this move can be expected to improve the Company’s lease revenugs.

b. Commercial Lots

A portion of the Company’s revenues also come from sales of commercial lots. [n 2013, the Company
converted some of its commercial lots for sale into commercial lots for lease. The commercial
properties of the Company are complementary to existing residential projects and are being offered to
existing established retail partners. There are a total of 928 commercial lots covering 95h.a. adjacent to
the Company’s projects nationwide. There is an allocation for an average commercial space ranging
from 300 to 2,000 sq. m. in a majority of the Company’s projects. The Company intends to expand its
retail portfolio by offering these commercial properties via 3 main options: (i) cutright sale of the
commercial lots, (ii) lease of the commercial lot to retailers, and (iii} building of the Company’s own
malls in these commercial properties and leasing it to retailers.

3. Services
a. Housing / Construction

The Company has recenily venfured inte housing construction services through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, SLHI. [n addition to “build-and-sell”, the Company’s business model will focus on the
provision of access to and assistance in connection with general construction services to its lot buyers.
SLHI began operating in 2014 in order to service the needs of lot buyers who would like to have their
own house constructed on their previously bought lots but are not familiar with the process (i.¢.
securing permits, construction, accessing financing, ete.) and with assurance of reliability from an
established brand name. The price of the house construction services range from Php22,500 per sgm. to
Php28,000 per sqm. Payment terms require a 20% downpayment that 1s payable up to 6 months, with
the balance payable up to 10 to 15 years through bank financing.
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b. Marketing

The Company is currently conducting marketing services through its subsidiary SVI as well as through
six other brokers namely:, Royal Homes Marketing Corporation, Orchard Property Marketing Corp.,
Mega East Properties Inc., Asian Pacific Realty & Brokerage Corp., Fil-Estate Group of Companies
Sta. Lucia Global Inc., and SantaLucia Ventures, Inc..

c. Sale on installment

Around 90% of the Company’s customers avail of the sale on installment facilities with interest rates
ranging from 14% to 16% per annum and a 20% downpayment with the balance payable from 5 to 10
years.

Subsidiaries

On January 9, 2013, the Parent Company filed an application with SEC for the incorporation of one of its
wholly owned subsidiary Sta, Lucia Homes, Inc. (SLHI), the primary purpose of which s to construct, develop,
improve, mortgage, pledge and deal with residential structure for ot buyers of the Group. The Parent Company
received an approval on February 20, 2013,

On January 31, 2013, the Parent Company also filed an application with SEC for the incorporation of another
wholly owned subsidiary Santalucia Ventures Inc. (SVI), whose primary purpose is to market, operate, manage,
develop, improve, dispose, mortgage, pledge and deal with residential structure for lot buyers of the Group.
Such application was approved by SEC on April 5, 2013.

Employees/Officers

As of December 2018, the Registrant has the following numbers of employees/o(ficers including:

REGULAR
NO. DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES | CONTRACTUAL
1 QFFICE OF THE EVP/CFO 1
2 ADMINISTRATION 4
3 ACCOUNTING 12
4 INTERNAL AUDIT 5
3 SALES AND MARKETING 15
6 PROJECT DEVELOPMENT 19
7 PURCHASING 5
FINANCE/CREDIT RISK
8 MANAGEMENT 3
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION
9 SYSTEM 4
10 TREASURY 5 I
11 COLLECTION 31
12 CORPORATE PLANNING 2
13 HUMAN RESOURCES 2
14 COMMERCIAL BUSINESS** 1 ~
15 SPECIAL PROJECTS 2
16 HOTELS l
17 STA. LUCIA HOMES 2
TOTAL 114 1

**Consultants
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There are no current labor disputes or strikes against the Registrant, nor have there been any labor disputes or
strikes against the Registrant in the past ten (10) years.

The Company has provided a mechanism through which managers and staff are given feedback on their job
performance, which it believes will help to ensure continuous development of its employees. The Company also
provides managers, supervisors and general staff the opportunity to participate in both in-house and external
training and development programs which are designed to help increase efficiency and to prepare employees for
future assignments.

Major Risks

Various risk factors will affect SLI’s results of operations may it be in the result of economic uncertainty and
political instability.

The Philippines as one of the countries in Asia that were not directly affected by the crisis showed a better
position for market enhancement. Despite the fact that inflation is continuously affecting the world market, the
Philippines manages to offset the augmented prices of goods and services with the increase in local & foreign
investment as well as the Overseas Filipino Workers (OFW) remittances continued to be constant. Given the
skilled labor in the Philippines, which is at par with international standards, jobs were actually created in the
country. The steady rise of employment in this industry contributed ta the increase in consumer spending, which
is one of the strongest stimuli for economic growth. In addition, local and foreign investors were driven by the
new Aquino administration which shawed a positive cutcome for investors.

As for the real estate industry in the Philippines, the country still experienced a stable market demand for 2015.
This is due to the common object of OFW’s which to have their own property. Based on SLI's sales report, it
has always been a significant number of OFW who purchased properties. Also, there have been foreign
investors who invested in properties in the country due to our low cost of living. The Philippines is likewise
seen as a country with great econemic potential by our neighboring countries in Asia.

The Philippines has from time te time experienced severe pelitical and social instability. The Philippine
Constitution provides that, in times of natignal emergency, when the public interest so requires, the Government
may take over and direct the operation of any privately owned public utility or business. In the last few years,
there were instances of political instability, including public and military protests arising from alleged
misconduct by the previous administration.

Politics has been a major risk in the Philippines since it has a negative image in political disorder which is
targely due to corruption and unstable development. Also, the country’s high debt to financial institutions affects
all business sectors and has become a major factor to consider. It would be a challenge for the government to act
on the risk factors threatening the Philippine economy.

Other than those mentioned above, the Company may also be exposed with the changes in Peso, interest rates
and costs in construction. However, the Company adopied appropriate risk management procedures to lessen

and address the risks it faces.

Description of Market/Clients

The Company has now expanded its target market to include clients with different professions and living
statuses, coming from all segments of society.

The Company’s main target markets are the OFWs and middle class. A major percentage of the Company’s
number of units sold come from QFWs and their families which constitutes around 70% of sold units, 15%
came from SME business owners, and 15% ceme from middle class employees.
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Real Property Development

The following properties as mentioned below comprise the assets of the Registrant as part of the capital infusion
from SLRDI:

Residential and Commercial Properties
Alta Vista de Subic

Alta Vista de Subic is a residential property located in Subic, Zambales. It sits on a 22,308 sq. m. area, with 68
lots for sale.

Alta Vista Residential Estate and Golf Course
Alta Vista Residential Estate and Golf Course is a residential property located in Cebu City. It sits on a 25,450
sq. m. area, with 36 lots for sale.

Caliraya Spring
Caliraya Spring is a residential property located in Laguna. It sits on a 84,980 sq. m. area, with 120 lots for sale.

Costa Verde Cavite
Costa Verde Cavite is a residential property with housing projects located in Rosario, Cavite. [t sits on a 16,670
sq. m. area, with 100 lots for sale.

Davao Riverfront

Davao Riverfront is a residential and commercial property located in Davao City. It has 11 residential lots for
sate, which sits on a 2,170 sq. m. area. The property also has 100 commercial lots for sale, situated on a 81,889
sq. m. Jand.

Eagle Ridge
Eagle Ridge is a commercial property lecated in Cavite. It sits on a 69,042 sq. m, area, with 87 lots for sale.

Glenrose Park Carcar Cebu
Glenrose Park Carcar Cebu is a residential property with housing projects located in Cebu City. It sits on a
14,338 sq. m. area, with 179 lots for sale.

Greenwoods Pasig
Greenwoods Pasig i1s a commercial property located in Pasig City. It sits on a 6,665 sq. m. area, with 6 lois for
sale.

Greenwoods South
Greenwoods South is a residential property with housing projects located in Batangas City. [t sits on a 25,181
sq. m. area, with 125 lots for sale.

Lakewood Cabanatuan
Lakewood Cabanatuan is a residential property with housing projects located in Cabanatuan. [t sits on a 107,087
sq. m. area, with 372 lots for sale.

Manville Royale Subdivision

Manville Rovale Subdivision is a residential and commercial property located in Bacolod. It has 282 residential
lots for sale, which sits on a 65,606 sq. m. area. The property alse has 5 commercial lots for sale, situated on a
7,316 sq. m. land.

Metropolis Greens
Metropolis Greens is a residential property with housing projects located in General Trias, Cavite. It sits on a
19,785 sq. m. area, with 179 lots for sale.

Metropoli Residenza de Libis
Metropoli Residenza de Libis is a residential and commercial property focated in Libis, Quezon City. It has 46
residential lots for sale, which sits on a 10,721 sq. m. area. The property also has 18 commercial lots for sale,
situated on a 7,336 sq. m. land.
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Monte Verde Execufive Village
Monte Verde Executive Village is a residential property with housing projects located in Taytay, Rizal. It sits on
a43,492.93 sq. m. area, with 202 lots for sale.

Neopolitan Garden Condominium
Neopolitan Garden Condominium is a residential condominium property located in Fairview, Quezon City . It
sits on a 75,493 sq. m. area, with 47 lots for sale.

Palm Coast Marina Bavyside
Palm Coast Marina Bayside is a commercial property located on Roxas Blvd., Manila. It sits on a 2,571 sq. m.
area, with 2 lots for sale.

Palo Alto Phl
Palo Alto Phl is a residential property located in Tanay, Rizal. It sits on a 678,837 sq. m. area, with 1,115 lots
for sale.

Pinewoods
Pinewoods is a residential property located in Baguio City. It sits on a 112,210 sq. m. area, with 71 lots for sale.

Pueblo Del Sol Phi
Pueblo Del Sol Phl is a residential property located in Tagaytay City. It sits on a 12,977 sq. m. area, with 44 lots
for sale.

Rizal Technopark
Rizal Technopark is a commercial property located in Taytay, Rizal. It sits on a 25,112 sq. m. area, with 34 lots
for sale.

Rizal Technopark Ph2F
Rizal Technopark Ph2F is a residential property located in Taytay, Rizal. It sits on a 3,884 sq. m. area, with 16
lots for sale.

Southfield Executive Village
Southfield Executive Village is a residential property with housing projects located in Dasmarinas, Cavite. Tt
sits on a 28,359 sq. m. area, with 193 lots for sale.

South Pacific Golf and Leisure Estate
South Pacific Golf and Leisure Estate is a residential property with housing projects located in Davao City, It
sits on a 150,095 sq. m. area, with 434 lots for sale.

Sta. Lucia East Grandmali
Sta. Lucia East Grandmall is a commercial property located in Cainta, Rizal. Ii sits on a 98,705 sq. m. area and
is composed of three buildings.

Tagaytav Royale
Tagaytay Royale is a commercial property located in Tagaytay City. [€ sits on a 22,907 sq. m. area, with 9 lots

for sale.

Vistamar Estates

Vistamar Estates is a residential and commercial property located in Cebu City. It has 86 residential lots for sale,
which sits on a 32,086 sq. m. area. The property also has 13 commercial lots for sale, situated on a 20,299 sg. m.
land.
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The following are the Registrant’s completed projects as of December 31, 2018 aside from the ones indicated
above:
Arterra Residences

Arterra Residences is a condominium project located in Lapu-lapu City, Cebu and 20-Storey high.

Sugarland Estates

Sugarland Estates is a residential property located in Trece Martires, Cavite with a saleable area of 72,377 sqm.

Splendido Tower 1

Splendido Tower 1 is a condominium project located in Laurel, Batangas and 22-Storey high.

Splendido Tower 2
Splendido Tower 2 is a condominium project located in Laurel, Batangas and 18-Storey high.

La Breza Tower
La BrezaTower is the planned 22-storey residential condominium te be built on the property on Mother Ignacia
Ave. in Quezon City. The property area is 1,450 sq. m.

La Mirada Tower 1
[a Mirada Tower is a condominium project located in Lapu Lapu, Cebu.

Villa Chiara
Villa Chiara is a residential property located in Tagaytay City, Cavite with more than 34,000 sqm in area.

Grand Villas Banan
Grand Villas Bauan is a residential subdivision located in Bauan Batangas.

Green Meadows Tarlac

Green Meadows Tarlac is a residential and commercial property which sits in Paniqui, Tarlac with more than
149,000 sq. m. in area.

Luxurre Residences

Luxurre Residences is a residential and commercial property located in Alfonso, Cavite.

East Bel Air |
East Bel Air 1 is a condominium tower located in Cainta, Rizal.

Greenland Antipolo

Greenland Antipolo is a residential property located in Antipolo, Rizal with more than 20,000 sq. m. in area.

South Grove Davao
South Grove is a residential community located in Davao which is 3 km from the ¢city proper. The community is
designed with a clubhouse, basketball court, and swimming pool.

Sta. Lucia Residenze 1 - Monte Carlo

Sta. Lucia Residenze i - Monte Carlo is a 20-storey residential condominium lecated in Cainta, Rizal. [t is an
Italian inspired-tower purposely outlined in equilateral shape to preserve the scenic view of the city. It is located
inside the SLEGM and will have 238 units available for sale.

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
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Stradella (formerly East Bel-Air 2)

Stradella is a 6-storey residential and commercial condotel located in Cainta, Rizal. The project offers
convenient urban living in a suburban and elegant contemporary setting. Located within the | h.a. residential
and commercial complex called East Bel-Air, this project has 116 units available for sale.

Neopolitan Condominium

The Neopolitan Condominium is a 9-storey residential condominjum located in Fairview, Quezon City. If is
designed as a residential project at the center of buzzing city. It covers an area of 1.2 h.a. and will have 191 units
available for sale.

Mesilo Nueva Vida
Mesilo Nueva Vida is a residential property located in Dasmarinas, Cavite. It has 876 residential lots for sale,
which sits on al 83,451 sq. m. area.

Greenland Newtown Ph2B

Greenland Newtown Ph2B js a residential property located in San Mateo, Rizal. Ii has 120 residential lots for
sale, which sits on a 19,098 sq. m. area.

Glenrose Taytay
Glenrose Taytay is a residential property located in Taytay, Rizal. It has 92 residential lots for sale, which sits

on a 14,059 sq. m. area.

Sierra Vista Residential Estate Ph2A
Sierra Vista Residential Estate is a residential property located in Caloocan City, Manila. It has 24 residential
lots for sale, which sits on a 3,654 sq. m. area.

Greenwoods Executive Ph9E
Greenwoods Executive Ph9E is a residential property located in Caloocan City, Manila. It has 31 residential lots
for sale, which sits on a 4,951 sq. m. area.

Beverly Place PhOH

Greenwoods Executive PhOH is a residential property located in Mexico, Pampanga.

Sta. Barbara Rovale PhlA
Sta. Barbara Royale Phl A is a residential property located in Tandang Sora, Quezon City. Tt has 9 residential
lots for sale, which sits ona 1,350 sq. m. area.

Summerhifls Ph4
Summerhills Ph4 is a residential property located in Antipolo, Rizal. It has 132 residential lots for sale, which
sils an a 28,059 sq. m. area.

Nottingham Villas Townhouse 5A-5D and 6-7
Nottingham Villas Townhouse Cluster 3A-5D and 6-7 is a residential townhouse located in Taytay, Rizal.

Sotogrande Ph2
Sotogrande Ph2 is a residential property located in Tagaytay City, Cavite. [t has 132 residential lots for sale,
which sits on a 28,059 sq. m. area.

Green Meadows Hoilo Phl
Green Meadows Iloilo Phl is a residential property and commercial properiy located in Jaro, lHoile City, It has
1,986lots for sale, which sits on a 319,530 sq. m. area.

Costa Del Sol Iloilo
Costa Del Sol loilo is a residential property and commercial property located in Arevalo, lloilo City. It has 143
lots for sale, which sits on a 24,320 sq. m, area,

Greenland Cainta
Greenland Cainta is a residential property located in Cainta, Rizal. It has 370 lois for sale, which sits on a
54,773 sq. m. area.

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
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Material Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation or Purchase or Sale of Significant Amount of Assets
The Registrant has sold the Ayala Property to Alphaland, Inc. in April 2008 for Php820 Million.
Business of Issuer

The Registrant’s primary purpose is to deal, engage or otherwise acquire an interest in land or real estate
development, whether in the Philippines or elsewhere, to acquire, purchase, sell, convey, encumber, lease, rent,
erect, construct, alter, develop, hold, manage, operate, administer or otherwise deal in and dispose of, for itself
or for others, for profit and advantage, residential, commercial, industrial, recreational, urban and other kinds of
real property, such as horizontal and vertical developments as stated in its latest Amended Articles of
Incorporation, as of 09 October 2007. Please refer to “Real Property Development” and “Development
Activities”™ sections for the detailed descriptions of the products that are and will be distributed by the
Registrant.

Distribution Methods of the Products

The Company has at its disposal the expertise of seven(7) different marketing arms, five (5) of whom work
exclusively with the Sta. Lucia Group, namely: Royale Homes Marketing Corp., Orchard Property Marketing
Corp., Mega East PropertiesIne., Sta. Lucia Global Inc. and SantalLucia Ventures, Inc. which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. These marketing firms have a combined local and international sales force of aver
120,000, with an extensive knowledge of local demographics. These marketing companies employ various
media to promote the Company such as print advertisements in newspapers, online media (such as Facebook,
Instagram, Youtube, Twitter), celebrity endorsers, and brokers.

Competition

The residential market is still a highly under-served market with the housing backlog projected to reach 5.6
million by 2030 (myproperty.ph). In this segment, the Company considers Vista Land and Filinvest Land, Inc.
as its competitors. The Company believes that the strengths of these competitors lie in their larger {andbank
holdings and historically, their ability to access funding through the capital markets.

In order to effectively compete, the Company has long adopted the strategy of focusing on the provincial areas
that are largely ignored and under-served by its bigger competitors whose projects have, until recently, been
concentrated in Metro Manila which is already congested and near saturation. SLI is present in ten regions
across the country. The Company believes that sustained growth will come from the provinces and major cities
outside of Metro Manila and have therefore prioritized establishing its presence there. The Company believes
that its expertise and knowledge in these arecas will prove significant as it continues to expand its property
footprint in these largely under-served areas. The Company will continue using its sales force, to target a
specific customer segment in specific geographic Jocations.  Once identified, potential clients are reached
through aggressive advertising and personalized sales services, including after sales support. Such services
include assistance in documentation and facititating access to credit. Its capability to reach out to different
locations is made possible through its vast marketing channels, which, by sheer number of sales agents, are able
to capture a good portion of the market. Its international offices also make it possible to move closer to markets
it serves offshore. Open houses, discounts and promotion are some of the marketing tools the Company
employs as part of its sales and marketing strategy.

With respect to the mall business, SM Prime and Robinsons Retail are considered as the main competitors of the
Company. Although SLEGM was one of the first malls in the Cainta area, competition has emerged in recent
years as new malls were developed by its peers. Despite this however, the Company continued to generaie
healthy cash flows, retain tenants and even engage newer ones. Its prime location, being located in a major
intersection along a major thoroughfare, along with the variety of its affiliated and independent retailers which
afford its customers more varied choices and the continuous improvements in both facilities and services have
enabled SLEGM to hold its own in this highly competitive retail market.

Suppliers

The Registrant has a bread base of local suppliers and is not dependent on one or limited number of suppliers.

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
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Customers

The Registrant has a broad market base including local and foreign individuals and does not have a customer
who/which accounts for twenty percent {20%) or mare of the Registrant’s sales.

Government Approvals/Regulations

The Registrant, as part of the normal course of business, secures various government approvals such as licenses
to sell, development permits and the like.

Environmental Compliance

The Registrant has made efforts to meet and exceed all statutory and regulatory standards on environmental
compliance in its normal course of business. In keeping with the Registrant’s commitment to sustainable
development, all projects are assessed for their environmental impact and, where applicable, are covered by an
Envirenmental Compliance Certificate (ECC) issued by the Department of Environment and Natural Resources
prior to construction or expansion. Te date, the Registrant is compliant with relevant environmental regulations.

Transactions with Related Parties

The Group in its regular conduct of business has entered into fransactions with related parties. Parties are
considered to be related if, among others, one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party in making financial and cperating decisions, the parties are subject to common contrel or the party is an
asscciate or a joint venture. These accounts are noninferest-bearing and are generally unsecured. The
outstanding accounts with related parties shall be settled in cash. The transactions are made at terms and prices
agreed-upon by the parties.

The significant transactions with related parties follow:

a. The Parent Company, in the normal course of business, has transactions with the Ultimate Parent
Company consisting of non-interest bearing advances for working capital requirements with no fixed
repayment terms. These are transactions and related receivable arising from sale of lots fo Ultimate
Parent Company. As discussed in Note 15, on December 27, 2018, pursuant to the Deed of
Assignment, the Ultimate Parent Company and the Parent Company executed the Second tranche in
the Deed of Assignment. The Parent Company acquired 750.00 million treasury shares at the price of
P1.20 per share to cover the settlement of the P903.00 million advances made by the Parent Company
to the Ultimate Parent Company.

b. Other transactions with the Ultimate Parent Company include noninterest-bearing cash advances for
various charges for reimbursements of expenses on gasoline consumption of service vehicles, repairs
and maintenance, supplies, rentals for project exhibits and advertising/marketing costs. This petrtains
to the monthly amortization payment from the buyers of the Parent Company collected by the
Ultimate Parent Company due to be remitted to the Parent Company.

¢. In 2014, SLLT and SLRDI entered into several memorandums of agreements wherein SLLI undertakes
the development and marketing of the several projects of SLRDI and has assumed the position of the
development contractor and marketing arm. In consideration of the services rendered by SLLI, SLRDI
has agreed to the following:

¢ Colinas Verdes Bulacan Project - SLRIDI has entered into a joint venture agreement with
Araneta Properties, Inc. (API) for a proceeds sharing agreement of 60% SLRDI - 40% API
share, SLLI shall be entitled to 75% of SLRDI’s share in the joint venture agreement and 12%
marketing fee on the gross selling price of all sales made from the project;

o  Green Meadows Hloilo Project - SLRDI has entered into a joint venture agreement with AFP-
Retirement and Separation Benefits System (ARSBS) for a lot sharing agreement of 55%
SLRDI - 45% ARSBS share. SLLI shall be entitled to 75% of SLRDI’s share in the joint
venture and 12% marketing fee on the gross selling price of all sales made from the project;

¢« Ponte Verde Davao Project- SLRDI has entered into a joint venture agreement with Green
Sphere Realty Corporation (GSRC) for a lot sharing agreement of 60% SLRDI - 40% GSRC

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
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share. SLLI shall be entitled to 75% of SLRDI"s share in the joint venture and 12% marketing
fee on the gross selling price of all sales made from the project; and

* Valle Verde Davao Project - SLRDI has entered into a joint venture agreement with GSRC for
a lot sharing agreement of 60% SLRDI - 40% GSRC share. SLLI shall be entitled to 75% of
SLRDI’s share in the joint venture and 12% marketing fee on the gross selling price of all
sales made from the project.

Total proceeds share of SLRDI from the joint operations amounted to #169.51 million, P157.70
million, F159.86 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, The share amounting £47.13 million,
£63.57 million, and P65.08 million are still 1o be remitted or offset against the receivable from SLRDI
as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

d. Effective October 1, 2014, SLLI directly entered into lease agreements with mall tenants. SLECC and
SLLI, on the other hand, entered into a management services agreement effective October 1, 2014
wherein SLECC will provide property management and business development services, leveraging its
knowledge in the mall operations from the past years. [n exchange of SLECC’s services, SLLI shall
pay SLECC a management fee equivalent to 7% of the gross rental revenue for managing mall
operations including, repairs and maintenance and cellection of space rental from storeowners or
fenants.

{ These are receivables from affiliates which are tenants of the mall.

e. The Parent Company made cash advances for preoperating costs for various expenses like registration
fees, taxes and licenses fees to its marketing arm.

The advances amounted to nil and £0.57 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

f.  The Parent Company made noninterest-bearing cash advances to officers and directors which will be
liquidated upen completion of the business transaction.

These advances amounted to £9.96 million and P14.50 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

g.  The Parent Company made cash advances to SVI to be used for various administrative and operating
CXpeENSes.

These advances amounted to P59.00 million and $33.83 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

h.  The Parent Company made advances from SLHI to be used for various administraiive and operating
| expenses.

These advances amounted to nil and P0.0% million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group has not made any provision for ECL relating to
amounts owed by related parties. There have been no guarantees and collaterals provided or received
for any related party receivables or payables. These accounts are noninterest-bearing and are generally
unsecured. This assessment of the Group is undertaken cach financial year by examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Present Emplovees

As mentioned in Item | on Employees/Officers, the Registrant has 115 officers, employees and contractuals.
The Registrant has embarked to support the increasing demand of workforce for its increasing operations. Hence

it anticipates to increase additional employees for the next ensuing year though no exact number of employees is
assumed.

The Registrant provides annual salary increases based on the performance. This is made through regular
performance assessment and feedback.

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
SEC Form 17-A 2018 [ 18



Development Activities

Currently, the Registrant is developing a number of vertical and horizontal projects, In addition, there
are a lot of future projects that the Registrant has planned to compete to the market demand and real estate
industry. The projects that presently have developmental activities are as follows:

Completed Projects:

Grand Villas Bauan

Splendido Taal Tower | and Tower 2

Villa Chiara

Luxurre Residences

East Bel Air 1

South Grove Davao

Neopolitan Condominium 1

Pueblo Del Sol Phl

Mesilo Nueva Vida

Vistamar Estate

Sierra Vista Residential Estate Ph2A

Alta Vista de Subic

Davao Riverfront

Glenrose Park Cebu

Lakewood Cabanatuan

Metropoli Residenza de Libis

Monte Verde Executive Village

Palo Alto Phl

Rizal Technopark

South Pacific Golf and Leisure Estate

Palm Coast Marina Bayside

Greenwoods Pasig

Greenwoods Executive PhOE, 8A1-3 and 8F3
Sta. Barbara Royale Phl1 A

Nottingham Villas Townhouse 5A-5D and 6-7
Green Meadows Iloilo Phl

Rizal Technopark Ph2F

Greenland Cainta PhoC, 3B, 3B1-2 and 4C1-2

On- Going Projects:

La Huerta Calamba

Green Meadows Dasmarinas Ph2 and Ph2ZA
Greenland Newtown Ph2C

Ponte Verde Davao Ph1-Ph3

Greenwoods Executive Ph1 A2 2A1, 2K1 and 3A2
Greenwoods Executive Ph8AS, 8F4-5 and 8Gl
Nottingham Townhouse Villas9-11

Althea Davao

Sotogrande Davao

Sotogrande Iloilo

Orchard Tower |

Woodside Garden Village Ph2C

South Spring Laguna

Harbor Spring Condotel

Goiden Meadows Binan Ph02C and Ph02D
Metropolis East Binangonan

Catalina Lake Residences Batangas

El Pueblo Verde

La Alegria Negros Occidental

Monte Verde Royale Ph 3B and 4A-4C

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
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La Mirada Tower 1

I.a Breza Tower

Greenland Antipolo

Green Meadows Tarlag

Stradella (formerly East Bel-Air 2)
Sta, Lucia Residenze | - Monte Carlo
Sugarland Estates

Pueblo Del Sol Ph2

Greenland Newtown Ph2B

Glenrose Taylay

Alta Vista Residential Estate and Golf Course

Costa Verde Cavite

Eagle Ridge

Greenwoods South

Metropolis Greens

Manville Royale Subdivision
Neopolitan Garden Condominium
Pinewoods

Southfield Executive Village
Caliraya Springs

Tagaytay Royale

Sta. Lucia East Grand Mall
Beverly Place Ph9H

Summerhills Phd

Sotogrande Ph2

Costa Del Sol Tloilo

Greenland Cainta PhdJ1, 8A1, 8B3 and 9B
Arterra Residences

Greenwoods North Ph2 and Ph3
Summerhills4 A and 4B

Valle Verde Davao

Colinas Verdes Ph3, 3A and 3B
Greenwoods Executive Ph540, 6 and 659
Greenwoods Executive Ph9D1 and 9F
East Bel-Air 3

Sta. Lucia Residenze — Santorini
Sotogrande Katipunan

Neopaolitan 2

Vermont Park Executive Ph1E and 41
Summit Point Golf And Residential Estate
Rockville Cavite

Green Peak Heights Phl-3

Almeria Verde Dagupan

Aqua Mira Resorts

Catalina Lake Residences Palawan
Green Ridge Executive Ph4 A

Metropolis Iloilo Ph2

Nasacosta Cove Batangas
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Orchard Residential Estate Phl1 A2

Sotogrande Ph3

Green Peak Heights Palawan
Cambridge Place Phl1A
Green Meadows Condominium
Hacjende Verde Iloilo
Lakewood Los Banos Ph4
Nottingham Villas Tloilo
Nottingham Villas Tagaylay
Seville Davao

Villa Verde East Ph3

Green Meadows [loito Ph2

Future Projects:

Spiendido Tower 3
Splendido Tower 4
La Mirada Tower 2
Sta. Lucia Residenze Tower 3
Sta. Lucia Residenze Tower 4
Sta. Lucia Residenze Tower 5

Palo Alto Ph2

Soler Mandug Davao

Costa Verde Alangilan

Centro Polis Davao
Greenwoods South PhdA and 6
Las Colinas Davac

Marbella Davao

Nottingham Villas Palawan
Rizal Technopark 2 Sec. 1, 2D1 and 2H
South Coast

Woodridge Iloilo

Neopolitan Tower 8
Neopolitan Tower 9
Valle Verde Cebu
Orchard Tower Condotel
Orchard Tower 3
Orchard Tower 4

East Bel-Air 4 Lipa Royale Ph 5
East Bel-Air 5 Green Ridge Expansion Property
East Bel-Air 6 Tomas Morato Condotel

Ponte Verde Ph 5

Valley View Ph2A

Ponte Verde Davao Expansicn
Greenwoods Executive Expansion
South Spring Expansion

Neopolitan Tower 3
Neopolitan Tower 4
Neopolitan Tower 5
Neopelitan Tower 6
Neopolitan Tower 7
Greenmeadows Ph 1 A and B

On January 19, 2009 at its Executive Committee Meeting, the Registrant resolved to enter info a joint venture
agreement with Royale Homes Realty and Dev’t., Inc. for the development of Antipole Greenland Phase IT, Mr.
Antonio C. Rivilla for Green Meadows Tarlac, Great Landho, Inc. for Sugarland, Darnoc Realty and Dev’t.
Corp. for South Coast and Surfield Dev’t. Corp., Boyd Dev’t. Carp., and Paretti Dev’t. Corp. for La Panday
Prime Property.

On February 12, 2010, the Registrant in its Executive Committee Meeting resolved to sign the joint venture
agreement with Mr. John Gaisano et al. for the development of several parcels of land in Matina Crossing,
Davao which has a total area of 162, 140 square meters known as the Costa Verde Subdivision.

On August 4, 2010, the Registrant, at its Executive Committee Meeting, resolved to approve the joint venture
agreement with General Milling Corporation (GMC) with a 132,065 square meter property located in the old
and new Bridge of Mactan Island te Cebu proper. Also, a second joint venture with spouses Gloria-Sulit-Lenon
of a piece of property located in San Mateo, Rizal with an area of 34, 703 square meters. Lastly, the 3™ joint
venfure agreement with SJ properties, Joseph O. Li et al. to develop a 102, 477 sguare meter property in
Kaytitinga, Alfonso, Cavite was approved.

On September 17, 2010 at the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors, the Registrant resolved to enter a joint
venture agreement with San Ramon Holdings, Ing. for the development of a parcel of land located in Canlubang,
Calamba, Laguna.

On February 07, 2011 at the meeting of the Executive Committee, the Registrant approved the joint venture
agreement among Sept. Company Inc (SCI}, Antonio Rivilla, and the Company, to develop parcel of land
situated Barrio San Antonto Abagon & Poblacion Municipality of Gerona, Tarlac with a total area of 153, 133
sq m inte a residential and commercial subdivision,

On February 09, 2011 at the meeting of the Executive Committee, the Company has entered into a joint venture
agreement with Sta. Lucia Realty and Development, Inc. for a development of a commercial subdivision located
in Barrio of Dumuclay, Batangas City. In addition, the Company also entered a joint venture agreement with

Sta. Lucia Land, inc.
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Anamel Builders Corporation {ABC) to develop a parcel of land owned by ABC located in the City of Gapan
Nueva Ecija, with an aggregate area of 136,059 square meters in a residential subdivision.

On March 16, 2011 at the meeting of the Executive Commitiee, the Registrant approve the joint venture
agreement between First Batangas Industrial Park Inc. to develop several parcels of land situated in the Brgys.of
Manghinao and Balayong Bauan, Batangas with an aggregate area of 538,138 sq m.

In the Executive Committee meeting held on October 20, 2011, the Registrant entered into a joint venture
agreement with Rexlon Realty Group Inc. to develop a parcel of land in Brgy. Kaybiga, Caloocan City intc a
residential subdivision, with an aggregate area of 5,550 sq m.

In the Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carporation held immediately after the Annual
Stockholder’s Meeting on June 29, 2012, the Board of Directors authorized the Registrant to enter into ioint
venture agreements with Royale Homes Realty and Development Corperation with respect to the development
of certain properties located in Brgy. Pasong Matanda, Cainta Rizal and Brgy. Sta. Ana Taytay, Rizal, with
Melissa Ann L. Hechanova, Maria Angela M. Labrador, and Vivian M. Labrador for the development of a
parcel of land situated in Brgy. Cabangan, Subic, Zambales, with Rapid City Realty & Development
Corporation with respect to the development of properties in Antipolo City and the Municipalities of Baras,
Tanay, Teresa, Province of Rizal.

On October 4, 2012 at the Special Meeting of the Executive Committee, the Registrant was authorized to enter
into joint venture agreements with the following:

a. Trillasun Realty and Development Corporation, with respect to the development of certain
properties in Brgy. Dumcclay, Batangas City

b. Sta. Lucia Realty and Development, Inc., with respect to the development of certain parcels of
land in Taytay, Rizal and Bario Mendez, Tagaytay City

c. Royale Homes Realty and Development, Inc., with respect to the development of properties in
Imus, Cavite;

d. Carlos Antonio S. Tan and Mark Davies 5. Santos, with respect to the development of certain
properties in Cainta, Rizal

e. Irma SB. Ignacio-Tapan, with respect to the development of certain properties in Cainta, Rizal

f.  MFC Heldings Comoration, with respect to the development of properties in Brgy. Tolotolo,
Consolacion, Cebu.

At the special meeting of the Board of Directors held on December 12, 2012 at the principal office of the
Company, the Registrant was authorized to enter into joint venture agreements with various parties with respect
to the expansion of various existing projects, involving the following properties:

a. A parcel of land with an area of 29,950 sq m situated in Brgy. Ampid, San Mateo, Rizal;
b. A parcel of land with an area of 72,767 sq m situated in Barrio Lapit, Urdaneta City, Pangasinan;
c. A parcel of land with an area of 8,906 square meters situated in Barrio Muzon, Angono, Rizal;

Also, the registrant was authorized to acquire the following properties:

a. A parcel of land with an area of 1,230 sqm in Quezon City,
b. A parcel of land in Barrio Inosluban, Buclanin, Lipa, 7,895 sqm
¢. A parcel of land in Mexico, Pampanga, 61,486 sqm

At the Special Meeting of the Registrant’s Board of Directors held on 18 April 2013, the following resolutions
on entering to Joint Ventures and acquining parcels of land were discussed and approved:

a. For the development of a parcel of land Jocated in Davao City owned by Greensphere Realty &
Devetopment Corp.;

b. For the expansion of the Registrant’s project known as Palo Alto, located in Tanay, Rizal,
involving parcels of land owned by Sta. Lucia Realty and Development, Inc. and Milestone Farms,
Inc.;
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For the expansion of the Registrant’s project known as Rizal Techne Park, located in Taytay,
Rizal, invelving parcels of land owned by Roval Homes Realty & Development Corporation and
JFG Construction and Development Services with an aggregate area of 10,100 square meters;

For the expansion of the Registrant’s project known as Greenwoods Executive Village, located in
Pasig City, involving a parce! of land owned by St. Botolph Development Corp. with an area of
5,558 square meters;

For the expansion of the Registrant’s project known as Cainta Greenland, located in Cainta, Rizal,
involving a parcel of land owned by Sta. Lucia Realty and Development, Inc. with an area of
5,019.5 square meters;

Seven parcels of land located at Barangay San Juan, Taytay, Rizal, with an aggregate area of
4,865.49 square meters, owned by Carmencita M. Estacio, Adela O. Leyca, Manuel Medina, Lucia
M. Del Rosario, Ireneo O. Medina, Leopoldo O. Medina, and Benifacio O. Medina; and

A parcel of land located in Lipa, Batangas with an area of 7,895 square mefers, owned by Benito

Magaling and Divina Tupaz.

On April 1, 2014, the Board approves a resolution authorizing the Registrant to enfer into joint ventures
involving the development of a new project located in Cebu with an area of 537,011 sq.m and to amend the

Articles of Incorporation of the Company to extend the corporate term by 50 years together with the following:

Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

Parcel of land at Sun City Expansion, Davao, 24,578 sqm
Parcel of land in Golden Meadows Sta. Rosa, 51,500 sgm
Parcel of land located in Greenwoods Batangas, 32,312sqm
Parcel of land in Lipa Royale Batangas, 9,421 sqm

ao o

Resolutions authorizing the Registrant to enter in joint ventures involving the following:

Development of Rizal Techno Park Taytay, 10,100sgm

Development of a new project in Puerto Princesa, 20,000 sqm
Development of land in Palawan, 61,315sqm

Development of parcel of land located in Greenweods South |, 32,3 14sgm
Expansion in Davao, 9,84 1sqm

Development of new project in Cebu, 537,01 tsqm

Development of project in Davao, 36,913sqm

Development of project on Ponte Verde, Davao, 28,000sqm

S oo a0 o

On July 1, 2014, the following were resolved by the Board to acquire:

a. Parcel] of land in Batangas City, 9315.5 sqm
b. Parcel of land in Batangas City, 3,087 sqm
c. Parcel of land in Taytay, 6,302 sqm

And a resolution was made to authorize the Registrant to enter into a joint venture for the development of a new

project in Dagupan Pangasinan, 77,001 sqm

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors, on 21 April 20135, the following resolutions were discussed

and approved:

a. Development of a project located in Ponte Verde Davao with an area of 36,915 sqm. and
28,751 sqm

b. Development of a new project in Eden Davao with area of 985,292 sq.m.

¢. Development of new project in Cainta Rizal with an area of 16,026 sq. m.

d. Development of new project in Taytay Rizal with an area of 8,318 sqm

¢. Development of 7 projects in Barrio San Miguel Pasig with an area of 8,423 sqm

f Development of new project in Bauan Batangas with an area of 246,653 sqm

g. Development of new project in Binangonan Rizal with an area of 24,492.62 sqm

h. Development of new project in Sta. Rosa Laguna with an area of 27,500 sqm

i. Development of new project in Bario Pasong Matanda Cainta Rizal with an area of 51,969 sqm

J. Land acquisition of parcels of land in Bauan Batangas
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k. Land acquisition of parcels of land in Jaro, Iloilo City
l. Parcel of land in Taytay, 6,302 sqm

Further, at the Annual Stockholders Meeting of the Company held on 19 June 2015, the following resolutions
autherizing the Company to enter info joint ventures and land acquisitions were authorized:

a. Development of a project located in San Juan Cainta with an area of 8,697 sqim

b. Development of a new project in Brgy. Tagburos Puerto Princesa Palawan with an area of 12,000
¢. Development of new project in Tagaytay with an area of 178,397 sqm

d. Development of new project in Jaro Iloilo with an area of 12,000sqm

e. Development of new project in Davao with an area of 43,137 sgm

f. Parcels of land located in Cainta Rizal with a n area of 10,110 sqm

g. Parcels of land located in San Juan Taytay with a n area of 893sqm

h. Parcels of land located in Inosluban Lipa with an area of 9,421 sqm

i. Parcels of land located in Dasmarinas Cavite with an area of 100,000 sqm

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Registrant held on 23 September 20135 at East-Bel Air
Residences Clubhouse, Felix Ave, Cainta, Rizal, the following resolutions were discussed and approved:

A. Authorizing the Registrant {o enter into joint ventures involving the following:

1. Development of 3 projects located in Brgy. Sta. Ana, Taytay, Rizal with an aggregate area of 18,104

$q.mM.;
2. Development of a new project located in Brgy. Mahabang Sapa, Cainta, Rizal with an area of 17,352
sq.m.;
3. Development of 4 projects located in Brgy. San Juan, Cainta, Rizal with an aggregate area of 24,753
sq.m.;

4. Development of a project in Cainta, Rizal with an area of 4,424 sq.m.;

5.Development of a project in Brgy. Pag-asa, Binangonan, Rizal with an area of 28,535.62 sq.m.;
6.Development of 2 projects located in Bo. of Tuctucan and Panginay, Guiguinto, Bulacan with an
aggregate area of 40,286 sq.m.;

7. Development of a project in Bo. Sinalhan, Sta. Rosa, Laguna with an area of 27,500 sq.m.; and

& Development of a project in Brgy. Quirino, Quezon City with an area of 1,100 sg.m.

B. Authorizing the Registrant to acquire the following:

1. Parcel of land located in Bo. Canigaran, Puerto Princesa City with an area 0f 6,338 sq.m.;
2. Parcels of land located in Barrio dela Paz, Bifian, Laguna with a total area of 15,484 sq.m.; and
3. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Panapaan, Bacoor, Cavite with an area of 370 sq.m.

At a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on 03 February 2016 at the principal office
of the Company the following were discussed and approved:

. Development of a project located in Pavia and Manduriao, Iloilo City with an area of 688,477 sq.m.;
. Development of a project located in Bo. Sacsac, Cebu with an area of 33,848 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Bauan, Batangas with an area of 84,339 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Bo. Dela Paz, Bifian, Laguna with an area of 13,700 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Sto. Tomas, Batangas with an area of 37,746 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Binangonan, Rizal with an area of 28,535.62 sq.m;

. Develepment of a project located in Dasmarifias, Cavite with an area of 44,692 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Bo. Mayamot, Antipolo City with an area of 8,471 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Brgy. Sta. Ana, Taytay, Rizal with an area of 7,725 sq.m.
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And

. Parcel of land located in Cavite with an area of 34,382 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Bo. dela Paz, Bifian, Laguna with an area of 10,322 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Bo. Sinalhan, Sta. Rosa, Laguna with an area of 5,500 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Santolan, Pasig City with an area of 1,977.50 sq.m.;

5. 21 parcels of land located in Calamba, Laguna with a total aggregate area of 315,361.97 sq.m.;
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6. Parcel of land located in n San Antonio, Bifian, Laguna with an area of 2,000 sq.m.

7. Parce] of land located in Dasmaridias, Cavite with an area of 300,000 sq.m.;

8. 11 parcels of land located in Bo. Manghinao 1, Bauan, Batangas with a (otal aggregate area of 89,942
sq.m.;

9. Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of 11,522 sq.m,,

10. 8 parcels of land located in Bauan, Batangas with a total aggregate area of 85,455 sq.m.;

11. 3 parcels of land lecated in Bifian, Laguna with a total aggregate area of 16,622 sq.m.;

12. 2 parcels of land located in Matinao, Polomolok, Gen. Santes City with a total aggregate area of
95,579 sq.m.;

13. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Iruhin, Tagaytay City with an area of 299 sq.m.

On 17 June 2016, the following were approved by the Board:

1. Development of a project located in Brgy. Tagburos, Puerto Princesa, Palawan with an area of
187,115.50 sq.m.;

2. Development of 2 project Jocated in Silay City, Negros Occidental with an area of 677,880 sq.m.;

3. Development of a project located in Brgy. Sta. Ana, Taytay, Rizal with an area of 3,053 sq.m.; and

4. Development of a project located in Bo. Mayamot, Antipelo City with an area of §,471 sq.m.
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. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to acquire the following:\

. Parcels of land located in District of Jaro, Iloilo City with a total area of 7,500 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Bo. Inosluban, Lipa City, Batangas with an area of 27,752 sq.m;

. Parcel of land located in Bifian, Laguna with an area of 13,302 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Bo. Sinalhan, Sta. Rosa, Laguna with an area of 14,814 sq.m;

. Parcel of land located in Bo. Tiniguiban, Puerto Princesa, Palawan with an area of 37,895 sq.m;

. Parcel of land located in Sta. Barbara, lloilo City with an area of 104,464 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located ir: Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of 11,759 sq.m;

. Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of 13,464 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of 5,569 sq.m.;

10. Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of 14,444 sq.m;

11. Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of 12,933 sq.m;

12. Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of 17,884 sq.m.;

13. Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of 12,904 sq.m.;

[4. Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of 15,594 sq.m;

15. Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayeng, Bauan, Batangas with an area of 5,166 sq.m.;

16. Parcel of land located in Bo. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas with an area of 10,927 sq.m.;

17. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Ulango, Calamba, Laguna with an area of 12,688 sq.m.;

18. Parcel of land located in Bifian, Laguna with an area of 3,130 sq.m.;

19. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City with an area of 16,832 sq.m.;
20. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, lloile City with an area of 15,781 sq.m.;
21. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, [loile City with an area of 11,628 sq.m.;
22. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, lloilo City with an area of 16,636 sq.m.;
23, Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City with an area of 18,064 sq.m.;
24. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City with an area of 16,636 sq.m.;
25. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Tloile City with an area of 11,595 sq.m.;
26. Parcel of land located Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City with an area of 96,295 sq.m.;
27. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, [loilo City with an area of 40,538 sq.m.;
28. Parcel of land located in Be. Pulanbato, Cebu City with an area of 13,819 sq.m.;

29. Parcel of land located in Bo. Darangan, Binangonan, Rizal with an area of 29,170 sq.m.;

30. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City with an area of 11,595 sq.m.;
31. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City with an area of 96,295 sq.m.;
32. Parcel of land located in Brgy. Cabugao Sur, Sta. Barbara, Iloilo City with an area of 40,538 sq.m.;
33. Parcel of land located in Bo. Canlalay, Bifian, Laguna with an area of 2,609 sq.m.;

34. Parcel of land located in Zamboanga City with ap area of 267,657 sq.m.;

35. Parcel of land located in Zamboanga City with an area of 18,600 sq.m.; and

36, Parcel of land located in Brgy. Tagburos, Puerto Princesa, Palawan with an area of 187,115.50
sq.m.
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Al the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on 23 November 2016 at the principal
office of the Corporation, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting throughout, the following were
discussed and approved:

A. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to enter into joint ventures involving the following:

. Development of a project located in Jaro, loilo with an area of 96,422 sq.m;

. Development of a project located in Batangas with a (otal area of 119,389 sq.m;

. Developrment of a project located in Cebu City with an area of 12,792 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Rizal with a total area of 308,340 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Davao City with an area of 300,000 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Pasig City with an area of 7,329 sq.m;

. Development of a project located in Nueva Ecija with an arca of 98,848 s¢.m.; and
. Development of a project located in Tagaytay City with an area of 29,640 sq.m.
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. Resolutians authorizing the Corporation to acquire the following:

. Parcel of land located in Jaro, Tloilo with a total area of 216,520 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Baguio City with an area of 9,822 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Tagaytay City with an arca of 21,888 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Panacan, Davao City with an area of 28,751 sq.m.;
. Parcels of land located in Calamba with a total area of 107,514 sq.m;

. Pargels of land located in Batangas with a total area of 142,677 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Rizal with an area of 208 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Quezon with an area of 4,211 sq.m.; and

. Parcels of land located in Antipolo City with a total area of 6,072 sq.m.
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At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on 17 February 2017 at the principal
office of the Corporation, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting throughout, the following were
discussed and approved:

A. Resolution appraving the corporate note of the Corporation

Subject to securing all required approvals under applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Corporation
was authorized to negotiate and avail of a ten (10) year Corporate Note Facility with financial
institutions, with a maximum of nineteen (19) investors, for an aggregate amount of PhP 3 Billion and
with an overallotment option of PhP 2 Billion, for the pre-payment of existing obligations of the
Corporation, strategic land banking, capital expenditures for ongoing and new projects, and general
corporate purposes.

B. Resolution authorizing the opening of bank lines with Maybank Philippines, Inc.

The Corporation was authorized to open a one (1) year, PhP 250 Million credit line with Maybank
Philippines, Inc. under terms and conditions that are in the best interest of the Corporation.

C. Resolutions autherizing the Carporation to enter into joint ventures invelving the following:

|. Develepment of a project located in Cebu with a total area of 8,644 sq.m.;

2. Development of a project located in Davao with a total area of 891,804 sq.m.;

3. Development of a project located in Batangas with a total area of 444,769 sq.m.;
4. Development of a project located in Nasughu, Batangas covering various tities;
5. Development of a project located in Rizal with an area of 47,607 sq.m;

D. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to acquire the following:

1. Parcel of land located in Davao with a total area of 67,695 sq.m.;
2. Parcel of land located in Batangas with an area of 8,118 sq.m.;
3. Parcel of Jand located in Palawan with an area of 3,721 sq.m.;

4. Parcels of land located in Rizal with a total area of 4,613 sq.m.;
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5. Parcels of land located in Tioilo with a total area of 7,394 sq.m.;
6. Parcel of tand located in Cavite with an area of 8,848 sq.m..

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on 27 April 2017 at the Choi Garden,
Greenhills, San Juan City, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting throughout, the following were
discussed and appreved:

A. Resolution approving the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting Date and Venue

The Annual Stockholders® Meeting for 2017 was set on 22 June 2017, 8:00 a.m. to be held at Il Centro,
Sta. Lucia Mall, Marcos Highway cor. Imelda Ave., Cainta, Rizal.

B. Resolution approving the New Corporate Governance Manual

Pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 19 Series of 2016, the New Corporate Governance
Manual of the Corporation was approved.

C. Resolution authorizing the Corporation te negotiate and deal with Multinational Investment
Bancorperation for a loan

The Corporation was authorized to negotiate and deal with Multinational Investment Bancorporation
for opening of a credit line for availment of unsecured toans of up to PhP 2 Billion.

D. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to enter into joint ventures invalving the following:

. Development of a project located in Cebu with an area of §,470 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Davao with a total area of 901,804 sq.m.;
. Development of a project located in Batangas with an arca of 254,836 sq.m.;
. Developrment of a project located in [loilo with a total area of 34,551 sq.m;

. Development of a project located in Rizal with a total area of 13,662 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Aurora with an area of 490,173.56 sg.m.;
. Development of a project located in Cavite with an area of 35,054 sq.m..
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Resclutions authorizing the Corporation to acquire the following:

. Parcel of land Jocated in Cavite with an area of 11,684 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Batangas with a total area of 19,309 sq.m.;
. Parcel of land located in Davao with a total area of 248,889 sq.m.;

. Parcels of land located in Iloilo with an area of 8,527 sq.m.;

. Parcels of land located in Rizal with an area of 159,696 sq.m.;
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F. Resolution authorizing the Corporation to negotiate and deal with Manulife China Bank Life
Assurance Corporation

The Corporation was authorized to negotiate and deal with Manulife China Bank Life Assurance
Corporation in connection with the employee retirement plan for the benefit of the Corporation’s
employees.

On June 22, 2017, the following resolutions were approved by the Board of Directors;

A. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to enter into joint ventures involving the following:
1. Development of a project located in Cavite with an area of 46,739 sq.m.

B. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to acquire the following:

1. Parcel of land located in Pangasinan with an area of 121,496 sq.m;

2. Parcels of land located in Batangas with a total area of 124,677 sq.m.; and
3. Parcels of land located in [loilo with a total area of 58,731 sq.m..

Sta. Lucia Lond, Inc.
SEC Form 17-A 2018 | 26



A

At the Special Meeting of the Executive Committee held on 14 September 2017 at the principal office of the
Corporation, at which meeling a quorum was present and acting throughout, the following were discussed and
approved:

A. Resoluiion authorizing the Corporation to eater into a joint venture invelving the development of a
project located in Palawan with a total area of 212,890 sq.m.;

B. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to acquire the following:

1. Parcel of land located in Marikina City with a total area of 355,310 sq.m.;
2. Parcel of land located in Quezon City with a fotal area of 53,133 sq.m.;

3. Parcel of land located in Palawan with a total arca of 23,461 sq.m.;

4. Parcel of land located in Batangas with a total area of 31,254 sq.m;

5. Parcel of land located in Davao with a total area of 22,991 sq.m.;

6. Parcel of land located in Laguna with a total area of 17,339.29 sq.m.

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on 08 January 2018 at its principal
office, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting throughout, the follewing were discussed and
approved:

A. Resolution approving the Minutes of the Organizational Meeting held on 22 June 2017
B. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to enter into joint ventures involving the following:

. Development of a project located in Baguio City with an area of 1,949 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Bulacan with a total area of 715,410 sq.m,;

. Development of a project located in Quezon City with an area of 1,560 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Cavite with an area of 8,109 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Rizal with a total area of 68,493 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Batangas with an area of 383,069 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Palawan with a total area of 178,762 sq.m.; and
. Development of a project located in Negros Occidental with an area of 69,000 sq.m.
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. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to acquire the following:

. Parcel of land located in Dagupan City with an area of 803 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Cavite with an area of 8,109 sq.m ;

. Parcels of land located in Laguna with a total area of 62,369 sq.m_;

. Parcels of land located in Batangas with a total area of 524,015 sq.m.;

. Parcels of land located in Rizal with a total area of 29,4635 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Iloilo with an area of 99,778 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Davao with an area of 50,000 sq.m.; and

. Parcel of land located in General Santos City with an area of 239,000 sq.m.
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D. Resolution authorizing the opening of a US§ bank account with Security Bank Corporation
E. Resolution approving negotiations for and availing of a corporate nete of the Corporation

Subject to securing all required approvals under applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Corporation
was authonzed to negotiate and avail of a seven (7) year Corporate Note Facility with financial
institutions, with a maximum of nineteen {19} investors, for an aggregate amount of PhP 3 Billion and
with an overallotment option of PhP 2 Billion, for the pre-payment of existing obligations of the
Corporation, the financing of project development costs, and general corporate purposes.

F. Resolution authorizing the establishment of the Board of Trustees for the Sta. Lucia Land
Retirement Plan
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Al the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on 07 February 2018 at its principal
office, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting throughout, the following were discussed and
approved:

A. Resolution approving the Minutes of the Special Mecting of the Board of Directors heid on 08
January 2018§;

B. Resolution authorizing the Corporation to enter into a joint venture invelving the development of a
project located in Pangasinan with an area of 67,176.50 sq.m.;

C. Resolution authorizing the Corporation to acquire a parcel of land located in Pangasinan with an
area of 67,176.50 sq.m.;

D. Resolution authorizing the Corporation to donate parcels of land located in the City of Tanauan with
a total area of 2,815 sq.m;

E. Resolution authorizing the Corporation to participate in the Armed Forces of the Philippines
Retirement and Separation Benefits System (“AFPRSBS”) bidding for a property located in Iloilo;

F. Resolutions authorizing the opening of bank accounts with Development Bank of the Philippines,
East West Banking Corporation and Bank of the Philippine [slands.

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on 24 April 2018 at its principal office,
at which meeting a quorum was present and acting throughout, the following were discussed and approved:

A. Resolution approving the Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors held on 07
February 2018;

B. Resolution setting the date of the Annual Stockholders' Meeting of the Corporation for the year 2018
on Thursday, 21 June 2018, 8:00 a.m., at Il Centro, Sta. Lucia Mall, Marcos Highway cor. Imelda Ave.,
Cainta, Rizal;

C. Resolution setting the record date on 21 May 2018 for purposes of determining the list of
stockholders of the Corporation who are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting;

D. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation {o acquire the following:

. Parcels of land located in Bavan, Batangas with a total area of 14,870 sq.m.;

. Parcels of land located in Carmen, Cebu with a total area of 231,280 sq.m.;

. Parcels of land located in Sta. Barbara, Iloilo with a total area of 70,200 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in Plaridel, Bulacan with an area of 3,155.50 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in San Mateo, Rizal with an area of 160,003 sq.m.;

. Parce! of land located in Puerto Princesa, Palawan with an area of 11,058 sq.m;

. Parcel of land located in Davao City with an area of 50,000 sq.m.;

. Parcel of land located in San Pascual, Batangas with an area of 26,008 sq.m.; and
. Parcel of land located in Dasmariiias, Cavite with an area of 6,081 sq.m.
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. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to enter into joint ventures involving the following:

. Development of a project located in Mandaue, Cebu with an area of 317,543 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Dagupan, Pangasinan with an area of 12,328 sq.m.;
. Development of a project located in Angono, Rizal with an area of 50,532 sq.m.;

. Development of a project located in Batangas with an area of 215,481 sq.m.; and

. Development of a project located in Dasmarifias, Cavite with an avea of 38,431 sq.m.
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F. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to open accounts with the following:

1. Bank of China;
2. Bank of Commerce;

3. AB Capital Securities, Inc.;

4. Regina Capital Development Corporation;

5. SB Equities Inc.;

6. Philippine Equity Partners, Inc.;

7. Deutsche Regis Partners, Inc.;

8. BPT Securities;

9. F. Yap Securities, Inc;

10. Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation;

11. China Banking Corporation;

12. Amalgamated Investment Bancorporation; and
13. Security Bank Corporation.

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on 28 September 2018 at its principal
office, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting throughout, the following were discussed and
approved:

A. Resolution approving the Minutes of the Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors held on
21 June 2018;

B. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to enter into joint ventures involving the following:

1. Development of a preject located in Rizal with an area of 18,222 sq.m.;

2. Development of projects located in Batangas with a total area of 60,621 sq.m.;

3. Development of a project located in Antipolo City with an area of 31,630 sg.m.; and
4. Development of a project located in Bulacan with an area of 14,038 sq.m.

C. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to enter into a joint venture with Sta. Lucia Realty & Dev.,
In¢. and the Armed Forces of the Philippines Retirement and Separation Benefits System
(“AFPRSBS™) for the development of a project located in Hoilo City with an area of 3,484 sq.m. The
same was also approved by the Related Party Transactions Committee to ensure the absence of conflict
of interest;

D. Resolutions authorizing the Corporation to acquire the following:

. Parcels of land located in Davao del Sur with a total area of 141,642 sq.m.;

. Parcels of land located in Iloilo with a total area of 121,808 sq.m.;

. Parcels of land located in Antipolo with a total area of 266,002 sq.m.;

. Parcels of land located in Nueva Ecija with a total area of 207 sq.m;

. Parcels of land located in General Santos City with a total area of 243,168 sq.m.;
. Parcels of land located in Rizal with a total area of 183,888 sq.m.

. Parcel of land located in Batangas with an area of 11,419 sq.m.; and

. Parce) of land located in Laguna with an area of 13,332.60 sq.m.
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. Resolution authorizing the Corporation to set-up the Sta. Lucia Foundation;
E. Resolution authorizing the Corporation to open accounts with China Banking Corporation;
G. Resolution authorizing the Corporation to reactivate its dormant account with Asia United Bank;

H. Resolution authorizing the Corporation to open a PhP500 million credit line with Security Bank
Corperation;

L. Resolution authorizing the Corporation to open a PhP500 million credit line with the Bank of the
Philippine Islands.
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At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on 07 December 2018 at its principal
office, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting throughout, the fellowing were discussed and
approved:

A. Resolution approving the Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors held on 28
September 2018;

B. Resolutiens authorizing the Corporation 1o enter into joint ventures involving the following:

. Development of projects located in Iloilo with a total area of 56,483 sq.m;

. Development of a project located in Pasig City with an area of 2,106 sg.m;

. Development of a project located in Batangas with an area of 12,152 sq.m.;

. Development of projects located in Bulacan with a total area of 20,349 sq.m.;

. Development of projects located in Rizal with a total area of 11,576 sq.m;

. Development of a project located in Laguna with an area of 13,003 sq.m.; and

. Development of a project located in Davao del Sur with an area of 37,550 sq.m.

~1 O B b —

o

. Resolutions authorizing the Cerporation to acquire the following:

. Parcels of land located in Palawan with a total area of 128,120 sq.m.;

. Parcels of land located in Batangas with a total area of 787,797 sq.m.;

. A parcel of land located in Davao del Sur with an area of 57,928 sq.m.;
. Parcels of land located in Cavite with a total area of 16,739 sq.m.; and
. A parcel of land located in Laguna with an area of 153,354 sq.m.

Lo e B —

D. Resolutions authorizing the Corperation to appoint a Data Protection Officer.

The following table shows the expenditures spent on development activities and its percentage to revenues:

Year PROJECT EXPENDITURES PERCENTAGE TO
REVENUES
2018 6.506,089,699 161%
2017 6,006,070,912 163%
2016 3,938,278,074 120%
2015 1,516,058,770 48%
2014 1,472,865,907 65%
2013 1,354,380,768 102%
2012 1,260,833,129 70%
2011 798,042,139 55%
2010 464,512,282 36%
2009 470,247,597 57%
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ITEM 2: PROPERTIES

Real Properties

The following table provides summary information on the Registrant’s land and other real properties as
of December 31, 2017, Properties listed below are wholly owned and free of liens and encumbrances unless

otherwise noted.

NO. | LOCATION AREA IN SQM LAND USE
RESIDENTIAL/
1 | Amang Rodriguez, Pasig City 10,156 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
2 | Bacolod City, Bacolod 52,669 | COMMERCIAL
3 | Baguio City, Benguet 35,887 | RESIDENTIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
4 | Batangas City, Batangas 23,976 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
5 | Cabanatuan City 94,417 | COMMERCIAL ¢
RESIDENTIAL /
6 | Cainia, Rizal 251,856 | COMMERCIAL
7 | Carcar Cebu 4,547 | RESIDENTIAL
8 | Cavinti, Laguna 84,980 | RESIDENTIAL
9 | Cebu City, Cebu 19,263 | RESIDENTIAL
10 | Consolacion, Cebu 15,923 | RESIDENTTAL
11 | Dasmarinas, Cavite 24,498 | RESIDENTIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
12 | Davao City, Davao 197,373 | COMMERCIAL
13 [ Dumuclay, Batangas City 71,991 | RESIDENTIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
14 | Fairview, Quezon City 69,543 | COMMERCIAL
15 | General Trias, Cavite 85,178 | RESIDENTIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
16 | llo-llo City, Ilo-llo 2,000 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
17 | Katipunan, Quezon City 2,000 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
18 | Lapu-Lapu City, Cebu 48261 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
19 | Libis, Quezon City 11,335 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
20 | Rosario, Cavite 4.897 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
21 | Roxas Blvd, Pasay City 2,571 | COMMERCIAL
22 | Subic, Zambales 15,685 | RESIDENTIAL
23 | Tagaytay City, Cavite 46,288 | RESIDENTIAL
24 | Tanay, Rizal 672,934 | RESIDENTIAL
25 | Taytay, Rizal 45,275 | RESIDENTIAL
26 | Tanuan, Batangas 7,374 | RESIDENTIAL
27 | Salitran, Dasmaniias Cavite 17,346 | RESIDENTIAL
28 | Imus, Cavite 34,690 | RESIDENTIAL
29 | Lipa, Batangas 7,895 | RESIDENTIAL
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30 | San Andres, Cainta, Rizal 1,000 | RESIDENTTAL
Bulacnin and Inosluban, Municipality
31 | ofLipa 9,421 | RESIDENTIAL
32 | Sta. Rosa, Laguna 27,500 | RESIDENTIAL
33 | Barrio Canigaran, Puerto Princesa 6,358 | RESIDENTIAL
Brgy. Muzon, Municipality of Taytay,
34 | Province of Rizal 12,446 | RESIDENTIAL
35 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 28,114 | RESIDENTIAL
36 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 11,584 | RESIDENTIAL
37 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 24,788 | RESIDENTIAL
38 | DeLa Paz, Binan Laguna 5,162 | RESIDENTIAL
39 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 9,227 | RESIDENTIAL
40 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 15,063 | RESIDENTIAL
Brngy. Manghinao I Municipality of
41 | Bauan, Province of Batangas 12,909 | RESIDENTIAL
Brngy. Manghinao I Municipality of
42 | Bauan, Province of Batangas 9,901 | RESIDENTIAL
43 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 8,151 | RESIDENTIAL
44 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 12,497 | RESIDENTIAL
45 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 17,783 | RESIDENTIAL
46 | Brngy. San Antonio Binan Laguna 4,300 | RESIDENTIAL
Brngy. Isabang, City of Lucena,
47 | Province of Quezon 4211 | RESIDENTIAL
48 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 12,105 | RESIDENTIAL
Brngy. Manghinao I Municipality of
49 | Bauan, Province of Batangas 12,603 | RESIDENTIAL
50 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 10,210 | RESIDENTIAL
51 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 9,948 | RESIDENTIAL
52 | Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, Rizal 1,293 | RESIDENTIAL
53 | Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, Rizal 893 | RESIDENTIAL
54 | Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, Rizal 893 | RESIDENTIAL
55 | Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, Rizal 893 | RESIDENTIAL
Brngy. Manghinao I Municipality of
56 | Bauan, Province of Batangas 8,282 | RESIDENTIAL
57 | Barrio Pulo, Pasig City 257 | RESIDENTIAL
58 | Bmgy. Balayeng, Bauvan, Batangas 6,638 | RESIDENTIAL
59 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 6,205 | RESIDENTIAL
60 | Brngy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 5,588 | RESIDENTIAL
61 | Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, Rizal 893 | RESIDENTIAL
62 | Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, Rizal 893 | RESIDENTIAL
Brgy. San Antonio, Municipality of
63 | Bifian, Province of Laguna 2,000 | RESIDENTIAL
64 | Brngy. Manghinao I, Bauan, Batangas 2,807 | RESIDENTIAL
65 | Brngy. Manghinao I, Bauan, Batangas 2,801 | RESIDENTIAL
66 | Brmgy. Manghinao I, Bauan, Batangas 2,801 | RESIDENTIAL
67 | Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, Rizal 893 | RESIDENTIAL
68 | Bo. Of San Juan, Taytay, Rizal 893 | RESIDENTIAL
Brngy. Pag-asa (Tayuman)
Municipality of Binangonan, Province
69 | of Rizal 208 | RESIDENTIAL
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70 | Sta. Ana, Taytay 5411 | RESIDENTIAL
71 | Leonard Wood Road, Baguio City. 9,822 | RESIDENTIAL
70

Brgy. San Roque, Zamboanga City 287,377 | RESIDENTIAL
71

Brgy. Pansin, Alfonso, Cavite 22,241 | RESIDENTIAL
72 Barangay Belbok, Batangas City,

Island of Luzon 9,316 | RESIDENTIAL
73

Sta. Barbara, Iloilo 4,053 | RESIDENTIAL
74

Brgy Dumoclay, Batangas City 32,313 | RESIDENTIAL
75 Brgy. Manghinao [ Municipality of

Bauan, Province of Batangas 6,610 | RESIDENTIAL
76 | Brgy. Balayong, Municipality of

Bauan, Province of Batangas 7,897 | RESIDENTIAL
77 Brgy. Balayong, Municipality of

Bauan, Province of Batangas 9,039 | RESIDENTIAL
78 Brgy. Balayong, Municipality of

Bauan, Province of Batangas 7,519 [ RESIDENTIAL
79 Brgy. Mataas na Lupa, San Pascual,

Batangas 26,008 | RESIDENTIAL
80 Brgy. Mataas na Lupa, Municipality

of San Pascual 21,765 | RESIDENTIAL
81

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 28,153 | RESIDENTIAL
82 | Barrio of Inosluban, Lipa City,

Batangas 27,752 | RESIDENTIAL
83

Bifian, Laguna 14,302 | RESIDENTIAL
34

San Pascual, Batangas 555 | RESIDENTIAL
83

San Pascual, Batangas 12,600 | RESIDENTIAL
86

San Pascual, Batangas 453 | RESIDENTIAL
87

Brgy. Manghinao 1, Bauan Batangas 18,947 | RESIDENTIAL
88

Brgy. Balayong Bauan Batangas 22,320 | RESIDENTIAL
89

Bo. of Inosluban, Municipality of Lipa 18,257 | RESIDENTIAL
90 | Municipality of Antipolo, Province of

Riza! 3,892 | RESIDENTIAL
91

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 18,260 | RESIDENTIAL
92

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 9,209 | RESIDENTIAL
93

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 6,679 | RESIDENTIAL
94

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 8,410 | RESIDENTIAL

Sta. Lucia Ltand, Inc.
SEC Form 17-A 2018

| 33



95

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan Batangas 6,563 | RESIDENTIAL
96

Bifian Laguna 10,322 | RESIDENTIAL
97 Brgy. Manghinao [ Municipality of

Bauan, Province of Batangas 13,515 | RESIDENTIAL
98

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 13,464 | RESIDENTIAL
99

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 13,377 | RESIDENTIAL
100 Brgy. Manghinao [ Municipality of

Bauan, Province of Batangas 11,759 | RESIDENTTAL
101 Brgy. Manghinao I Municipality of

Bauan, Province of Batangas 9,472 | RESIDENTIAL
102

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 9,523 | RESIDENTIAL
103 | Brgy. Manghinaa [ Municipality of

Bauan, Province of Batangas 8,898 | RESIDENTIAL
104 Brgy. Manghinao [ Municipality of

Bauan, Province of Batangas 8,606 | RESIDENTIAL
105 Canlalay, Municipality of Bifian,

Province of Laguna 2,609 | RESIDENTIAL
106 Brgy. Manghinao I, Municipality of

Bauan, Province of Batangas 7,723 | RESIDENTIAL
107

Barrio Canlalay, Biian Labuna 1,913 | RESIDENTIAL
108 Brgy. Manghinao [, Municipality of

Bauan, Province of Batangas 7,480 | RESIDENTIAL
109

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 7,950 | RESIDENTIAL
110

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 7,073 | RESIDENTIAL
111

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 6,082 | RESIDENTIAL
112

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan Batangas 5,868 | RESIDENTIAL
113

Barrio Mayamot, Anitpolo Rizal 1,180 | RESIDENTIAL
114

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 5,993 | RESIDENTIAL
115

Barric of Mayamot, antipolo Rizal 1,000 | RESIDENTIAL
116

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 4,547 | RESIDENTIAL
117

Bo. Manghinao I, Bauan, Batangas 51¢ | RESIDENTIAL
118

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 2,812 | RESIDENTIAL
119

Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 2,615 | RESIDENTIAL
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120 Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 2,535 | RESIDENTIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
121 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 42954 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
122 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 29,922 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
123 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 14,269 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
124 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 7,134 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
125 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 56,338 | COMMERCIAL,
RESIDENTIAL /
126 | Olango, Calamba, T.aguna 13,312 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
127 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 13,312 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
128 [ Olango, Calamba, L.aguna 16,787 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
129 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 13,312 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
130 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 29,022 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
131 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 0,625 | COMMERCIATL
RESIDENTIAL /
132 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 9,625 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
133 | Clango, Calamba, Laguna 10,872 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
134 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 9,626 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
135 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 9,625 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
136 | Olange, Calamba, Laguna 9,625 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
137 | Olange, Calamba, Laguna 13,313 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
138 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 6,584 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
139 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 6,585 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
140 | Olango, Calamba, Laguna 3,292 | COMMERCIAL
Barrio Salitran, Municipality of
141 | Dasmarifias, Province of Cavite 46,739 | RESIDENTIAL
Brgy. Balayong, Municipality of RESIDENTIAL /
142 | Bauan, Province of Batangas 29,170 | COMMERCIAL
143 | Leonard Wood Road, Baguio City 9,822 | RESIDENTIAL
144 | Brgy. Communal Davao City 24,578 | RESIDENTIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
145 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, Batangas 5,697 | COMMERCIAL
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RESIDENTIAL/
146 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, Batangas 10,927 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
147 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, Batangas 8,752 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
148 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, Batangas 10,180 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
149 | Brgy. Balayong Bauan, Batangas 12,904 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
150 | Province Cavite 34,382 | COMMERCIAL
Brgy. Sta. Lourdes, Puerto Princesa,
151 | Palawan 3,721 | RESIDENTIAL
152 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 14,444 | RESIDENTIAL
153 | Sta. Barbara, Province of Tloilo 8,527 | RESIDENTIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
154 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 13,634 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
155 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 12,774 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
156 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 11,191 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
157 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 10,684 | COMMERCIAL
158 | Brgy. Pag-asa, Binangonan, Rizal 3,115 | RESIDENTIAL
159 | Brgy. Pag-asa, Binangonan, Rizal 1,498 | RESIDENTIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
160 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 9,531 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
161 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 7691 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
162 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 6,449 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
163 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 3,176 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
164 | Brgy. Balaycng, Bauan, Batangas 2,135 | COMMERCIAL
165 | Sta. Barbara, Province of Ileilo 28,952 | RESIDENTIAL
Brgy. Balayong, Municipality of RESIDENTIAL /
166 | Bauan, Province of Batangas 31,254 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/
167 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 4,759 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /
168 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 14,558 | COMMERCIAL
Municipality of Sta. Rosa, Province of
169 | Laguna 8,000 | RESIDENTIAL
Brgy. Balayong, Municipality of RESIDENTIAL /
170 | Bauar, Batangas 15,539 | COMMERCIAL
Barrio Kingot, Municipality of Digos,
171 | Davao Del Sur 22,991 | RESIDENTIAL
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172 | Brgy. Communal Davao City 10,241 | RESIDENTIAL
Brgy. Balayong, Municipality of RESIDENTIAL /

173 | Bauan, Province of Batangas 12,933 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /

174 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan Batangas 6,278 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /

175 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan Batangas 5,649 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /

176 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan Batangas 4751 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /

178 | Barrio na Pulo. Lipa City 5,696 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/

179 | Barrio na Pulo, Lipa City 48,626 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/

180 | Barrio na Pulo, Lipa City 47.697 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /

181 | Barrio na Pulo, Lipa City 10,000 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /

182 | Barrio na Pulo, Lipa City 44,357 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/

183 | Barrio na Pulo, Lipa City 49,506 | COMMERCIAL
Barangay Cabugao, Sta. Barbara, RESIDENTTAL /

184 | lloilo 17,586 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /

185 | Tagum, Davao Del Norte 117,946 | COMMERCIAL
Barrio Anolid, Municipality of RESIDENTIAL /

186 | Mangaldan, Province of Pangasinan 10,470 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /

187 | Dasmarifias City, Cavile 34,692 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/

188 | Gayaman, Binmaley Pangasinan 20,411 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/

189 | Brgy. Sta. Barbara, Province of Tloilo 15,781 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL/

190 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan Batangas 24,173 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /

191 | Brgy. Balayong, Bauan, Batangas 22,122 | COMMERCIAL
Municipality of Sta. Barbara, Province RESIDENTIAL /

192 | of Iloilo 11,628 | COMMERCIAL
Brgy. Balayong, Municipality of RESIDENTIAL /

193 | Bauan, Batangas 11,398 | COMMERCIAL
Barrio of Sto. Domingo, Municipality RESIDENTIAL /

194 | of Bifian, Province of Laguna 504 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /

195 | Brgy. Cawag, Subic Zambales 35,588 | COMMERCIAL
RESIDENTIAL /

196 | Brgy. Santclan, Pasig City 3,972 | COMMERCIAL

4,321,582
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ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

[temized below are the list of cases and its status involving the Registrant,

CASETITLE NATURE OF PROPE COURT CASE AMOUNT STATUS
CASES RTY NO. INVOLVE
INVOLYV
ED

SAMAHANG OPERATING MESILO | HLURB HLUR | 8,000,000.00 —
MAGBUBUKID | SUBDIVISION SUBDIV | CALAMB | B actual damages COMPLAINANT'S
NG KAPDULA WITHOUT . A | ISION A, CASE 700,000 — | PENDING APPEAL
INC. CERTIFICATE OF | TCT LAGUNA | NO. exemplary
VS, REGISTRATION, | NOS. R-1V- 200,000 — attorney’s
STA, LUCIA SELLING T- 020312- | fee
LAND, SUBDIVISION 1307454 3569 300,000 ~ litigation
SLRDI, and | LOTS WITHOUT | and fee
SOUTH CAVITE | A LICENSE TO | T-
LAND CO, SELL AND | 1307433

ENGAGING [N

ILLEGAL ACTS

AND

FRADULENT

SALES

HANDLED BY:

ATTY.

EDINBURGH

TUMURAN
SPS. ERNESTO RESCISSION OF | GRAND | RTC CIVIL | 300,000 -
TATLONGHARI | DEED OF VILLA BR. 2, CASE EXEMPLARY DISMISSED
VS, ABSOLUTE BAUN BATANG | NO. 300,000 — (JAN. 219)
STA. LUCIA SALE {PORTI | AS 9246 ATTORNEY'S
LAND, ON) FEE WITH MR
FIRST 500 - VALUE OF
BATANGAS, and | HANDLED BY: 16,832 ENTIRE AREA
ROYALE ATTY., GLEN E. | SQ.M. PER SQUARE
HOMES DARADAL METERS
FELICISIMA CANCELLATION | PALO HLURB HLUR
BALAGTAS OF SALE, ALTO QUEZON | B REM
AND OFELIA REFUND OF ALL | PCOM CITY 060314- FILED APPEAL
ALVAREZ PAYMENTS TO Bl 15410 MEMORANDUM
VS. STA. THE L30 AT OFFICE OF
LUCIA LAND, RESPONDENTS THE PRESIDENT
MICHAEL AND THE
ROBLES AND CORRESPONDIN
MILESTONE G VAT WITH
FARMS, INC. INTEREST AND

DAMAGES

HANDLED BY:

ATTY. CRYSTAL

I PRADO
SHERRYL REFUND HLURB HLUR
ADRIANO CALAMB | B PENDING
VS, HANDLED BY: A CASE
STA. LUCIA ATTY, CRYSTAL LAGUNA | NO.
LAND L PRADO RIV-

102317-
4813
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CECILIA PONTE HLURB, RIV-
CORDERO VERDE CALAMB | 012318-
VS. BATAN A 4877
STA. LUCIA HANDLED BY: GAS LAGUNA WAITING FOR
LAND ATTY. CRYSTAL | P5 ORDER
I PRADO B7
L1z
DISMISSED/TERMINATED/
SETTLED
ELECTRICOM SPECIFIC METRO | RTC BR. CIVIL
NETWORK PERFORMANCE | POLI 222 CASE DISMISSED
TRADING (SURRENDER OF | LIBIS QUEZON | NO. R-
VS.STA. LUCIA | TCT) B2 ary QZN-
LAND HANDLED BY: L4 13-
ATTY. CRYSTAL 05521-
I. PRADO cv
SPS. VINCENT REFUND NEOPO HLURB HLUR
ORTIZ LITAN QUEZON | B TERMINATED
AND AUBREY HANDLED BY: CONDO | CITY CON-
ORTIZ ATTY. CRYSTAL | 8Tl LSG-
V8. STA. LUCIA | f PRADO ouG 060613-
LAND Pl 8177
RANDY SYNDICATED SUMME | PROSEC | XV-06-
OCAMPO ESTAFA RHILLS | UTION TNV- SETTLED
VS, P4 OFFICE 15G-
LOURDES B3 MANDAL | 00917
CONCEPCION HANDLED BY: L6 UYONG
DELIA ATTY. GLEN E.
URBANOET., DARADAL
AL..
RANDY RECOVERY OF SUMME | HLURB REM-
OCAMPO PAYMENT RHILLS | QUEZON | 06- SETTLED
V8. WITH PRAYER P4 CITY 2915-
STA. LUCIA FOR B8 15720
LAND, INC. BLACKLISTING L6
HANDLED BY:
ATTY,
EDINBURGH
TUMURAN
CONRADO SPECIFIC ANTIPO | HLURB HLUR CONTINUE
ASEO PERFORMANCE | LO Q.C. B PAYMENT COMPLAINANT
V8. WITH DAMAGES | GREEN 092013- WITHDRAW
STA. LUCIA LAND 15197 THE CASE
LAND P2
HANDLED BY: B7
ATTY. CRYSTAL | L1
I. PRADO
MARIA VIOLATION OF EAST FROSEC. | NPS LACK OF
BENGAN PD 957 BEL- CAINTA XVI8M | PROBABLE DISMI1SS
VS. STA. AIR -INV- CAUSE ED
LUCIA LAND I151-
EDR, VRS, MST | HANDLED BY: 03540
ET., AL. ATTY. CRYSTAL
1. PRADO
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S

ORVILLE CANCELLATION | PALO HLURB HLUR REFUND
CHESTER OF SALE, ALTO QUEZON B P2,233,963.44
DAVE REFUND CGF ALL | PL CITY REM- SETTLED
VS, STA. LUCIA | PAYMENTS TO B101 012017~
LAND, MA THE LIS 16149
LOURDES RESPONDENTS
CONCEPCION AND THE
CORRESPONDIN
GVAT WITH
INTEREST AND
DAMAGES
HANDLED BY:
ATTY. CRYSTAL
I PRADO
CONCHITA REFUND WITH SOUTH HLURB HLUR REFUND
TOLEDO DAMAGES FIELD CALAMB B RIV- P85,000.00
WHITE A 051217~ SETTLED
VS. SLRDI PHASE | 4710
{SLLILOT) HANDLED BY: BI12L26
ATTY. CRYSTAL | B26L 13
I PRADQO
PHARMAZEL SPECIFIC METRO | RTC BR. CIVIL
INC. PERFORMANCE POLI g1 CASE DISMISSED
V8§, LIBIS QUEZON NO, R-
ELECTRICOM B2 CITY QZN-
VS.STA. LUCIA | HANDLED BY: L4 13-
LAND ATTY. CRYSTAL 02350
I PRADO
THIRD PARTY
COMPLAINT
The following investigations involve the Registrant’s directors and officers:
CASE TITLE NATURE OF PROPERTY PENDING CASE STATUS
CASES INVOLVED COURT NO.
DOMINADOR TAN | Recovery of Portion of RTC, Civil
VS, ownership and | SOUTH Binan, Laguna | Case No.
1 | EXEQUIEL D. possession with | SPRING B-9022 FOR DISMISSAL
ROBLES application for
AND SLRDI the issuance of ON GOING JV

a temporary
order and/ar
preliminary
mjunction

Date
Instituted:
March 26,
2013

HANDLED

NEGOTIATION
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BY:
ATTY.
CRYSTAL I
PRADQ
LA MIRADA CANCELLATI | LA MIRADA HLURB HLURB
ROYALE ON OF QUEZON CASE FILED
2 | RESIDENTIAL CERTIFICAT CITY NO. APPEAL
LILILLIY AND V ES OF NTR- MEMORANDUM
V8. REGISTRATI HOA- AT OP
VICENTE R. ON 082213-
SANTOS AND 575 PENDING
LA MIRADA
ROYALE Date
RESIDENTIAL [ustituted:
ASSOCIATION August 22,
2013
HANDLED
BY:
ATTY, JERRY
B.DELA
CRUZ
BAYBREEZE Development BAYBREEZE OFFICE OF HLURB
EXECUTIVE THE CASE FILED
3 | VILLAGE PRESIDENT NO. APPEAL
HOMEOWNERS Date NCRHO MEMORANDUM
ASS. Instituted: A- AT OP
VS, November 26, 112613-
EXEQUIEL D. 2013 1932 PENDING
ROBLES
AND VICENTE R. HANDLED
SANTOS AND BY:
SLRDI ATTY. JERRY
B. DELA
CRUZ
ROSALINA Pay the ORCHARD HLURB RIV-
HONRADQ decreased in RES. Calamba, 081214- FILED
4 | VS, area and/or lot | Phase 02 Laguna 4114 MOTION TO
EXEQUIEL D. replacement Block 12 DISMISSED
ROBLES, ET., AL, Lot 60 September 15, 2014
AND SLRDI Date
Instituted:
August 12,
2014 PENDING
HANDLED
BY:
ATTY.
EDINBURGH
P. TUMURAN
PTOLYME Fraudulent EAGLE RIDGE | OFFICE OF HLURB
DIMENSIONS INC Machination, THE CASE
5 | AND SIAPORE unsound PRESIDENT NO. FILED
MICRO business RIV- APPEAL
V8. practice, 041315- MEMORANDUM
EXEQUIEL D. election of 0741 AT OP
ROBLES HOA cofficers,
AND VICENTE R. Annulment of
SANTOS AND property
SLRDI, managemenl PENDING
EAGLERIDGE contract, guo
AND RS warranto with
prayer for the
issuance of a
cease and
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desist
order/applicatio
n for temporary
restraining
order and or
writ of
preliminary
injuction

Dare
Instituted:
April 13,2015

HANDLED
BY:

ATTY. JERRY
B.DELA
CRUZ

(RS)

ATTY.
EDINBURGH
P. TUMURAN
(SLRD{)
ATTY. GLEN
E. DARADAL
(EAGLE
RIDGE)

GRACE PENDON
ET, AL..

6 | VS.

EXEQUIEL D.

ROBLES ET., AL.

HUMAN
RIGHTS

Summons
recefved on.!
July 01, 2015

HANDLED
BY:

ATTY.
AQUING
MARTIN V.
NILLO

RIZAL
TECHNOPAR
K

CHR
QUEZON
CITY

CHR

2015-
0217

FILED
COUNTER-
AFFIDAVIT

PENDING

VISTA VERDE

7 | vs.
EXEQUIEL D.
ROBLES,
JOHNIELLE
KEITH NIETO

COUNTRY HOMES

VIOLATION
OF SEC. 3 (A)
GRAVE
MISCONDUC
T
OPPRESSION
AND
CONDUCT
PREJUDICIAL
TO THE BEST
INTEREST PF
THE
SERVICE

Suminons
received on:
July 30, 2015

HANDLED
BY:

ATTY.
AQUINO
MARTIN V.
NILLO

VISTA VERDE
COUNTRY
HOME

OFFICE OF
THE
OMBUDSMA
N

OMB-L-
C-15-
Q169

DISMISSED

WITH APPEAL AT
sC

FILED
COMMENT
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RENATO CABILZO | OTHER ACROPOLIS DOl XV-1-
VS. DECEITS MANDALUYO | MANILA INV-
EXEQUIEL D. SYNDICATE NG 151- DISMISSED
8 | ROBLES D ESTAFA B5L4,56 02516 WITH APPEAL AT
VICENTE R. LARGE DOJ
SANTOS SCALE
MARIZA SANTOS- | ESTAFA
TAN
EXALTACION R. Date
JOSEPH Institured:
FELIZARDO R. September 18,
SANTOS 2015
ANTONIO D.
ROBLES HANDLED
LIBERATO D. BY:
ROBLES ATTY.
EDINBURGH
P. TUMURAN
SPS. MARTIN Specific VALLEY HLURB REM-
ERICSON CRUEL Performance VIEW EXEC. QUEZON 122315- PENDING
9 | AND CZARINA PIC CITY 15873
CRUEL Date B2
V8. tustituted: L12
MARIZA SANTOS- | December 23,
TAN, SLRDI 2015
HANDLED
BY:
ATTY. Z19 8.
JAVIER
CLOVIS RANCHO, Violation of PD | ROYALE PROSECUTO [.S. NO.
1 | AMADO JOSE 957 CEBU RS OFFICE VII- FILED
0 | GARCIAET., AL. And Arr. 318 of | ESTATE OF CEBU INV- COUNTER
VS. RPC 16G- AFFIDAVIT
EXEQUIEL D. 0925
ROBLES, MARIZA PENDING
SANTOS-TAN, ASSISTED
VICENTE R. BY:
SANTOS ET.AL. ATTY.
EDINBURGH
P. TUMURAN
TIMOTHY JASON PD 957 VISTA REAL PROSECUTO NPS
I | PERALEJO CLASSICA RS XV-03- DISMISSED
I | V8. P UPM QFFICE OF INV- (JUNE 2018)
EXEQUIEL D. B9 QUEZON 17K-
ROBLES, L 10 CITY 11187 FILED PETITION
VICENTE R. FOR REVIEW AT
SANTOS, DOJ
MARIZA SANTOS-
TAN,
EXALTACION R.
JOSEPH, Date
LIBERATO D. | Instituted:
ROBLES, November 27,
FELIZARDO R. | 2017
SANTOS,
IGMIDIO D.
ROBLES, HANDLED
LEQODEGARIO R. | BY:
SANTOS, ATTY.
AURORA D. | CRYSTAL L
ROBLES, PRADO
ORESTES R.
SANTOS,
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ROBERTO D,
ROBLES,
DOMINGA R.
ROBLES,
ANTONIO D.
ROBLES,
ANDREA R.
ANDRES,
JERRY GALOPE Quieting of MEADOWOO REGIONAL BSC-
VS, Title D TRIAL 2016-04 FILED ANSWER
1 | EXEQUIEL D. CAVITE COURT JULY 06, 2618
2 | ROBLES, SLRDI, BR. 19
ET, AL. Datg BACOOR, WITH MOTION TO
Instituted: CAVITE SET PRE-TRIAL
April 20, 2016
PENDING
HANDLED
BY:
ATTY. Z19 8.
JAVIER
DEPT. OF Section 73, RA | BLUEMOUNT | PROSECUTO | XV-0I-
AGRARIAN 6657 as AIN RS INV-
1 | REFORM/PROVIN | Amended 25 of | ANTIPOLO OFFICE OF |8F- DISMISSED
3 | CIAL TASK RA 9760 ANTIPOLO 00688 (OCT. 2018)
FORCE
V8. Date FILED MR
EXEQUIEL D. Instituted:
ROBLES, I[GMIDIO | June 20, 2018
D. ROBLES, ET,,
AL. HANDLED
BY:
ATTY.
CRYSTAL I
PRADO
RUSSEL Estafa VISTA VERDE | PROSECUTO NPS-IV-
MIRAFLOR QUEZON RS 16-INV- FILED COUNTER
1 | VS, Date P2 OFFICE OF 12E- AFFIDAYIT
4 | EXEQUIEL D. Instituted: B 41 LUCENA 00232 AUG. 2018
ROBLES, ET., AL. June 13,2018 L35
HANDLED
BY:
ATTY.
EDINBURGH
P TUMURAN
CECILIA Vielation of PONTE PROSECUTO NPSD
1 | CORDERO Sections 4 & 5 | VERDE RS NO. IV- DISMISSED
5 | VS, in rel BATANGAS OFFICE OF 02-INV- MARCH 2018
EXEQUIEL D. fo Sec. 39 of PS5 TANAUAN 171-
ROBLES PD 957 B7 01384 FILED PETITION
L12 FOR REVIEW AT
Complaint DOJ
received on:
Oct. 13, 2014
HANDLED
BY:
ATTY.
CRYSTAL L
PRADO
MANUEL Injunction with REGIONAL R-QZN-
MORATO ET., AL. prayver for TRIAL 18-
1 | VS. EXEQUIEL D. isswance of COURT 04305- FILED
6 | ROBLES, STA. preliminary BR. 215 Cv COMMENT/OPPOSI
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LUCIA LAND INC. | /njunciion QUEZON TION
AND LIBERATO D. | and/or CITY
ROBLES, ET., AL. Temporary
Restraining
Order (TRO)
HANDLED
BY:
ATTY.
CRYSTAL I
PRADO
MANUEL Syndicated PROSECUTO | XV-03-
MORATO ET., AL. Estafa RS INV- DISMISSED
1 | V8. EXEQUIEL D. OFFICE OF 18F- (NOV. 2018)
7 | ROBLES, QUEZON 05949
VICENTE R. CITY FILED PETITION
SANTOS AND HANDLED FOR REVIEW AT
LIBERATO D. 8Y: DOJ
ROBLES, ET., AL. ATTY.
CRYSTAL 1.
PRADO
1 | ROMEQ LADANO Malicious BLUEMOUNT | PROSECUTO | XV-0I-
8 | Vs, Mischief AIN RS INV-
DENNIS ANTIPOLO OFFICE OF 17])- DISMISSED
BELMONTE ANTIPOLO 01001
EUFEMIA ABEDES | Complaint WITH MR
EXEQUIEL received on:
ROBLES Jan. 23, 2018
IGMIDIO ROBLES
HANDLED
BY:
ATTY.
CRYSTAL 1.
PRADO
1 | NELSON ZAPEDA Estafa GREENWOOD | NATIONAL NBI-
9 | VS S BUREAU OF CCN-C-
EXEQUIEL D. TAYTAY INVESTIGATI | 18- ON GOING
ROBLES ON 06295 INVESTIGATION
HANDLED Manila
BY:
ATTY.
EDINBURGH
P. TUMURAN

Other than in the above-mentioned cases, the Registrant, its directors, officers or affiliates, any owner of record
of more than 10% of its securities, or any associate of any such director, officer or affiliate, or security holder
are not, to the knowledge of the Registrant, parties to any material legal proceeding during the past five (5) years
up to date, including and/or involving any bankruptcy petition, conviction by final judgment, subject of an
order, judgment or decree, and violation of a Securities or Commodities Law.,

ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Except for the matters taken up during the Annual Meeting Stockholders, there was no other matter
submitted to a vote of security holders during the period covered by this report.

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc,
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PART II - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information

The principal market of the common equity of the Registrant is the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
(PSE). Provided below is a table indicating the high and low sale prices of the common equity of the Registrant

in the PSE for each quarter within the last seven fiscal years and subsequent periods:

2018
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price
HIGH 23 Jan./P1.06 09 May/P1.17 04 Sept./P1.22 11 Dec./P1.27
LOW 26 Mar./P0.98 02 Apr/P098 12 Jul/P1.03 03 Qct./P1.07
2017
st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price
HIGH 06 Jan./P1.14 08 Jun/P1.11 10 Jul./P1.08 03 Oct./P1.08
LOW 31 Mar./P0.96 25 May/P0.96 23 Aug./POS9 19 Dec./P1.00
2016
st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price
HIGH 28 Mar./P0.93 08 Jun)/P.94 05 Sep./P1.21 01 Dec./PL.26
LOW 0] Feb./P0.74 05 May/P0.85 01 Jul/P0.81 23 Nov./P0.95
2013
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price
HIGH 10 Mar./P1.02 04 April/P.85 06 Aug./PO.75 27 Oct./P(.82
LOW 3] Mar./P0.80 05 Jun/P0.70 25 Aug/P0.64 06 Oct./PO.70
2014
Lst Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price
HIGH 17 Mar./P0.66 27 June/P.98 0% Jul./P1.20 16 Nov./P0.84
LOW 14 Feb./P0.58 04 Apr/P3.66 31 July/P0.85 20 Nov./P0.30
2013
1st Quarter 2nd Quaster 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price
HIGH 6 March/P1.35 19 April/P1.05 23 Jul /P0O.71 11 Nov/P0.71
LOW 2 January/P0.66 25 June/P0,58 28 Aug /P0.60 17 Dec/P0.58

Sta. Lucia Land,
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Ist Quarter

™

01

o~

2nd Quarter

3rd Quarter

4th Quarter

Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price
HIGH 9 March/P0.84 18 April/PO.79 6 Aug /P0.76 6 Dec /P0.74
LOW 2 January/P0.70 19 June/P0.66 27 Sep/P0.65 29 Nov/P0.65

2011

Ist Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price Date/Price
HIGH 06 Jan /P1.88 04 Apr/P1.15 01 July/P0.98 18 Nov/P0.R3
LOW 28 March/P1.01 21 Jun/PO .80 26 Sept/P0.64 04 Qct /P0.67

Holders

As of December 28, 2018, the Registrant’s shares stood at closing price of P1.25.

Based on the 31 December 2018 List of Stockholders prepared by the Registrant’s Stock and Transfer
Agent, PROFESSIONAL STOCK TRANSFER, INC, the Registrant has two hundred sixty four (264)

sharcholders of common shares, of which the top 20 shareholders are as follows;

RANK

[y

r

—_ [t IR - ey T ¥y I S V)
W =D

o
.

b e
WO TN

Fud
o

TOP TWENTY STOCKHOLDERS
As of 31 December 2018

NAME

STA. LUCIA REALTY & DEVELOFMENT,

INC.
PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION

LUGOD, BERMNARD D

DELA CRUZ, THOMAS EDWIN M.
CITISECURITIES, INC.

EBE CAFITAL HOLDINGS, INC.
ROBLES, EXEQUIEL

GANTOS, VICENTE

LIMTONG, JULIE H.

FRANCISCO ORTIGAS SEC., TNC.
TAN, PEDRO C.

ASA COLOR & CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES,

INC.

G & L SECURITIES CO., INC.
VALDEZ, AMBROSIO &/OR FELISA
VALDEZ

LIMTONG, ANTHONY FRANCIS H.
LIMTONG, GAIL MAUREEN H.
LIMTONG, HARRY JAMES H.
LIMTONG, JOHN PATRICK K.
LIMTONG, JULIE ANN KRISHA H.

SUN HUNG KAI SECURITIES (PHILS.),

INC.

CTZN

FILIPINO

FILIPINO /
OTHERS
FILIPINOD
FILIPINO
FILIPING
FILIPING
FILIPINO
FILIPINO
FILIPINO
FILIFING
FILIPINO

FILIPING
FILIFING
FILIPING

FILIPING
FILIPING
FILIFING
FILIPIND
FILIPING

FILIPIMO

Total Outstanding Shares as of 2018- 8,196,450,000

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
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TOTAL SHARES

6,701,005,767

2,337,135,607

10,000,000
10,000,000
3,250,600
1,535,000
712,500
712,454
400,000
365,000
278,050

182,774
70,000
50,000

40,000
40,000
40,000
40,000
40,000

39,000

PERCENTAGE
()]

81.7550

<
[

rJ

70

[l

8.
0.
0.

Lo B ]

Far €2

122
122
0.0397
0.0187
0.0087
0.0087
0.0049
G.0045
G.0034

0.0022

0.0002
0.0006

0.0005
0.0005
.0005
0.0005
0.0005

0.0004
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Dividends
No cash dividends were declared for the year 2018 and 2017, The payment of dividends in the future
will depend upon the earnings, cash flow, project expenditures and financial condition of the Registrant and

other considerations.

Cash and property dividends, if any, are subject to approval by the Registrant’s Board of Directors and
stockholders. Property dividends are likewise subject to the approval of the SEC and PSE.

Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities

None

ITEM 6: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATIONS

COMPARISON: YEAR END 2018 VS. YEAR END 2017

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview of Operations

By the Group’s commitment to maintain its soaring position in providing quality and excellence in real estate
development in the market niche, the group was able to hit a revenue growth of 30% in 2018. Net income after
tax increased to PL,065 millica in 2018 from P8I8 million fast year, The significant growth was mainly
attributable to the robust increase in the recognized income from the real estale sales. Boosted by the effective
implementation of its extensive marketing efforts and across the board developments all over the country, real
estate sales grew from P2,108 million in 2017 to P2,428 million in 2018 and rental revenue decreased from
P1,026 million in 2017 to P859 mullion in 2018.

Also, the Group was able to efficiently carry out its strategies for its cost management, maintaining cost level of
38% of its gross revenue in 2018 as compared to 39% in 2017, thus increasing its returns.

Revenue

Boosted by the effective implementation of extensive marketing efforts and across the board developments all
over the country, the Group was able to generate gross revenue of P2,428 million in 2018 from its real estate
sales. However, rental income decreased by P167 million from P1,026 million recognized in 2017 due to
reevaluation of lease rates to be competitive with neighboring malls. During the year, more buyers opted for
longer payment schemes from real estate sales resulting to increase in recognized interest income totaling to
P301 million in 2018 as compared to P60 million in 2047, Revenue from other sources totaled P444 million in
2018.

Cost and Expense

Total expenses for the year amounted to 2,890 million, 13% higher than $2,559 million in 2017. Cost of sales
is 1,513 million and P1,446 million. selling and administrative expenses is P670 million and P625 million,
interest expense is P707 million and P488 million in 2018 and 2017 respectively.

Net Income

Net income after tax increased by 30% or £248 million from P818 million in 2017 to £1,065 million in 2018.
The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in real estate sales,

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
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PROJECT AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

As the Group envisions to become the country’s leading Real Estate Company not in sheer size but in ways
more meaningiful quality projects, quality business plans, grow, returns and innovation, the Group spent P§,506
million for project and capital expenditures. The amount is accounted for the continuous development of the
Registrant’s existing residential and commercial projects and finance newly developed projects. P31% million of
the said amount was used in procuring raw lands for new residential and condeminium project developments.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
Assets

The Group’s total assets increase to P34,778 million in 2018 from P29,807 million in 2017. The 17% increase is
due to significant amount project and capital expenditures spent in 2018 increasing the real estate inventory by
2,276 million. Also, increase in other current assets amounting to P2.426 millien have significantly affected
the increase in total assets.

Liabilities
Total liabilities reported to be P20,262 million in 2018 compared to £15,497 million in 2017, This is attributable
to the availment of long term loans and issuance of corperate bonds during 2018, The increase in contract

liabilities, previously recognized as custormers’ deposit, is due to more projects developed that offered for sale
during the year. This contributed an amount of P840 million in the increase in total liabilities.

Equity
Total stockholders™ equity increased by P214 million in 2018 due to the net income generated during the year
ameunting to P1,065 million. Also contributing to the increase is the change in fair value of available for sale

financial assets amounting to P107 oullion.

Key Performance Indicators

31-Dec-18 31-Dec-17
Current Ratio 2.81 2.27
Debt to Equity 1.40 1.08
Interest Coverage Ratio 161.61% 231.94%
Return on Asset 3.06% 2.74%
Return on Equity 7.37% 5.71%

*Notes to Key Performance Indicators:

. Current Ratio = current assets (cash, receivables, inventories, due from affiliates, prepaid commissions,
and other current asset) over current habilities (accounts payable, customer deposit, current poriion of
bank loans, income tax payable, and deferred tax liabilities).

Debt to Equity = Total debt over shareholder’s equity.

Interest Coverage Ratio = Earnings before tax over Interest expense.

Return on Asset = Net Income over Total Assets.

Return on Equity = Net Income over shareholder’s equity.

Lh = o

There are no events that will frigger any direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
Registrant, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent cbligations), and
other relationships between the Registrant and unconsolidated entities were created during 2018,

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
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Material Changes in the Balance Sheet (+/- 5%) as of December 31, 2018 versus the Balance Sheet as of
December 31, 2017

70% increase in cash

Increase in cash was due to increase in collections from sales. Also, the availment of short and long-term loans
counterweighed the substantial amount spent in capital expenditures, thus inecreasing the amount of cash in
2018

30% decrease in receivables
The boosted effort exerted in colleciions had significantly reduced the receivabile balances realizing more cash
during the year.

14% increase in real estate invenfories

The increase was primarily due o significant capital expenditures in 2018. As the group envisions expanding its
business in the market niche, significant funds was allocated in project developments and acquisition of raw
lands, thus increasing the real estate inventory.

89% increase in other current assets
The significant growth was due to the across the board project developments and aggressive marketing
activities thus Increasing prepayments to the contractors and marketing arms.

67% decrease in noncurrent receivables
The significant decrease was brought about by the extended efforts exerted in collections from customers.

20% decrease in property and equipment
The decrease is due to deprecation of assels.

12% increase in available for sale financial assets
Increase in the fair market value of the financial assets.

518% increase in other noncurrent assets
Primarily due to significant security deposits made in 20/8.

33% ncrease in accounts payable
The increase is mainly attributable o the increasing procurement of resources to be used in project
developments acquired under installment payment schemes.

34% decrease in short-term debt
As the Group maximized its fund sourcing through long-ferm loan availment and issuance of corporate bonds,
shori-term lines were settled during the year.

57% decrease in income tax payable
Mainly ativibutable to timing differences of revenne recognition of real estate transactions and others for iax
PUFDOSES VEYSUS QCCOURLING purposes.

98% increase in long term debts
The Group maximized lis fund sourcing activities through availment of long-term loans and issuance of
coiporafe bonds.

20% decrease in deferred tax liabilities-net
Decrease was due to the reversal deferred tax liability ativibuted to the uncollected rent 10 SLECC.

155% increase in pension liabilities
Due to the changes in estimates for retivement liability as valued by the independent actuawry.

122% increase in treasury shares
Increase in reasury share was brought about by the purchase of 750,000,000 shares costing P900,000,000.
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23% increase in unrealized gain on fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
Increase was due (o the increase in markel price of investment securities in Philippine Racing Inc. and Manila
Jockey Club Inc.

1,434% increase in urrealized gain on pension liabilities
Due to the changes in estimates for retivement liability as valued by the independent actuary.

Material Changes in the Income Statement (+/- 5%) for the year ended December 31, 2018 versus the
Income Statement for the year ended December 31, 2017

15% increase in real estate sales
As driven by the Group’s vision of expanding its position in the market niche, boosted marketing efforts during
the year was employed increasing ihe real estate sales recognized during the year.

16% decrease in rental income
Duie to reevaluation of iease rates to be competitive with neighboring mails

88% increase in interest income
Boosted sales significantly increased the recognized interest income during the year as more buyers opted to
choose installment payment scheme.

66% increase in commission income
Increase was due to significant marketing strategies employed by our marketing company subsidiary.

13% increase in cost and expenses
Relatively due 10 increase in operations of the company.

33% increase in commissions
Brought about by the increase in veal estate sales recognized during the year.

28% decrease in taxes, licenses and fees
Due to the decrease in shori-tern line financing, minimal documentary stamp taxes was incurred during the
year.

16% increase in advertising
Increase was mainly attvibuted to the boosted markeiing strategies implemented during the year to increase
sales.

7% decrease in salaries, wages and other benefits
Due lo the decrease in emplovee turnover, previously hived personnel remained in the Company. This resulted
in decreasing outflow of resources attributed in hiring new employees.

33% decrease in professional fees
The decrease was due 1o the termination of contract from various consultant and professionals for the
continuous project developments.

62% decrease in representation
Primarily due to the decrease in vepresentation related expenses paid by the Group.

14% decrease in depreciation and amortization
Decrease was due to lower depreciation recognized as result of minimal property and equipment acquisition
during 2018.

18% decrease in ubilities
The dropdown in amount was due to the effective implementation of cost management strategies relating to
consumption of light, water and conmunication expenses.
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97% increase in repairs and maintenance

[ncrease in number projecits already compleied not yet twned over to home owners associations (HOA) and
Condominium Corporation significantly increased the incurrence of expenses relaied to repairs and
maintenance for its upkeep.

45% decrease in provision for doubtful accounts
Extensive collection strategies were implemented thus, reducing the managewent's estimate for doubiful
accounts.

45% increase in interest expense

The Group's shifi in maximizing fund raising activities to availment of long-term loans and issuance of
corporate bonds increased the recognized interest expense in 2018.

75% decrease in provision for income tax

Decrease was mainly attributed 1o the reversal of deferred tax liability,

COMPARISON: YEAR END 2017 VS. YEAR END 2016

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview of Operations

A growth in net income after taxby (2% compared to previous year represents continuing growth and excellence
in Group’s commitment to provide quality real estate developments. Net income after tax increased to
P818million in 2017 from P730 million in 2016. Gross revenue amounting to P3,689 million or 12% increase as
compared to P3,293 million from 2016 js mainly attributable to two main revenue streams of the Group; real
estate sales and rental revenues. The Group sustained its growth on real estate sales, P219 million increase from
P1,890 million in 2016, due to extensive strategies in marketing, developments and project completion. The
increase in number of mall tenants and minimal escalation rate to existing tenants resulted to an increase in
rental income to P1,026 million in 2017 fromP852 million in 2016.

The Group has become cost efficient by reducing avoidable costs which resulted to higher returns. Due to this,
costs of deriving revenues decreased to P1,446 million in 2017 from P1,544 million in 2016.

Revenue

Due to extensivestrategies in marketing, developments and project completion, real estate revenues generated
P2,108 million in 2017,12% higher than the previous year.Increase in rental income by 20% is mainly
attributable to increase in number of mall tenants and minimal escalation rate to existing tenants. Interest income
amounting to P160 million during the year was generated from installment receivables since more buyers are
opting for longer payment schemes. Construction income deereased to P1,612 million in 2017 compared to
P25,591 million in 2016 due to higher volume of construction activity in the previous year.

Cost and Expense

With the efficiency in cost management which resulted to higher retumns, costs of deriving revenue from real
estate sales and rental revenue decrease to P1,445 miilion in 2017 from P1,528 million in 2016 or 5% lawer than
last year. Cost of construction also decreased to P1 million in 2017 from P16 million due to higher volume of
construction activity in the previous year.

Net Income

The net income after tax increased to P818 million in 201 7from P730 million in 2016 resulting to12% growth.
The increase was primarily due to increase in real estate sales.
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PROJECT AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

As the Group envisions to become the country’s leading Real Estate Company not in sheer size but in ways
more meaningful quality projects, quality business plans, grow, returns and innovation, the Group spent P6,006
million for project and capital expenditures. The amount is accounted for the continuous development of the
Registrant’s existing residential and commercial projects and finance newly developed projects. P2,877 million
of the said amount was used in procuring raw lands fornew residential and condominium project developments
and 1,018 represents advances made to contractors.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
Assets

The Group’s total assets increase to P29,807 million in 2017 from P24,125 in 2016. The 24% increase is due to
significant amount project and capital expenditures spent in 2017 which is P2,068 million higher than the
previous year. Other factors are increase in trade receivables due to increase in real estate sales, and increase in
fair market value of investment in form of stocks.

Liabilities
Total liabilities reported to be P15,497 million in 2017 compared to P10,659 million in 2016. This is attributable
to short term and long term loans drawn during 2017 and still unpaid as of December of the same year. Increase

in customer’s deposit due to more projects developed that are offered for sale during the year also contributed to
the 45% increase in total liabilities.

Equity
Total stockholders’ equity increased by P844 million in 2017 due to the net income generated during the year
amounting to P§I18 million. Also contributing to the increase is the change in fair value of investments in form

of stocks amounting to P26 million.

Keyv Performance Indicators

31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
Current Ratio 2.28 277
Debt to Equity 0.73 0.47
Interest Coverage Ratio 231.94% 286.43%
Return on Asset 3.03% 3.03%
Return on Equity 5.71% 5.42%

*Notes to Key Performance Indicators:

6. Current Ratio = current assets (cash, receivables, inveniories, due from affiliates, prepaid commissions,
and other current asset) over current labilities (accounts pavable, customer deposit, current portion of
barnk loans, income tax payable, and deferred 1ax liabilities).

Debt to Equity = Total debt over shareholder’s equity.

Interest Coverage Ratio = Earnings before tax over Interest expense.

Return on Asset = Net Income over Total Assets.

0. Return on Equity = Net Income over shareholder’s equity.

=

There are no events that will trigger any direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
Registrant, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and
other relationships between the Registrant and unconsolidated entities were created during 2017,
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Material Changes in the Balance Sheet (+/- 5%) as of December 31, 2017 versus the Balance Sheet as of
December 31, 2016

346% increasein cash

Despite substantial amount spent in capital expenditures thai areusedincontinuous development of existing
projects and acquisition of various raw lands for future expansions, cash increased due (o higher sales and
increase in short Lerm and long ferm debt availed during the vear,

7% increase in receivables
Due to remarkable sales growth and more projects that have been developed and offered for sale in the market.

34% increase in real estate inventories

The increase was primarily due to significant capital expenditures for continuous development of the
Registrant’s existing residential and commercial projects and to finance newly developed projects and raw land
acquisitions,

14% increase in other current assets
To susiain the growth in development of projects and aggressive markeling activities, the Group made advances
to contractors and marketing avins, vespectively, which caused the increase in prepayments.

61% increase in noncurrent receivables
Due to a number of buyers choosing to settle under a longer payment schemes.

12% decrease in property and equipment
The decrease is due to deprecation of assets.

43% increase in other noncurrent assets
Primarily due to significant security deposits made for 2017.

7% increase in accounts payable
Mainly atiributable to unceasing development of designed projects and procurement of various to be used for
Sfuture projects under instaliment scheme.

129% increase in short-term debt
Due to additional loans obtained by the Group to financeaggressive development operaiions and activities.

35% increase in customer’s deposits
Due to new projects developed and extensive marketing strategies. there is increase in reservation fees and
collections of downpayments.

41% decrease in income tax payable
Muainly attributable io timing differencesof revenue recognition of real estate transactions and others for tax
PUIDOSESVErSUSACCOUNLING DUrposSes.

28% increase in long term debts
To finance the Group's continuous development of the exisiing residential and commercial projects, newly
developed projects and raw land acquisitions.

34% increase in deferred tax liabilities-net
Muinly attributable to timing differencesof revenue recognition of real estaie transactions and others for tax
PUFPOSESVErsusaccounting purposes,

41% decrease in pension liabilities
Duie to the changes in estimates for retivement liability as valued by the independent actuary.

31% increase in retained earnings
Attributed to the net income reported in the 2017,
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6% decrease in unrealized gain on fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
Due to the movement ofinarket prices of investment securities in Phil Racing Inc. and Manila Jockey Club Inc..

Material Changes in the Income Statement (+/- 5%) for the year ended December 31, 2017 versus the
Income Statement for the year ended December 31, 2016

12% increase in real estate sales

Driven by the extensive marketing strategies and project development, real estate sales are notably increasing.
Since more projects are developed as result of more land acquisitions and joint venture being deall with, more
lots and units are offered for sale during the year.

20% increase in rental income
Mainly due to increase in number of mall tenants and minimal escalation rate to existing tenants resulted fo
higher rental income

15% increase in interest income
Due to the interests earned from installment receivables since morve buyers are opting for longer payment
schemes,

94% decrease in construction income
Due to lower volume consiruction activities during the year.,

6% increase in cost and expenses
Due to efficiency in cost management of the Group.

13% decrease in commissions
Due to some varying rates of commission fees paid to markeling arms.

15% increase is salaries, wages and other benefits
Due to increase in labor force of the Group.

68% increase in interest expense
Due to the increase in short term and long term debt during the year.

11% increase in advertising
Mainly attributable to increase volume of advertising and promotions made by the Group in 2017 as compared
to 2016as part of marketing strategy to promote sales.

51% increase in professional fees
Due to significant professional services paid for the actuarial valuation of retivement liability and valuation of
Group's assels.

60% increase 1n utilities
Mainly due to whole year recognition of utllity expenses comprised mostly aof security, light, water and
communication expenses

44% decrease in repairs and maintenance
Due to minimal repaivs and maintenance during the vear for the completed projecis not yet iurned over to home
owners association.

74% increase in representation
Primarily due to increase in volume of transactionsmade by the Group.

12% decrease in provision for doubtful accounts
Collection over the past few years are noticeably improving thus causing reducing the management's estimate
for doubtful accounts.
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18% increase in miscellaneous expense
Due to surchavges and penalties, insurance, legal, office supplies, software maintenance and transportation
expenses incurred by the Group

209% increase in provision for income tax
Due to higher income earned during the year.

COMPARISON: YEAR END 2016 VS. YEAR END 2015

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview of Operations

Net income after tax in 2016 posted an increase of P54 million from P676 million in 2015 to P730 million in
2016 reporting an 8% increase. Gross revenues reported at P3,293 million compared to P3,104 million of last
year, 6% higher than last year. Posting an increase amounting to P209 million n real estate revenues, the Group
sustained its growth on real estate sales due to extensive strategies in marketing, developments and financing
provided in the form of bonds. Revenues arising from rentals decreased from P983 million in 2015 to P852
million in 2016. This was due to change in accounting of income from mall tenants from accrual to cash basis.
Cost and expenses increased to P1,544 million from P1,401 million this year while administrative and selling
costs increased by 6%.

Revenue

Real estate revenues generated P1,890 million in 2016, 12% higher than 2015, This is due to extensivestrategies
in marketing, developments, project completion and financing provided in the form of bonds.Rental income
decreased by 13% due to change in accounting of income from mall tenants from accrual to cash
basis.Commission income during the year was generated by the Group’s marketing unit Santalucia Ventures,
[nc. Other income posted an increase of P75 million due to increase in recognized income related to surcharges,
penalties and other income.

Cost and Expense

Cost of real estate sales and cost of rental income, posted an increase of 10%, from P1,395 million of 2015 to
P1,528 million in 2016. The increase 1s directly attributable to the increase in increase in real estate revenues
due fo strong performance of SLIs property segment. Administrative and selling expenses increased by 51%
primarily due to significant increase in interest expenses related to bonds.

Net Income

The net income increased by 8% from P676 million in 2015 to P730 million in 2016. The increase was primarily
due to increase in real estate sales and effective cost management.

PROJECT AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

In 2016, the Group spent P3,938 rullion for project and capital expenditures. The amount is accounted for the
continuous development of the Registrani’s existing residential and commercial projects. P1,464million of the
said amount is atfributable for acquisition of raw lands for new residential and condominium project
developments. Capital expenditures were significantly financed by the bonds publicly issued in December of
2015.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
Assets
Generating an increase of 13%, the Group reported an increase in total assets of P2,755 million. The increase 1s

due to significant amount capital expenditures spent in 2016 under installment, increase in trade receivables due
to increase in real estate sales, and increase in fair market value of investment in form of stocks.

Liabilities

Total habilities generated an increase from P8,671 million to P10,659 million. The 23% repoerted increase was
due to new short term loans drawn during 2016 and still unpaid as of December of the same year. Additionally,
continuous development of existing projects and acquisition of various raw lands for future expansions and
developments under mnstallment scheme significantly contributed in the increase in the total liabilities.

Equity
Total stockholders™ equity increased by P766 million in 2016, The increase was due to the net income generated
during the same year amounting to P730 million. Also contributing to the increase is the change in fair value of

investments in form of stocks and actuaria) gain/loss related to pension liabilities amounting to P36 million.

Kev Performance Indicators

31-Dec-16 31-Dec-15
Current Ratio 2.77 4.68
Debt to Equity 0.73 0.44
Interest Coverage Ratio 286.43% 725.45%
Return on Asset 3.03% 3.16%
Return on Equity 5.42% 5.32%

*Notes to Key Performance Indicators:

1. Current Ratio = current assets (cash, receivables, inventories, due from affiliates, prepaid commissions,
and other curreni asset) over current liabilities (accounts payable, customer deposit, current portion of
bank loans, income tax payable, and deferred tax liabilities).

Debt to Equity = Total debt over shareholder’s equity.

Interest Coverage Ratic = Earnings before tax over Interest expense.

Return on Asset = Net I[ncome over Total Assets.

Return on Equity = Net Income over shareholder’s equity.

The1c are no events that will trigger any direct or contingent financial obligation that 1s material to the
Registrant, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

DR

No material off-balance sheet fransactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and
other relationships between the Registrant and unconsolidated entities were created during 2015.

Material Changes in the Balance Sheet (+/- 5%) as of December 31, 2016 versus the Balance Sheet as of
December 31, 2015

94% decrease in cash
This is mainly due to significant capiial expenditures during 2016. Said capital expenditures in attributable to
the continuous development of existing projects and acquisition of various raw lands for future expansions.

1 1% increase in receivables
The boost in the Group’s sales growth affects the increase in the current receivables as well as intercompany
transactions of the group.
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35% increase in real estate inventories
In concurrence with the decrease in the cash reported during 2016, the increase in real estate inventories is due
to significant capital expenditures spent in 2016.

70% increase in other current assets
The increase primarily was due fo the increase in prepayments for contractor advances fo suppor! the growth in
development and also to brokers which is as an effect of the Group’s aggressive marketing activities.

17% increase in noncurrent receivables
Corresponds to the additional mix of buyers apting longer payment schemes.

17% increase in available for sale financial assets
Mainly due to the increase in market price of the Group's AFS

47% increase in property and equipment
Mauainly due to the purchase of transportation vehicles and office equipments to be used in operations

26% increase in other noncurrent assets
This is due to significant security deposits made for 2016.

58% increase in accounts payable
Mainly due to continuous development of existing projects and acguisition of vavious raw lands for fiiure
expansions and developments under installment scheme.

242% increase in short-term debt

Due to short term loans drawn during 2016 and still unpaid as of December of the same year. Furthermore,
portion of long term debts as of 2015 was reclassified as curvent during 2016 as these are expected to be paid
within 12 months as of December 2016.

38% increase in customer’s deposits
Increase in new reservations applications and collections under down payment period due to new projects
launched in 2016.

141% increase in income tax payable
Due to increase in current taxable operations of the Company.

20% decrease in long term debts
The decrease was due (o a portion of long term debts as of 201 5reclassified as current during 2016 as these are
expected to be paid within 12 months as of December 2016.

9% decrease in deferred tax liabilities-net
Mainly due to the recognition of the difference between tax and boolk basis of accounting for real estate
transactions and other temporary differences.

86% mcrease in pension liabilities
Pertains to the current year changes in pension liabilities as valued by ihe independent actuary.

38% increase in retained eamnings
Attributed (o the net income reported in the 2016.

9% increase in unrealized gain on fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.
Mainly due to the increase in share prices of investmenis in stocks.

2,540% decrease in remeasurement gain (losses) on pension liabilities.
Attributed to the changes on pension settlement expectations.
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Material Changes in the Income Statement (+/- 5%) for the year ended December 31, 2016 versus the
Income Statement for the year ended December 31, 2015

12% increase in real estate sales
Driven by the increased volume of real estate sales.

13% decrease in rental income
Due to the change in accounting of cash receipts from mall tenants from accrual to cash basis

11% increase in interest income
Due to the mix of interest bearing buyers of the Company

172% increase in construction income
Due to increased number of construction of houses

6% increase in commission income
Due to strengthened marketing performance of Santalucia Veniures, Inc.

38% increase in other income
Primarily due to ihe continuous increase in revenue other than its real estaie sales such as booking of
surcharges/penaliies, processing fees, income related to defaults of various buyers, and other services.

10% increase in cost and expenses
Mainly due to the related increase in sales during the period.

71% increase in depreciation
Due to new properey and equipment acquisitions during the vear.

8% decrease in commissions
Though an increase in sales was recognized, requirements for the release of some commissions to agents and
brokers are not yet met,

112% increase in interest expense
Due o the additional debts arising from the public bond offering in December 2015 and short term loans drawn
in 2016 and partial recognition of capitalized interest from previous years,

87% increase in taxes, licenses and fees

Due to operational activities of the Group and increased volume of processing and tax expenses due fo
increased volume of cash sales. The increase was also due to documentary stamp taxes incurved for short term
loans to various financial institutions.

7% decrease in advertising
Mainly due to decreased volume of advertising and promoiions made by the Group in 2006 as compared io
2015.

29% decrease in professional fees
Due 1o significant professional services paid for the public hond offering in 2015.

594% increase in repairs and maintenance
Mainly due to increased number projecis already completed not vet twrned over ta home owners associations

(HOA) and Condominium Corporations which incurred repairs and maintenance for further upkeep.

50% decrease in representation
Primarily due to decrease in representation related expenses paid by the Group.

20% decrease in provision for doubtful accounts
Due to decrease in volume of receivables expected to be uncollectible than last year.
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66% decrease in provision for income tax
Due to effective tax managemeni of the Group.

COMPARISON: YEAR END 2015 VS, YEAR END 2014

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

QOverview of Operations

A net income after tax of P676 million for the year 2015, 23% higher than the P54 million reported in 2014 is
generated guring 2015. Gross revenues posted at 3,104 million compared to P2,296 million of last year, 35%
higher vear on yvear. Revenues from real estate sales posted an increase of P235 million from that of last year
followed by the 95% increase in rental income from P304 million fo P984 million which was due to the change
in internal operations. Increase in real estate sales was driven by strong performance in SLI's property segment,

Cost and expenses increased to P1,401 million frem P1,029 million this year. Administrative and selling costs to
revenues improved during the year by 51%. Earnings before tax generated is P973 million, 24% increase from
last year.

Revenue

Revenue from real estate sales reached P1,681 million in 2015, 16% higher than 2014. This is driven by strong
bookings and project completion across all real estate segment of the Company. Revenue from rental income
posted a P48C mitlion increase due to change in internal operations. A management services agreement was
executed on lieu of the Lease contract which lets SLI book the gross revenue starting October 2014.
Commission income during the year was generated by the Group's marketing unit Santalucia Ventures, Inc.

Also, a 27% increase in other income or equivalent to P42 million was booked during the year. This was due to
significant gain recognized from repossession of inventory lots during 2015.

Cost and Expense

Cost of sales from real estate sales, together with the cost of rental income increased from 1,010 million to 1,395
million. The notable increase was due to strengthened performance of SLI's property segment and change in
internal operations. In 2015, the 51% increase in administrative and selling expenses is attributable to
professional services incurred for the bond offering and indirect expenses driven by the increase in revenues,
Net Income

The net income increased by 24% from P784 Million in 2014 to P973 Million in 2015, The increase was due to
increase in real estate sales and rental income

PROJECT AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

A total of P1,516 million was spent for project and capital expenditures during 2015, The amount is accounted
for the continuous development of the Registrant’s existing residential and commerctal projects. P179 million of
the said amount is aftributable for acquisition of raw lands situated mainly in Luzen for new residential and
condominium project developments.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
Assets

Total Assets increased by P3,532 million during 20135, 20% higher than the amount as of December 2014. The
significant increase from P17,838 million to P21,371 million of the total assets was due the increase of real
estate sales and rental income as posted in the gross revenue. P2,099 million of the increase is attributable to the
increase of cash due to the proceeds from bond issuances and increase in volume of collections.
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Liabilities

Anincrease of 42% in total liabilities is reported by the Registrant ameunting te P2,565 million. P2,412 million
of the increase is atiributable to bond issuances during December 2015 which was partially used to terminate
significant portion of the existing loans payable to different financial institutions. Furthermore, continued
development of existing projects and acquisiticn of various lands for future expansions also contributed in the
significant increase in liabilities.

Equity

Total stockholders’ equity increased by 8% amouniing to P967 million during 2015, This is due to the net
income reperted during the year and sale of treasury shares amounting to P297 million.

Key Performance Indicators

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Current Ratio 4.68 2.08
Debt to Equity 0.44 0.28
Interest Coverage Ratio 725.45% 691.39%
Return on Asset 3.16% 3.08%
Return on Equity 5.32% 4.68%

*Notes to Key Performance Indicators:

1. Current Ratio = current assets (cash, receivables, inventories, due from affiliates, prepaid
commissions, and other current asset) over current liabilities (accounts payable, customer deposit,
current portion of bank loans, income tax payable, and deferred tax liabilities).

Debt to Equity = Total debt over shareholder’s equity.

Interest Coverage Ratio = Earnings before tax over Interest expense.

Return on Asset = Net Income over Total Assets.

Return on Equity = Net Income over shareholder’s equity.

ok e

There are no events that will trigger any direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
Registrant, including any defauit or acceleration of an obligation.

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations {including contingent obligations), and
other relationships between the Registrant and unconsolidated entities were created during 2015.

Material Changes in the Balance Sheet (+/- 5%) as of December 31, 2015 versus the Balance Sheet as of
December 31, 2014

1,808% increase in cash

This is mainly due io the improved collections of the company, rental operations of the mall as the tenanis now
pay directly to the Company starting October 2014. Proceeds from bond issuances also contributed in the
increase.

8% increase in receivables
The increase is attributable to increased accounis receivable takeup due to increase in revenues recognized
during the year.

L1% increase in real estate inventories
Mainly due to extensive development of existing residential and commercial projects and acquisition of land for
Suture expansions.

8% increase in other current assets
The increase primarily was due to the increase in prepaid commissions and contractor advances as an effect of
the Company's aggressive marketing and developing aclivities.
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12% increase in property and equipment
Mainly due to the purchase of transportation vehicles and office equipments to be used in operations

5% increase in investment properties

Mainly due to the refurbishment of the mall.

5% increase in accounts payable

Driven by the ongoing development of various projects of the company.

12% decrease in customer’s deposits
Due to the improved collections from the customers.

75% increase in Jong term debts

Attributable to increased debts due to the public bond offering.
13% increase in income tax payable

Due the taxable operaiions of the Company.

35% increase in deferred tax liabilities-net
Mainly due to the recognition of the difference between tax and book basis of accounting for real estate
transactions and other temporary differences.

55% increase in retained earnings
Astvibuted to the profitable operations, gains on invesimeni properties, and revenues from real estate business
operalions.

18% decrease in treasury shares
Due to the sale of treaswry shares during 2015.

72% increase in additional paid-in capital.
Due to the excess of proceeds from sale of treasury shares over its cost.

104% decrease in unrealized gain (loss) on pension
Attributed to the changes on pension settlement expectations.

Material Changes in the Income Statement (+/- 5%) for the year ended December 31, 2015 versus the
Income Statement for the year ended December 31, 2014

16% Increase in real estate sales
Driven by the increased volume of real estate sales.

95% increase in rental income
Due to the change in internal operations of the Company whereby a management services agreement was
executed in place of the lease agreenent.

15% increase in inlerest income
Due to the mix of interest bearing buvers of the Company

66% decrease in construction income
Due to decreased number of construction of houses

26% increase in dividend income
Mainly due to increased dividend declaration of investee companies

35% increase in commission income
Mainly due to aggressive marketing strategies of subdivisions owned by SLRDf

27% increase in other income

Mainly due to the gain recognized during the year for the repossession of lot inventories from the buyers. Also,
it’s due to the increase in other operational income such as penalties and surcharges, processing fees, and
income related to defaults of various buyers and cancelled sales.
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36% increase in cost and expenses
Mainly due to the related increase in sales duving the period.

230% increase in depreciation
Due to new property and equipment acquisitions during the year.

52% increase in commissions
Mainly dite to directly proportional relation of real estate sales which increased during the year.

18% increase in interest expense

Duie to the additional debts arising from the public bond offering and pariial recognition of capitalized interest
Srom previous years.

21% increase in taxes, licenses and fees

Due 1o increased taxes paid for wransfer of land titles to customers. The increase was also due to documentary
stamp taxes incurred for short tevm loans {o various financial institutions.,

34% increase in salaries and wages
Mainly due to the hiring of additional employees to cater 1o the increased volume of transactions and the
refease of employees’ benefits for the whole year.

47% increase in advertising
Mainly due to aggressive marketing strategies which is in divect proportion to the increase in veal estate sales.

200% increase in professional fees
Due to professional services paid for the public bond offering

254% increase in utilities
Mainly due to whole year recognition of wiility expenses related to mall due 1o the change in internal operations
of the Company whereby ¢ management services agreement was execuled in place of the lease agreement.

[48% increase in repairs and maintenance
Muainly due to increased number projects afready completed not vet turned over to home owners associations
(HOA) and Condominium Corporations which incur repairs and maintenance for further upkeep.

199% increase in representation
Driven by strong performance in properiy development and settfement of permits and licenses.

106% increase in miscellaneous expense
Due to surcharges and penalties incurred in pretermination of loans to various financial institutions.

27% increase in provision for income tax
Due to the increase in laxable nef income of the Registrant

Five (5) Key Performance Indicators
On Sales

The Registrant’s marketing arms include:
Orchard Property Marketing Corp.
Royal Homes Marketing Corp

Asian Pacific Realty & Brokerage Corp.
Fil-Estate Group of Companies

Mega East Properties Inc.

Sta. Lucia Global Inc.

SantaLucia Ventures, Inc.

A o e
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These marketing companies have been proven to be effective in carrying out the business plans of the Sta. Lucia
Group. The combined sales force of these marketing units totals over 120,000, catering to clients all over the
Philippines.

The Registrant is still looking into other marketing units that may supplement its growth. The Registrant is
specifically looking for marketing firms that will accommodate its requirements and its marketing framework.
With so many projects in sight and a diversified product line, there wilt always be opportunities for other
marketing units.

On Technology Exploitation

The Registrant has made use of the expertise of NOAH Galleries software that is aimed at reducing costs,
improving the quality of all processes involved in development, as wel! achieving accuracy involving all of its
business operations. This software covers the following modules: Project Development; Accounts Payable ;Real
Estate Sales; and Financials which comprise the complete operation of the Registrant, namely property
development. This software is expected to increase the efficiency and productivity of the Registrant, as well as
the quality of the processes involved in property development. The migration of data to the SAP software started
in June 2013 and adjustments are continuously being made to further improve the system and cater to the
Registrant’s needs.

In addition to the software, the Registrant’s website, developed by CETT Computer Education Network can
now be accessed by prospective buyers and investors through the web address www.stalucialand.com.ph. The
website contains the list of lots for sale, a lot map, and a reservation system, which will enable clients to make
on-line reservations. This website is expected to improve client convenience and also serve as a marketing tool.

On Inventory Optimization

The Registrant has in its portfolio a total of 3,789,429 square meters of residential, commercial and mixed use
properties from the 26 properties infused by SLRDI. Moreover, the Company has additional joint venture and
land acquisition projects that are executed since the inception by the Registrant.

Plans have been discussed and are currenily being implemented on the disposal of the said properties, which
will enhance the sales figure and bottom line of the Registrant. On average, most of these projects have to be

sold over a period of three to four years. Developments shall also take two to three years.

On Oreanization Design

Please refer to Employees/Officers in Item [

On Managing Change

The Registrant now has the assistance of professionals leading its reorganization and is still in the process of
hiring highly-skilled professionals who will be involved in the daily operations of the company.

In addition, the creation of the Executive Committee and Management Commiitee will make decision making
more responsive {o the needs of the business.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Registrant was able to meet its capital requirements from its capital resources, including those obtained
from borrowings and prepaid sales and internally generated cash. Liquidity risk is the risk ansing from the
shortage of funds due to unexpected events or transactions. The Group manages its liquidity profile to be able fo
finance the capital expenditures and service the maturing debts. To cover the financing requirements, the Group
intends to use internally generated fiunds and proceeds from debt and equity offerings

The Group actively manages its liquidity position so as to ensure that all operating, investing and financing
needs are met. In mitigating liquidity risk, management measures and forecasts its cash commitments, matches
debi maturities with the assets being financed, maintains a diversity of funding sources with its unhampered
access to bank financing and the capital markets. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group has undrawn
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facilities amounting to nil and P675 million, respectively. As part of the liquidity risk management, the Group is
currently transacting with local banks for a longer term corporate notes and negotiation of higher undrawn credit
lines to meet the debtors’, suppliers” and contractors® obligations and business expansion.

At the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Parent Company held last February 17,2017, subject to
securing all required approvals under applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Parent Company was authorized
to negotiate and avail of a 10 year Corporate Note Facility with financial institutions, with a maximum of 19
investors, for an aggregate amount of P3.00 billion and with an overallotment option of P2.00 billion, for the
pre-payment of existing cbligations of the Parent Company, siralegic land banking, capital expenditures for
ongoing and new projects, and general corporate purposes.

Through scenario analysis and contingency planning, the Group also assesses its ability to withstand both
temporary and longer-term disruptions relative to its capacity to finance its activities and commitments in a
timely manner and at reasonable cost, and ensures the availability of ample unused credit facilities as back-up
liquidity

Factors that may have material effect on the Operations

Effects of Economic Conditions

The results of the Registrant’s operations and financial condition are affected by the general economic condition
in the Philippines, including inflation rates, interest rate levels and currency exchange rate movemenis. For
instance, the general performance of the Philippine economy affects demand for residential and commercial
products, and inflation affects the Registrant’s costs and its margins.

Capital Expenditures
The Registrant’s cash disbursement for project development and land banking amounted to P6,506 Million in
2018, For 2019, the Registrant allocated less than P6,000 Million for its capital expenditures, including P4,000

Million for project development and P500 Million for land acquisitions.

This will be funded by the Registrant’s capital resources as mentioned above,

ITEM 7: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The audited conselidated financial statements are submitted herewith and can be found in the index portion.

ITEM 8: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCL.OSURE

On June 21, 2018, at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting, the Board agreed to retain SGV and Co. as the external
auditor of the Registrant for the year 2017-2018. There are no disagreemenis with SGV & Co. on accounting
and financial disclosure.

The following table shows the fees paid by the Registrant to its external auditor for the past four years: (VAT
inclusive)

Audit and Audit related Tax Fees Other Fees
fees
2018 2,340,000*
2017 1,558,480*
2016 1,638,560*
2015 1,489,600%*
2014 1,232,000%*

*Relates only to audit fees; no other assurance and related services.
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The Registrant’s Audit Committee recommends the appointment of the external auditor to the Board of

Directors which, in turn, recommends to the stockholders for their approval.

PART III - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ITEM 10: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Direclors

VICENTE R. SANTOS
EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES
MARIZA R. SANTOS-TAN
ANTONIO D. ROBLES
AURORA D. ROBLES
ORESTES R. SANTOS
SIMEON S. CUA

JOSE FERDINAND R. GUIANG
OSMUNDO C. DE GUZMAN

Executive/Corporate Officers

VICENTE R. SANTOS
EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES
MARIZA R. SANTOS TAN
AURORA D. ROBLES
DAVID M. DE LA CRUZ
PATRICIA A. O. BUNYE
PANCHO G. UMALI
CRYSTAL L. PRADO

Chairman

Director

Director

Director

Director

Direclor

Director

Independent Director
Independent Director

Chairman

President

Treasurer

Assistant Treasurer
Executive Vice-President
Corporate Secretary
Assistant Corporate Secretary
Assistant Corporate Secretary

Resume of Directors/Executive Officers (covering the past five (5) years)

VYICENTE R. SANTOS - Chairman

Term of Office Three (3) year (2015-2018)

Address Evangelista St., Brgy. Santolan, Pasig City

Age 62

Positions Held Executive Vice President, Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc.; EVP, Valley View
Realty Dev’t Corp.; EVP, RS Maintenance & Services Corp.; EVP, Sta. Lucia East
Cinema Corp.; EVP, Sta. Lucia Waterworks Corp.; EVP Rob-San East Trading
Corp.; EVP, Sta. East Commercial Corp.; EVP, RS Night Hawk Security &
[nvestigation Agency; EVP, Sta. Lucia East Bowling Center, Inc.; EVP, Sta. Lucia
East Department Store, Inc.;Acropolis North, President; Lakewood Cabanatuan,
Corporate Secretary Chairman, Orchard Golf& Country Club

Directorships held Orchard Golf & Country Club; Eagle Ridge Golf & Country Club;

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.

EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES — President/Director

Term of Office Three (3} year {(2015-2018)
Address F. Pasce Avenue, Dumandan Compound, Santolan, Pasig City
Age 64

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
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Citizenship Filipino

Positions Held President and General Manager, Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Ing.; President,
Sta. Lucia East Cinema Corporation; President, Sta.Lucia East Commercial
Corporation; President, Sta. Lucia Fast Bowling Center, Inc.; President, Sta. Lucia
East Department Store; President, Valley View Realty and Development
Corporation; President, RS Maintenance & Services, Inc.; President, Rob-San East
Trading Corporation; President, RS Night Hawk Security & Investigation Agency

Directorships Held Sta.Lucia Realty & Development, Inc., Sta. Lucia East Cinema Corporation, Sta.
Lucia Waterworks Corporation, Sta. Lucia East Commercial Corporation, Sta.
Lucia East Department Store, Sta,Lucia East Bewling Center, Inc. Valley View
Realty Development Corporation, RS Maintenance & Services, Inc.

MARIZA R. SANTOS-TAN — Treasurer

Term of Office Three (3) year (2015-2018)

Address G/F, State Center 1], Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City

Age 61

Citizenship Filipino

Positions Held Vice President for Sales, Sta.Lucia Realty & Development, Inc.; Vice President,

Valley View Realty Development, Inc.; Corporate Secretary, RS Maintenance &
Services Corporation; Corporate Secretary, Sta.Lucia East Cinema Corporation;
Corporate Secretary, Sta.Lucia Waterworks Corporation; Corperate Secretary, Rob-
San East Trading Cerporation; Corporate Secretary, Sta.Lucia East Commercial
Corporaticen; Corporate Secretary, RS Night Hawk Security & Investigation Agency;
Corporate Secretary, Sta. Lucia East Bowling Center, Inc.; Corporate Secretary, Sta.
Lucia East Department Store, Inc.; President, Royale Tagaytay Golf& Country Club;
Assistant Corporate Secretary, Alta Vista Golf & Country Club; Treasurer, Manila
Jockey Club; Corporate Secretary, Worlds of Fun; Corporate Secretary, Eagle Ridge
Golf & Country Club

Directorships Held Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc., Valley View Realty Development, Inc.,
Orchard Golf & Country Club, Alta Vista Golf & Country Club, Manila Jockey Club,
True Value Workshop, Consolidated Insurance Company, Unioil Resources
Holdings, Inc.; Ebedev

AURORA D. ROBLES - Assistant Treasurer/Director

Term of Office Three (3) year (2015-2018)

Address The Alexandra Condominiums, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City

Age 52

Citizenship Filipino

Positions Held Purchasing Manager, Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc.; Stockholder, Valley

View Realty Dev't Corp.; Steckholder, RS Maintenance & Services Corp.; Chief
Administrative, Sta. Lucia East Cinema Corp.; Chief Administrative, Sta. Lucia
Waterworks Corp.; Chief Administrative, Rob-San East Trading Corp.; Stockholder,
Sta. East Commercial Corp.; Stockholder, RS Night Hawk Security & Investigation
Agency

Directorships Held CICI General Insurance Corp.

ORESTES R. SANTOS - Director

Term of Office Three (3) year (2015-2018)

Address Odyssey St., Acropolis, Quezon City

Age 58

Positions Held Project Manager, Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc.; President, RS Superbatch,
Inc.

Directorships held City Chain Realty

Sia. Lucia Land, Inc.
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ANTONIO D. ROBLES - Director

Term of Office Three (3) year (2015-2018)

Address Odyssey, Acropelis, Quezon City

Age 55

Positions Held Stockholder, Sta. Lucia Realty & Development, Inc.; Stockholder, Valley View

Realty Dev’t Corp.; Stockholder, RS Maintenance & Services Corp.;Treasurer,
Orchard Marketing Corporation; Stockholder, Sta. Lucia East Commercial Comp.;
Stockholder, RS Night Hawk Security & Investigation Agency; Stockholder, Exan
Builders Corp.; Owner, Figaro Coffee; Owner, Cabalen

Directerships held Exan Builders Corp.

SIMEON S, CUA — Director

Term of Office Less than a year (2018)

Address 36 Roosevelt Street, San Juan, Metro Manila

Age 61

Citizenship Filipine

Positions Held President and CEO, Philippine Racing Club, Inc.; President, Cualoping Securities,
Inc.;

Directorships held Philippine Racing Club, Inc., Cualoping Securities, Inc,

DAVID M. DE LA CRUZ — Executive Vice President

Term of Office Three (3) year (2015-2018)

Address #31, La Naval Street Remmanville Subdivision Better Living, Paranaque

Age 54

Citizenship Filipino

Positions Held VP and CFO - Atlas Consolidated Mining and Development Corp., SAVP -

Corporate Credit Risk Management - BDQ — AC&D Corporate Partners; President /
CFO — Geograce Resources Phils. Inc.; Vice President / Head of Sales Amsteel
Securities Philippines Inc; Senior Manager — Investment Banking Deutsche Morgan
Grenfell Hong Kong Limited; Acting General Manager & Marketing Head — UBP
Securities / Manager - Investment Banking - UBP Capital Corporation; Senior
Auditor, SGV & Co.

ATTY. PATRICIA A. O. BUNYE - Corporate Secretary

Term of Office Three (3) year (2015-2018)

Address CVCLAW CENTER, 11" Avenue cor. 39" Street, Bonifacio Global City, Metro
Manila

Age 51

Citizenship Filipino

Positions Held Senior Partner, Villaraza Cruz Marcelo & Angangco; Past President, Integrated Bar

of the Philippines (Pasay, Paradaque, Las Pifias & Muntinlupa Chapter); Secretary,
15" House of Delegates National Convention, IBP; Past President, Licensing
Executives Society Philippines

Directorships Held Arromanche, Inc.; Baskerville Trading Corporation, Bay Area Holdings, Inc;
Belmont Equities, Inc.; Foundasco Philippines, Inc.; Go Home Bay Holdings, Inc;
Honfeur, Inc.; Kids Stuff Manufacturing, Inc.; Lawphil Investments, Inc.; Liberty
Cap Properties, Inc.; Mianstal Holdings, Inc.; Quaestor Holdings, Inc.; Recruitment
Center Philippines, Inc.; Westminster Trading Corporation; Winchester Trading
Corperation; Windermere Marketing Cerporation.

Independent Directors
JOSE FERDINAND R. GUIANG

Term of office Three (3) year (2015-2018)
Address Unit 4 Cornhill Villas, Kaimito Ave. Town & Country Exec. Vill., Antipolo
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Age 54

Citizenship Filipino

Positions Held President, Pharmazel Incorporated; Member, Filipino Drug Association, Inc.; Area
Sales Supervisor, Elin Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

OSMUNDO C. DE GUZMAN, JR.

Term of office Three (3) year (2015-2018)

Address Walnut cor. Redwood St. New Marikina Subd., San Reque, Marikina City
Age 64

Citizenship Filipino

Positions Held Treasurer, Sunflower Circle Corp.

Significant Emplovees

The entire workforce of the Registrant is considered significant as each of its employees has his own
responsibilities which are supposed te achieve the Registrant’s goals and objectives.

Family Relationships

EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES, ANTONIO D. ROBLES, AND AURORA D. ROBLES are siblings and
they are first cousins with VICENTE R. SANTOS, MARIZA R. SANTOS-TAN, and ORESTES R. SANTOS,
who are likewise siblings.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

Legal proceedings invoiving the Registrant’s directors and officers are discussed in item 3: Legal Proceeding
above.

Other than in the above-mentioned cases, the Registrant, its directors, officers or affiliates, any owner of record
of more than 10% of its securities, or any associate of any such director, officer or affiliate, or security holder
are not, tc the knowledge of the Registrant, parties to any material Jegal proceeding during the past five (5) years
up to date, including and/or invelving any bankruptey petition, conviction by final judgment, subject of an
arder, judgment or decree, and violation of a Securities or Commodities Law.

ITEM 9: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The Directors and Officers do not receive any form of compensation except for a per diem of Fifteen
Thousand Pesos (Php15,000) per meeting of the Board of Directors.

Apart from the per diem, there are no standard arrangements or other arrangements between the
Registrant and the directors and executive officers.

Exccutive Officers
Annual Compensation

2018
Name and Principal Position Salary* Bonus* Other Annual
Compensation®

Executive Officers

Vicente R. Santos — Chairman KX XXX XXX

Exequiel D. Robles — President/Director XXX XXX XXX

Mariza Santos-Tan — Treasurer/Director XXX XXX NXX

Aurora D. Robles — Assistant Treasurer/Direcior XXX XXX XXX

David M. Dela Cruz — Executive Vice President XXX XXX XXX

Patricia A.Q. Bunye — Corporate Secretary XXX XXX XXX

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.,
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Total for Above Estimated 7,500 2.475 XXX

Actual 7,450 2,580 XXX
All other officers™ as a group unnamed

Estimated 2,500 500 XXX

Actual 2,130 3435 XXX

Annual Compensation

2017
Name and Principal Position Salary* Bonus* Other Annual
Compensation*
Executive Officers
Vicente R. Santos — Chairman XXX HXX XXX
Exequiel D. Robles — President/Director XXX XXX XXX
Mariza Santos-Tan — Treasurer/Director XXX XXX NXX
Aurora D. Robles — Assistant Treasurer/Director XXX XXX XXX
David M. Dela Cruz — Executive Vice President XXX XXX XX
Patricia A.Q. Bunye — Corporate Secretary XXX XXX XXX
Total for Above Estimated 7,500 2,475 XXX
Actual 7450 2,580 XXX
All other officers™* as a group unnamed
Estimated 2.500 500 XXX
Actual 2,130 365 XXX
Annual Compensation
2016
Name and Principal Position Salary* Bonus* Other Annual
Compensation®
Executive Officers
Vicente R. Santos — Chairman XXX XXX XXX
Exequiel D. Robles — President/Director XXX XXX XXX
Mariza Santos-Tan — Treasurer/Director XXX KXX XXX
Aurora D. Robles — Assistant Treasurer/Director XXX XXX XXX
David M. Dela Cruz — Executive Vice President XXX XXX XXX
Patricia A.Q. Bunye — Corporate Secretary XXX XXX XXX
Total for Above Estimated 7,500 2.475 XXX
Actual 7,450 2,580 XXX
All other officers™* as a group unnamed
Estimated 2,500 500 XXX
Actual 2,130 365 XXX
Annual Compensation
2015
Name and Principal Position Salary* Bonus* Other Annual
Compensation*
Executive Officers
Vicente R. Santos — Chairman XXX KXX XXX
Exequiel D). Robles — President/Director XXX XXX XXX
Mariza Santos-Tan — Treasurer/Director XXX XXX XXX
Aurora D. Robles — Assistant Treasurer/Director XXX XXX NXX
David M. Dela Cruz — Executive Vice President XXX XXX XXX
Patricia A.O. Bunye — Corporate Secretary XXX XXX XXX
Total for Above Estimated 7.500 2,475 XXX
Actual 7,450 2,580 XXX
All other officers** as a group unnamed
Estimated 2,500 500 XXX
Actual 2,130 365 XXX
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ITEM 11: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

Stockholders who/which are directly/indirectly the record/beneficial owners of more than 3% of the
Registrant's voling securities as of 31 December 2018:

Title of class Name and address of Name of beneficial owner Citizenship No. of Shares Percent
record owner and h owner and relationship
relationship with with record owner
issuer

Commen Sta. Lucia Really & Dev't., Inc. -same- Domestic 6,701,005,767 81.75%

Ground Flr., State Center Bldg. 11,
Ortigas Avenue cor. EDSA
Mandaluyong City

Security Ownership of Management

Directors/Officers & Nominees as of December 31, 2018

Title of class Name of Beneficial Amount and Nature of  Citizenship Percentage
Owner Beneficial Ownership of Class
Common VICENTE R. SANTOS 712,494 Filipino 0.01%
Chairman
Evangelista St., Brngy. Santolan, 233,000 0.00%
Pasig City
Common EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES 712,500 Filipino 0.01%
President and Director
F. Pasco Ave., Dumandan 230,000 0.00%

Compound, Santolan, Pasig City

Common MARIZA R. SANTOS-TAN
Treasurer and Director
G/F, State Centre [1
Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City 1 Filipino 0.00%

Common AURORA D, ROBLES
Assistant Treasurer and Director
Alexandra Condominium, Meralco
Ave.,

Pasig City 1 Filipine 0.00%

Common ATTY. PATRICIA A.O. BUNYE
Cormporate Secretary
[ 1th Avenue cor. 39" Street
Boenifacio Global City, Metro Manila

Makati City 0 Filipino 0.00%

Common DAVID M. DE LA CRUZ

Executive Vice President

31 La Naval Street Remmanville

Subdivision, Better Living Paranaque 0 Filipino 0.00%
Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
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SIMEON S. CUA
Common Makati City
Director
36 Reosevelt Street
San Juan, Metro Manila 999 Filipino 0.00%

Common ANTONIO D. ROBLES
Director
Odyssey St., cropolis, Quezon City 1 Filipino 0.00%

Common ORESTES R. SANTOS
Director
Odyssey St., Acropolis, Quezon City 1 Filipino 0.00%

Common JOSE FERDINAND R. GUIANG
Independent Director
#71 K-6 St., Camias Road,

Quezon City 1 Filipino 0.00%

Common OSMUNDO C. DE GUZMAN, JR.
Independent Director
Walnut cor. Redwood 5t., New
Marikina Subd.

San Roque, Marikina City 1 Filipino 0.00%

Title of class Name of Beneficial Owner Amount of Ownership  Percent of Class
as Director & Officers

Comman DIRECTORS & EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS 1,889,000 0.02%

Voting Trust Holders

The Registrant is not a party to any voting trust. No shareholder of the Registrant holds more than 5%
of the outstanding capital stock of the Registrant through a voting trust or other similar agreements.

ITEM 12: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

As previously disclosed, SLRDI entered into a Property-for-Equity Swap with the Registrant in
exchange for 10,000,000,000 shares of the latier. As of December 31, 2018, there 2,600,000 treasury shares
which arise from the settlement of intercompany advances between SLI and SLRDI which provides assignment
of certain number of sharehalding of SLRDI to SLI be assigned to the latter.

The Registrant's President, EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES, is the President and General Manager of SLRDL
The Registrant’s directors, ANTONIO D. ROBLES, a stockholder of SLRDI, and AURORA D. ROBLES, the
Purchasing Manager of SLRDI, are siblings of MR. EXEQUIEL D. ROBLES who are all firsi cousinsg of
MARIZA R. SANTOS-TAN, the Vice-President for Sales of SLRDI, VICENTE R. SANTOS, the Executive
Vice-President of SLRDI, and ORESTES R. SANTOS, Project Manager of SLRDI, who, in turn, are siblings.

A director, president and chief executive officer of Philippine Racing Club Inc. and president of
Cualoping Securities Corporation, namely SIMEON S. CUA is also a director of the Registrant.
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PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ITEM 13: COMPLIANCE WITH LEADING PRACTICE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This portion has been deleted pursuant to SEC Memorandaum Circular No. 5, Series of 2013, Please
refer to 2018 SEC Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report (I-ACGR).

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCIIEDULES

ITEM 14: EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17-C
Exhibits
The Registrant has atfached hereto as Annex “A” its Audited Financial Statements for the year ended

31 December 2018 together with the Registrant®s Annual Report on SEC Form 17-A. The Registrant has not
entered into any material contracts.

Reports on SEC Form 17-C

The following current reports have been reported by the Registrant during the year 2018 through
official letters dated:

January 8, 2018
Results of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors held on 08 January 2018

February 7, 2018
Results of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors held on 07 February 2018

March 19, 2048
Press release: “Sta. Lucia Land Inc. (SLI) signs P 5 Billion Corporate Notes Facility™

Maich 22, 2018
Notice of Award dated 22 March 2018 by the Armed Forces of the Philippines Retirement and
Separation Benefits System (“AFPRSBS™)

Aprii 24, 2018
Results of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors held on 24 April 2018

April 30, 2018
Clarifications of news reports: “The Manila Times news article entitled: Sta Lucia to spend over P5B
for 2018 expansion”

May 15,2018
Setting the date of the 2018 Annual Stockholders' Meeting

June 4, 20]8
Notice of the demise of Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.'s director, Mr. Santiago Cua.

June 21, 2018
Results of the 2018 Annual Stackhalders' Meeting
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June 21, 2018
Results of the 2018 Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors

June 28, 2018
Clarification of news report: “The Inquirer news article entitled: Sta. Lucia Land sets follow-on offer™

July 34, 2018
Clarification of news report; “The Philstar.com news article entifled: Sta. Lucia Land forays into office
development”

September 28, 2018
Results of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors held on 28 September 2018

October 9, 2018
Press release: “Sta. Lucia Land Inc. awarded as Best Real Estate Development Company 2018

November 5, 2018
Press release: “CRISP reaffirms SLU AA+ credit rating”

December 7, 2018
Results of the Special Meeting of the Beard of Directors held on 07 December 2018

December 7, 2018
The appointment of Mr. Ace Franziz Cuntapay as Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.'s Data Protection Officer.

December 27, 2018
Disclosure on the transaction invelving 750,000,000 SL.I shares at P1.20 per share
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STA. LUCIA LAND, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
SEC FORM 17-A

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

Report of Independent Auditors Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as at December 31,

2018 and 2017

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and

2016

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the years December 31, 2018 and 2017
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
Naotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

Report of Independent Auditors® on Supplementary Schedules

A. Financial Assets in Equity Securities

B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal
Stockholders (other than related parties)

C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated During the
Consolidation of Financial Statements

D. Intangible Assets

E. Long-term debt

F. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long term Loans from Related Companies)
G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

H. Capital Stock

I. Reconciliation of Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available For Dividend Declaration

J. Schedule of all Effective Standards and Interpretations under PFRS as of December 31, 2018
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FINANCIAL RATIOS

Current Ratio

Debt to Equity

Interest Coverage Ratio
Return on Asset
Return on Equity

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.
SEC Form 17-A 2018

31-Dec-18
2.81
1.40
161.61%
3.06%
7.37%

31-Dec-17
2.27
1.08
231.94%
2.74%
5.71%
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SJA.LUCIA

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Sta, Lucia Land, Inc. {the Company} is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentalion of the financial statements including the schedules altached therein, for the year ended
December 31, 2018, in accordance with the prescrbed financial reporting framework indicated theren,
and for such internal control as management determines 1s necessary 1o enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In prepanng the financial statements, managerment is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
cantinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable mallers related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o liquidate the Company or to
cease operabions, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for oversesing the Company’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules altached
therein, and submuts the same to the stockholders

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditor appomled by the slockholders. has audited the
financial stalements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its repaod
to the stockholders, has expressed its opinian on the farmess of presentation upon completion of such

aurdit
A

" Vicente R. Santos,
Chairman of the Board

Exequiel D. Robles,
President, & Chief Executive Offltr_3|'

o

Signed this 4th day of Aprl 2019 .

AMANDALUYONG CiT APR 12 2019
SUBSCRIBEED AND SWORN to belore me, this day of April 2019, affiant &
community tax certificates,

| Flol

Doc. No. |44
- Page No .

Hook No 5){ :.

Series of 2019

Ortigas Avanue, Mandaluyorig iy
Eenthouse, Building 2, Sta. Lucia East Grand Mall cor. Felix Ave., & Marcos Hi-way, Cainta, Rizal 1900
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Sta. Lucia Land, [nc. and Subsidiaries
Penthouse Bldg. 3, Sta. Lucia Mall
Marcos Highway cor. Imelda Avenue
Cainta, Rizal

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sta. Lucia Land, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Group),
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and
consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a sumumary of significant accounting poticies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all maferial respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash ffows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018
in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards en Auditing (PSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the duditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial staterments as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying conselidated financial statements.
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Adoption of PFRS 15, Revenue fiom Contracts with Customers

Effective January |, 2018, the Group adopted the new revenue recognition standard, PFRS 15, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, under the modified retrospective approach. The adoption of PERS 5 is significant
to our audit because this involves application of significant judgment and estimation in the following areas: (1)
identification of the contract for sale of real estate property that would meet the requirements of PFRS 15; (2)
assessment of probability that the entity will collect the consideration from the buyer; (3) application of the
output method as the measure of progress in determining real estate revenue; (4) determination of the actual
costs incurred as cost of sales; and (5) recognition of cost {o obtain a contract.

The Group identifies contracts that meet all the criteria required under PFRS 15 for a valid revenue contract.
In the absence of signed contracts to sell, the Group identifies alternative documentation, such as reservation
application, buyer’s ledger and official receipts evidencing collections from buyer, that are enforceable and
that contains each party’s rights regarding the real estate property to be transferred, the payment terms and the
contract’s commercial substance.

In evaluating whether collectability of the amount of consideration is probable, the Group considers the
significance of the buyer’s initial payments in relation to the total contract price (or buyers’ equity).
Collectabifity is also assessed by considering the past history with buyers. Management regularly evaluates
historical sales cancellations and back-outs if it would still support its current threshold of buyers’ equity
before commencing revenue recognition,

In measuring the progress of its performance obligation over time, the Group uses the output method. This
method measures progress based on physical proportion of work done on the real estate project which requires
technical determination by management’s project specialists (project development engineers) and managers.

In determining the actual costs incurred to be recognized as cost of sales, the Group estimates costs incurred on
materials, tabor and overhead which have not yet been billed by the contractor.

The Group identifies sales commussion after contract inception as the cost of obtaiming the contract. For
contracts which have qualified for revenue recognition, the Group capitalizes the total sales commission due to
sales agent as cost to obtain confract and recognizes the related commission payable. The Group uses
percentage of completion (POC) method in amortizing sales commission consistent with its revenue
recegnition policy.

The disclosures related to the adoption of PERS 15 are included in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Audit Response

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s revenue recognition process for real estate sales, including the
process of implementing the new revenue recognifion standard. We reviewed the PFRS 15 adoption papers
and accounting policies prepared by management, including revenue streams identification and scoping, and
contract analysis.

For the identification of aiternative documentation for sale of real estate property (in the absence of a signed
contract to sell) that would meet the requirements of PFRS 15, our audit precedures include, among others,
invelvement of our internal specialist in reviewing the Group’s legal basis regarding the enforceability of the
alternative documentation, and reference to buyers’ behavior and industry practices.

For the buyers’ equity, we evaluated management’s basis of the buyer’s equity by comparing this to the
historical analysis of sales collections from buyers with accumulated payments above the coilection threshold.

For the application of the output method, in determining revenue from real estate sales, we obtained an
understanding of the Group’s processes for determining the POC and performed tests of relevant controls. We
obtained the project accomplishment reports (PAR) certified by the project development engineers. The
project accomplishment reports show the completion of the projects to date. We assessed the competence and
objectivity of the project development engineers by reference to their qualifications, experience and reporting
responsibilities. For selected projects, we conducted ocular inspections, made relevant inquiries with the
project development engineers.

For the cost of real estate sales, we obtained an understanding of the Group’s cost accumulation process and
performed tests of relevant controls. For selected projects, we traced costs accumulated, including those
incurred but not yet billed, to supporting decuments such as project accomplishment reports and liquidation
reports from contractors.

For the recognition of costs to obtain a contract, we selected contracts and agreed the basis for calculating sales
commission capitalized and portion recognized in profit or loss, particularly: (a) the percentage of comunission
due against contracts with sales agents, {(b) the total commissionable amount (e.g., net contract price) against
the related contract to sell, and, (c) the POC against the POC used in recognizing the related revenue from real
estate sales.

We test computed the transition adjustments and evaluated the disclosures made in the financial statements on
the adoption of PFRS 15,
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Adoption of PFRS 9, Financial {nstruments

On January [, 2018, the Group adopted PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. PFRS 9, which replaced

PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introduces a forward-looking expected credit
loss model {ECL) to assess impairment on debt financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or
loss and loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Group adopted the modified retrospective
approach in adopting PFRS 9.

1. Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

As at January 1, 2018 (the transition date), the Group classified its financial assets based on its business
models for managing these financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financtal assets.
This resulted to transition adjustments that increased other comprehensive income by B70.00 million.
Thereafter, the financial assets were accounted for based on the transition date classification, while newly
originated or acquired financial assets were also classified based on the PFRS 9 classification criteria.

The Group’s application of the PFRS ¢ classification criteria is significant to our audit as the classification
determines how the financial assets are measured and accounted for in the financial statements.

The Group has investment in unquoted equity securities carvied at fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI). As of December 31, 2018, the investment’s carrying value amounted to £159.53 mullion. In
determining the fair value of this investment, the Group engaged external valuer and exercised judgments in
selecting the appropriate valuation methedology. This includes the use of adjusted net asset inethod, using
assumptions and inputs taking into consideration the industry where the investee operates. This matter 1S
significant to our audit because estimating the fair value of an unguoted equity securities involves the use of
valuation inputs that are not observable in the market.

The disclosures in relation to the adoption of the PFRS 9 classification c¢riteria are included in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Audit Response

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s contracts review process to establish the confractual cash flow
characteristics of debt financial assets, including the identification of standard and non-standard contracts, and
reviewed the assessment made by management by inspecting underlying contracts on a sample basis. We
obtained the approved business models for the Group’s portfolios of financial assets. For significant
portfolios, we assessed the frequency and relative amount of sales in the past, understood how the business
performance is measured and evaluated performance measurement reports.

We recalculated the net asset value {(NAV) of the investee Company by obtaining its net book value which was
adjusted to fair values, as determined by the independent valuer. The resulting adjusted NAV was compared
to the amount reported by the Company. In addition, we evaluated the competence, capabilities and
qualifications of the external valuer by considering their qualifications, experience and reporting
responsibilities. We compared the relevant information supporting the fair value, as determined by the
external valuer, against a range of values using market approach.

We test computed the transition adjustments and evaluated the disclosures on the adoption of the PFRS 9
classification criteria made in the consolidated financial statements,
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2. Expected Credit Loss

The Group’s adoption of the ECL model on its installment contracts receivables and contract assels is
significant to our audit as it involves the exercise of significant management judgment and estimation. Key
areas of judgment include: segmenting the Group’s credit risk exposures; determining the method to estimate
lifetime ECL,; defining default; determining assumptions to be used in the ECL model such as the expected life
of the financial asset and timing and amount of expected net recoveries from defaulted accounts; and
incorporating forward-looking information in calcutating ECL.

Refer to Notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements for the related disclosure on the application of
the ECL model.

Audit Response

We obtained an understanding of the approved methodologies and models used for the Group’s different credit
exposwres and assessed whether these considered the requirements of PFRS 9 to reflect an unbiased and
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and, the best available forward-tooking information.

We (a) assessed the Group’s segmentation of its credit risk exposures based on homogeneity of credit risk
characteristics; (b) checked the methodology used in applying the simplified approach by evaluating the key
inputs, assumptions, and formulas used; (¢) compared the definition of default against historical analysis of
accounts and credit risk management policies and practices in place; (d) tested loss given default by inspecting
historical recoveries including the timing, related direct costs, and write-offs; (e) evaluated the forward-
looking information used for overlay through statistical test and corroboration using publicly available
information; and (f) tested the effective interest rate, or an approximation thereof, used in discounting expected
loss.

Further, we checked the data used in the ECL models, such as the historical analysis of defaults, and recovery
data, by reconciling data from source system reports to the loss allowance analysis/models and financial
reporting systems. To the extent that the loss allowance analysis is based on credit exposures that have been
disaggregated into subsets with similar risk characteristics, we traced the disaggregation from source systems
to the loss allowance analysis.

We evaluated the disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements on allowance for credit losses
using the ECL model.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the Other Information. Other Information comprises the information included
in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year
ended December 31, 2018, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the
vear ended December 31, 2018 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover Other Information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,
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[n connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
[nformation identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Managerment 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
OT €ITor.

[n preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are (o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance i1s a high level of assurance, but 18 not a guarantee that an audit
conducted 1n accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasenably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting frorm {raud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omussions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast sigruficant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in cur auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going conceri,
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financiat statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ather matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevani ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the cwrrent period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected Lo outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report 1s Michael C. Sabado.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

\ @
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Michael C. Sabado

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 89336

SEC Accreditation No. 0664-AR-3 (Group A),
March 16, 2017, valid until March 15, 2020

Tax Identification No. 160-302-865

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-73-2018,

February 26, 2018, valid until February 25, 2021
PTR No. 7332607, Januvary 3, 2019, Makati City

April 10, 2019
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STA. LUCIA LAND, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2017
(As restated,

December 31, 2018 Note 2)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 5 and 27) £1,064,532,966 P626,239,307
Receivables (Notes 6, 19 and 27) 1,874,020,117 2,686,837,726
Contract assets {Notes 4 and 6) 701,474,368 -
Real estate inventories {Note 7) 18,303,658,167 16,027,804,597
Other current asseis (Note 8) 5,204,059.201 2,753.835,484

Total Current Assets 27,147,744 819 22094717114
Noncurrent Assets
Installment contracts receivables - net of current portion (Notes 6 and 27) 494,776,775 1,499.767,330
Contract assels - net of current portion (Note 4) 673,086,938 -
Investment properties (Note 10) 5,154,483.562 5,157,615,826
Property and equipment (Note 1) 44,535,128 55,746,018
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

(Notes 9 and 27) 985,036,600 -
Available-for-sale financial assets (AFS) (Notes 9 and 27) - 878,032,737
Qther noncurrent assets 216,496,836 121,13421%

Total Noncurrent Assets 7,568,415,839 7.712,296,122

£34,716,160,658

P29,807,013,236

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts and other payables (Notes 12, 19 and 27) P3,990,826,478 P2,992.200,850
Short-term debt (Notes 14 and 27} 3,608,000,000 5,475,000,000
Contract liabilities (Notes 4, 6 and 13) 2,017,661,692 -
Income tax payable 19,894,432 46,184,278
Customers’ deposils (Notes 4 and 13) — 1,223,413.496
Total Current Liabilitics 9,6316,382,602 9.736,798,624
Noncurrent Liabilitics
Long-term debt (Notes 14 and 27) 9,998,775,240 5,039.663,054
Contract liabilities - net of current portion {Notes 4, 6 and 1 3) 45,409,032 -
Pension liabilities (Note 20) 5,496,160 2,154,455
Deferred tax liabilities - net (Note 24) 575,790,597 718,442,303
Tota! Noncurrent Liabilities 10,625,471.029 5,760,259.812
Total Liabilities 20,261,853,631 15,497,058,436
Equity
Capital stock (Note 15) 10,796,450,000 10,796,450,000
Additional paid-in capital 330,004,284 330,004.284
Retained earnings (Note 15) 4,402,362,924 1.461,949.860
Treasury shares (Note 15) (1,640,000,000) (740,000,000)
Net unrealized gain on fair value of financial assets at FVOCUAFS (Note 9) 568,768,194 461,764.331
Remeasurement losses on pension liabilities (Note 20) (3,278,375) (213,675)
Total Equity 14,454,307.027 14,309,954.800
P34,716,160,658 P29,807,013,236

See accompanying Notes lo Consolidated Financial Statements.
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STA. LUCIA LAND, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2018

2017

2016

REVENUE

Real estate sales (Notes 3, 4, 21 and 22) £2,428,307,857

B2,108,492,387 BI1,889,582,634

Rental income (Notes 4, 10, 19, 22 and 23) 858,758,442  1,026,099,885 852,490,997
[nterest income (Note 16) 300,973,297 160,047,822 139,513,712
Cormmission income 181,286,064 109,263,232 105,239,098
Construction income - 1,612,700 25,591,746
Dividend income (Note 9) 7,157,683 7,157,683 7,157,683
Others {(Note 17) 255,736,621 276,625,704 273,352,497
4,032,219,964  3.689,299413 3,292 928,367
COSTS OF SALES AND SERVICES
Cost of real estate sales (Notes 7, 21 and 22) 959,025,588 860,882,958 946,430,049
Cost of rental income (Notes 10, 17 and 22) 553,974,130 583,993,393 581,212,249
Cost of construction — 943,899 16,378,994
1,512,999,718  1,445820,250 1,544,021,292
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Commissions 324,666,305 243,968,182 278,861,526
Taxes, licenses and fees 70,826,085 98,388,080 100,385,982
Salaries and wages and other benefits (Notes 19 and 20) 65,093,880 64,083,755 55,644,323
Advertising 59,715,755 56,336,866 50,979,006
Repairs and maintenance 33,631,046 17,045,872 30,196,053
Professional fees 21,077,509 31,402,473 20,828,646
Representation 17,987,405 19,713,990 11,320,093
Depreciation and amortization (Note 11) 16,950,967 19,825,280 20,017,865
Utilities 7,476,177 21,894,451 13,684,987
Expected credit loss (Note 6) 1,393,944 2,550,308 2911115
Transportation, travel, office supplies and miscellaneous 51,579,006 49 608318 42,031,393
670,398,079 624,817,575 626,860,989

INTEREST EXPENSE (Notes 14 and [8) 706,707,500 487,638,932 290,365,003
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,142,114,667  1,131,022,656 831,681,083
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 24) 76,935,383 313,371,404 101,302,394
NET INCOME 1,065,179,284 817,651,252 730,378,689
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or

loss in subsequent periods
Unrealized gains on fair value of available-for-sale financial

assets (Note 9} - 25,976,439 36,479,202
Other comprehensive income (loss) not to be reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent periods
Unrealized gains on fair value of financial assets at FVOCI

(Note 9) 37,007,331 - -
Remeasurement gains (losses) on pension liabilities - net of

tax (Note 20) (3.064,700) 359,984 (597,166)

33,942,631 26,336,423 35,882,036

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £1,099,121,915  P843987,675  P766,260,725
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (Note 25) £0.12 $£0.09 P£0.08

See accompanying Noles to Consolidated Financial Stutements.

AR



SJUAUBIDIS [OIUDULY PAIBPIIOSH0)) 01 $ajoN Butdimduroion 22¢

§T1L96SOP Eld  (659°CLSH) T68°LELS e S09°86T FP9 T (000°000° 0P L) vRZ P00 0L T 000°0S+°96L 01d 9107 '1¢ 12qWa03(] }0 Se 533UR[eg]
§TL09T° 991 (991°L68) TOT6LE9E 689°8LEOCL - - - {5501) awoou1 aa1sUayaidRId (€10,
9E0'7885¢€ (991°265) 0T 6LYOC - - - - (S50]) BUI0AUI BAISUAIIULOY 1210}
685°82£°08L - - 689°8LE0OCL - - - awodUI 1aN
awosul aasuapidunsy
00F 904669714 L05‘czd 069°805 6654 61661616 1@ (000°000°0FLd) P87 P00 0CEE 000°0$H96£°014 9107 ‘| Awenuer Jo se sooue[eg
9107 1€ 2quia03(] papuy 1eax a1} 104
00R'PS6'60SF1d  (SL9E1Zd) LEEPIL (9Fd 098°676 19t Cd (000°000'0FLat) FRTFOOT0ECE 000°057° 66,7014 £10T "1 § 32qUI209(] JO S SIDLE|Bg
SL9'LB6'ErS F86'65E 6E70L6'CT TSTIEH°L18 - - ~ awoou1 2A15u2Y21dII03 [210],
CTHOLLoT +86'65¢ 6EF9L6°CT - — — - awoour 9a15URY21dWod BYI0
TSTISHLIg - - TSTISYH' LIS - - - W02 13N
aweonr aalsuayzduic
STIL9G'SOF Eld (659°¢L5d) T68°L3L G 809°86T +r9 T (OO 000" O L) FRZP00'0¢ e G00°0SF96L 018 £10T ‘1 Alenuef Jo SE S3oUByRS]
L107 T€ 12quad3(] papug Jeax i 104
LTOLOCPSE P1d (SLEBLT ) F61'89.L 8954 PI6'79E 0P rd (000°000°0+9°18) FRTF00°0EES 00005+ 96L°0Td 8T0T "T¢ 13quuadd(] JO B SaouEey
SI6 1716601 (00LF90°C) TEELOO'LE PRI GLI'CI0'] — - - awoou; aa1suayaLdwioa [e10].
LE9THE'EE {00L°F90°€) LEE'LODLE - - - - (ss0]) awooul 2atsuaya1dues 1o1)()
P8TGLIGIN'T - - PRTGLIGI0T - - - JWODUL 1IN
ool aatsusyaidwony
(000°000°006) - - - (000°000°006) - - {oaeys 1od 07 |4 Ye SRTEUS UOI[|IU 00 OSL)
sareys Ainsear) Jo uowisinboy
TIT'SBI'SSTH1 (SL9'CTT) £9809L°1£% 0FO°C8I°LECTE {(000°000°0¥L) $8T'F000EE 000'0SF'96L°01 PIEISIL SE ‘RT(T ‘T AAENUE( JO SE SIDUE[RY
{889°69LFS) - TE£5'966°69 (0TT99LFTT) - - - (7 910N SPIEPUE)S /mau J0 uondope Jo 15ag
008°PS6'60E'PTd  (SLOETTd TEE'F9L 19 098°656‘ 19y (000°000°0F L) PRT'P0O00CEH 000°05+96. 014 8107 ‘T Aenuep Jo ST S3UBRY
8107 ‘1€ 12quiasa(] papuy Jeaj 3y} 10
18301 {0z 20N) X6 J0 {6 10N) $oUIUIED (ST a10N) (¢1 210N) (€1 20KN)
19U - SaLIIqel] SAVADOAT patielay 30038 A1nsead], rendes uy-pred Haos [exrdeny
uoisuad uo JE $)3SSE [ELIUBUL) [BUOLIPPY
{sasso]) sured JO 3NjEA ATEJ
JUIAINSEIWY uo suesd pazijealup)

ALINOA NI SHONVHD A0 SINANALV.LS AALVAI'TOSNOD

SARAVIAISANS ANV "INI ‘ANVT VIDNT VLS



STA. LUCIA LAND, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

o

2017 2006
{As restated, (As restaled,
2018 Nole 2) Note 2)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax B1,142,114,667 PI1,131,022,656 B831,681,083
Adjustments for:
{nierest expense (Notes 14 and 18) 706,707,500 487,638,832 290,365,003
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 10, 11 and 17) 127,996,501 170,772,505 170,175,505
Retirement expense (Note 20) 963,562 990,379 847,432
Loss on retirement of property and equipment 624,620 - -
Dividend income (Note 9) (7,157,683) (7,157,683 (7,157,683)
Gain on repossession of inventories (Notes 7 and 17) {34,897,007) {45,317,126) (32,439,532)
[nterest income {Notes 5, 6 and 16) (300,973,297) (160,047 ,822) (139.513.712)
Operating income before changes in working capital 1,635,378,863 1,577,901,841 1,113,958,006

Changes in working capital:
(Increase) decrease in:

Receivables (Notes 27 and 28) 1,077,120,947 (750,332,186) {327,531,678)
Real estate inventories (Notes 7 and 28) (2,124,413,306) (3,859,266,105) (2,781,767,777)
Other current assets (Notes 8 and 28) (2,814,418,050) (297,137,183) (984,598,457)
Contract assets (Notes 4 and 6) (1,374,561,306) - -
[ncrease (decrease) in:
Accounts and other payables (Notes 12 and 28) 1,177,239,495 64,539,985 944,087,538
Contract hability {Notes 4 and 6) 839,657,228 - -
Customers’ deposits {Notes 13 and 28) - 314,757,212 268,905,000
Net cash used in operations {1,583,996,129) (2.949,536,436) (1,766,947,272)
Interest received 190,322,415 107,566,339 75,923,387
Income taxes paid (244,563,492) (128,425,760) (109,225,772)
Net cash used in operaling activilies {1,638,237,206) (2.970.395.857) (1,800,249.657)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:
Investment properties (Notes 10 and 28) (104,639,672) (151,302,353) (467,930,069
Available for sale-financial assets (Notes 9 and 28) - (7,893,438) (81,458,333
Property and equipment (Note 11} (6,778,748) (13,088,482) (40,192,381)
Other noncurrent assets (95,362,625) (96,701,708} (34,331,150}
Contribution to plan asset (Note 20) (2,000,000) (2,000,000) -
Dividends received 1,958,397 - 9,740,326
Net cash used in investing activities (206,822,648) (270,985,981) (614,171,607)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from loans, net of transaction costs (Note 14) 9,211,973,800 9.759,125,000 1,198.000,000
Payment of loans (Note 14) (6,148,000,000) (5,617,000,000) (500,000,000
Payment of inferest (including capitalized borrowing costs) {780,250,496) (444,252,555) (360,432,604)
Increase (decrease) in pavable to related parties (369,791) 29,208,263 2,302,702
Nei cash provided by financing activiiies 2,283,353,513 3,727,170,708 139 870,098
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 438,293,659 485,788,870 (2,074,551,166)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR 626,239,307 140,450,437 2,215,001,603
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR (Note 5) P£1,064,532,966 £626,235,307 £140,450,437

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



STA. LUCIA LAND, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l. Corporate Information

Sta. Lucia Land, Inc. (SLLI or the Parent Company) is a publicly-listed company incorporated in the
Republic of the Philippines and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) on December 6, 1966 under the name Zipporah Mining and Industrial Corporation. On
August 14, 1996, the Parent Company’s Axticles of Incorporation was amended.

Under the amendment, it changed the corporate name to Zipporah Realty Holdings, Inc. and it
transferred the original primary purpose to secondary purpose from being a mining firm to a real
estate company with the amended primary purpose to acquire by purchase, lease, and to own and
develop and hold for investment and/or disposal, real estate of all kinds together with their
appurtenances.

On July 16, 2007, the Parent Company changed its corporate name from Zipporah Realty Holdings,
Inc. to Sta. Lucia Land, Inc.

The end of the corporate life of the Parent Company was December 5, 2016. On June 16, 2016, the
SEC approved the extension of the Parent Company’s life to another 50 years up to
December 3, 2066.

The registered office address and principal place of business of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group) is at Penthouse Bldg. 3, Sta. Lucia Mall, Marcos
Highway cor. Imelda Avenue, Cainta, Rizal.

The Group 1s 81.75% owned by Sta. Lucia Realty and Development Inc. (SLRDI or the Ultimate
Parent Company).

As delegated by the Board of Directors (BOD), the accompanying consolidated financial statements
were approved and authorized for issue by the Executive Committee and Audit Committee on
April 10, 2019.

2. Basis of Preparation and Other Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared using the
historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) and available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets that have been measured at fair value. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (B), which is also the Parent
Compauny’s functional currency and all values are rounded to nearest Philippine peso except when
otherwise indicated.

The consclidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous
period.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs), which include the availment of the relief granted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under Memorandum Circular Nos. 14-2018 and 3-2019
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as discussed in the section below on Adeption of New and Amended Accounting Standards and
Interpretations. PFRSs include Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, Philippine Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Plulippine Interpretations Committee (PIC).

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 21, 2018.

A subsidiary is an entity which the Group controls. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and
only if the Group has:

» Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee),

s Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

o The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

¢ The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
e Rights atising from other contractual arrangements
s The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, incorme and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included or excluded in the consolidated financial statements from the date the
Group gains control or until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests (NCI), even if this results in the
NCI having a deficit balance. The censolidated financial statenents are prepared using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other similar events. When necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expense and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets
(including goodwill), liabilities, nen-controlling interest and other components of equity, while any
resultant gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognized at fair
value.
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and the
following wholly owned subsidiaries. The voting rights held by the Group in these subsidiaries are in
proportion of their ownership interest.

% of Ownership
Sta. Lucia Homes, Inc. (SLHI) [00.00%
Santalucia Ventures, Inc. (SVI) 100.00

Changes in Accounting Pelicies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adepted in the preparation of the Group’s consotidated financial staterments
are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the adoption of the following new
and amended PFRSs which became effective January 1, 2018. The nature and impact of each new
standard and amendment are described below:

o Amendments to PERS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payvment Transactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net setttement features for withholding tax obligations; and the
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash-settied to equity-settled. The Group has no share-
based payment transaction, therefore these amendments do not have any impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

e PFRS 9, Financial Instrumenis

PERS 9 replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after January I, 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge
accounting.

The Group applied PFRS 9 using modified retrospective approach, with an initial application date
of January 1, 2018. The Group has not restated comparative information, which continues to be
reported under PAS 39. Differences arising from the adoption of PFRS 9 have been recognized
directly in retained earnings and other components of equity.

The effect of adopting PFRS 9 as at January 1, 2018 was, as follows;

As previously

reported As restated
December 31, 2017  Reference Adjustment January 1, 2018
Available-for-sale financial assets PR78,032,737 (a) (R&78,032,737) P
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) - (a) 948,029,269 948,029,269
Retained earnings 3,461,949,860 (a) (72,745,004) 3,389,204,856
MNet unreatized gain on financial
assets at FVQOC] - (a) 531,760,863 531,760,863

Net unrealized gain on fair value of
available-for-sale financial
assets 461,764,331 (a) (461,764,331 -
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The nature of adjustments are described below:

{a) Classification and measurement

=,

Under PFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss,
amortized cost, or fair value through OCIL. The classification is based on two criteria: the Group’s
business model for managing assets and whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows
represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest” on the principal ameunt outstanding.

The assessment of the Group’s business model was made as of the date of initial application,
January I, 2018, and then applied retrospectively to those financial assets that were not
derecognized before January 1, 2018. The assessment of whether contractual cash flows on debt
instruments are solely comprised of principal and interest was made based on the facts and
circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets.

The classification and measurement regquirements of PFRS 9 did not have a significant impact to
the Group. The Group continued measuring at fair value all financial assets previously held at
fair value under PAS 39. The following are changes in the classification of the Group’s financial
assets:

o (ash and cash equivalents and installment contracts receivables previously classified as loans
and receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and give rise to cash flows
representing solely payments of principal and interest. These are now classified and
measured as financial assets at amortized cost beginning January 1, 2018,

s Equity investments in listed and non-listed companies previously classified as Available-for-
sale (AFS) financial assets are now classified and measured as financial assets designated at
fair value through OCI. The Group elected (o classify irrevocably its equity investments
under this category as it intends to held these investments for the foreseeable future.

As a result of the change in classification and measurement, the Group’s investment in
ungquoted securities was valued at fair value using the adjusted net asset method. Under this
method, all the assets consisting mainly of real estate properties and liabilities of an investee
are measured at fair value. The Group intends to hold its AFS financial assets at OCI for the
long term. The investment currently recognized at cost amounting B92.89 million was
measured at fair value with a gain amounting 270.00 million as at January [, 2018 to be
presented as unrealized gain on financial assets at FVQCI.

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss.
There are no changes in classification and measurement for the Group’s financial liabilities.

In summary, upon adoption of PFRS 9, the Group had the following required or elected
reclassifications as at January 1, 2018.

PFRS 9 Measurement Categories

Fair value
through Amortized Fair value
PAS 39 Categories Balances profit of loss cost through OCI
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents R626,239,307 B £626,239.307 B
Receivables 4,186,605,056 - 4,186,605,056 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 878,032,737 — 948,029,269

P5,690,877,100 B P4,512,844,3063  R048,029,269
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(b) Impairment

The adoption of PFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group’s accounting for impairment
losses for financial assets by replacing PAS 397s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. PFRS 9 requires the Group to record an allowance for
impairment losses for all debt financial assets not held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to
the asset’s